DRAFT APPLICATION

REBUILD ILLINOIS
COMPETITIVE PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM

APPLICATION FOR
BIO-SOLIDS DEWATERING PROJECT

COSIE

11 INOYS

City of Collinsville
125 South Center Street
Collinsville, IL 62234

June 30, 2020



REBUILD ILLINOIS COMPETITIVE PUBLIC
CITY OF COLLINSVILLE INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM APPLICATION

Public Infrastructure Application Submission Checklist

All applications will be screened for completeness. Applicants must complete and submit this checklist with the
application. All pages of the application must be sequentially numbered. Use the right-hand column, labeled "Page

Number" to indicate the page for each item.

Original grant application (indicate the "original™ on the cover)
Two complete copies of the grant application

PROJECT INFORMATION

Completed Submission Checklist (This Page)
Letter of Transmittal from Chief Elected Official
State of Illinois-DCEO Uniform Grant Application
Project Information

GATA Capital Budget

Engineer’s Cost Estimate

Project Location Map

FEMA Issued Floodplain Map

Project Summary

Minority Benefit/Affirmative Housing Statement
Job Creation Documentation

Project Readiness Summary

DOCUMENTATION, CERTIFICATIONS, RESOLUTIONS

Signed Letters of Support
Council Commitment of Funds (if applicable)
Resident Participation/Public Hearings (if applicable)
7-day notice
Newspaper clipping & Publisher’s certification
Certified minutes
Attendance sheet(s)
Local Government Certifications
Mandatory Disclosures
Conflict of Interest Disclosure
___Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement, if applicable

ATTACHMENTS

Current Infrastructure Condition Documentation

Firm documentation of commitment from leveraging source(s)
Copy of Construction Permit(s)

Proof of Land Ownership (if applicable)

Control of Right of Way/Easements (if applicable)

Copy of water purchase or wastewater treatment agreement (if applicable)
Copy of Option to Purchase (if applicable)

Copy of Fair Housing Resolution

W-9

SAM Registration (CAGE #)

IRS Certification Letter

Copy of Local Government Audit

4-7
Pending
10-13
14-21
Pending
23
Pending

Pending
27-28
Pending

30-31
Pending

35
Pending

Pending

Pending
N/A
41
42-43
44 - N/A

Pending

Pending

Pending
48-49
50 - N/A
51-N/A
52 - N/A

N/A - Not Applicable
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Office of the Mayor

Letter of Transmittal

June 1, 2020

Director's Office

Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity
500 East Monroe

Springfield, Illinois 62701

Dear Director:

The City of Collinsville is submitting an application for public infrastructure grant funding under
the Rebuild Illinois Competitive Public Infrastructure Program. The grant request is in the
amount of $1,725,000 to be used to partially fund the upgrades the City of Collinsville’s
Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant’s aging bio-solids handling and odor control systems.
Additional funds in the amount of $5,175,000, to be used for the completion of the project, will
come from a low interest loan through the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency’s Pollution
Control Loan program. Repayment of the loan will be funded by future sewer fees.

This project will benefit approximately 33,567 residents of the City of Collinsville, Village of
Maryville, and residents living in the Mounds Water District by providing a long-term
sustainable and cost-effective solution to managing bio-solids and odor at the regional facility.

[ certify that this application meets the eligibility thresholds as outlined in the Notice of Funding
Opportunity and Rebuild Illinois Guidebook.

Very truly yours,

Mayor John Miller,
City of Collinsville

125 S. Center Street
Collinsville, Illinois 62234
Phone: 618.346.5219 ext. 162
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lllinois
Department of Commerce
& Economic Opportunity

Uniform Application for State Grant Assistance

Agency Completed Section

1. Type of Submission [] Pre-Application

Application
[ ] Changed / Corrected Application

2. Type of Application New
[ ] Continuation (i.e. multiple year grant)

[ ] Revision (modification to initial application)

3. Date/Time Received By State (Completed
by State Agency upon Receipt of Application)

4. Name of Awarding State Agency Department of Commerce & Economic Opportunity

5. Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA) Number |420-75-2373

6. CSFA Title N/7A

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Not Applicable (No federal funding)

7. CFDA Number

8. CFDA Title

9. CFDA Number

10. CFDA Title

Additional CFDA
Number, if required

Additional CFDA
Title, if required

Funding Opportunity Information

11. Funding Opportunity Number |RIPI

12. Funding Opportunity Title |Rebuild Illinois Competitive Public Infrastructure Grant Program (92-1)

217.782.7500 Springfield | 312.814.7179 Chicago | www.illinois.gov/dceo
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Competition Identification Not Applicable

13. Competition Identification Number |N/A

14. Competition ldentification Title |N/A

Applicant Completed Section

Applicant Information

15. Legal Name (Name used for DUNS

registration and grantee pre-qualification) City of Collinsville

16. Common Name (DBA) [City of Collinsville

17. Employer/Taxpayer identification

number (EIN, TIN) 37-6001398

18. Organizational DUNS Number|060576626

19. SAM Cage Code |441D4

20. Business Address
(Address 1) 125 South Center Street
(Address 2) Collinsville, IL 62234

(City), (State), (zip - 4)

Applicant's Organizational Unit

21. Department Name [Public Works

22. Division Name |Wastewater Treatment Plant

Applicant's Name and Contact Information for Person to be Contacted for Program Matters involving this
Application.

23. First Name |Dennis

24. Last Name |Kress

25. Suffix

26. Title |Public Works Director

27. Organizational Affiliation [City of Collinsville

28. Telephone Number |(618) 346-5211

29. Fax Number |(618) 346-5220

30. E-mail Address |dkress@collinsvilleil.org

Applicant's Name and Contact Information for Person to be Contacted for Business/Administrative Office
Matters involving the Application.

31. First Name |Dennis

217.782.7500 Springfield | 312.817.7179 Chicago | www.illinois.gov/dceo
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32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Last Name |Kress

Suffix

Title |Public Works Director

Organizational Affiliation |City of Collinsville

Telephone Number |(618) 346-5211

Fax Number [(618) 346-5220

E-mail Address

Areas Affected

39. Areas Affected by the Project (cities,
counties, state-wide, add attachments e.g.

maps)

40. Legislative and Congressional District of

Applicant

41. Legislative and Congressional Districts or Program

Project

Applicant's Project

42. Description Title of

Applicant's Project

43. Proposed Project Term

44. Estimated Funding
(Include all that apply)

217.782.7500 Springfield | 312.814.7179 Chicago | www.illinois.gov/dceo

dkress@collinsvilleil.org

City of Collinsville

lllinois Representative District 112

Congressional District 13 and 15; lllinois Senatorial District 56;

Congressional District 15; lllinois Senatorial District
56; lllinois Representative District 112

Bio-solids Dewatering Project

Start Date 09/01/2020

End Date 11/01/2020

Amount Requested from the State

Applicant Contribution (e.g., in kind, matching)
[] Local Contribution

[] Other Source of Contribution

[] Program Income

$1,725,000.00

$5,175,000.00

Total Amount | $6,900,000.00
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Applicant Certification:

By signing this application, | certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications* and (2) that
the statements herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. | also provide the
required assurances* and agree to comply with any resulting terms if | accept an award. | am aware that
any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative
penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001)

(*) The list of certification and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list is contained in
the Notice of Funding Opportunity. If a NOFO was not required for the award, the state agency will specify
required assurances and certifications as an addendum to the application.

I Agree

Authorized Representative

45. First Name |[John

46. Last Name |Miller

47 . Suffix

48. Title |Mayor

49. Telephone Number [(618) 346-5200

50. Fax Number [(618) 343-3688

51. E-mail Address |jmiller@collinsvilleil.org

52. Signature of Authorized Representative

53. Date Signed

217.782.7500 Springfield | 312.814.7179 Chicago | www.illinois.gov/dceo
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APPLICANT PROJECT INFORMATION
REBUILD ILLINOIS PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE

(To be inserted once available)

Type of project?

If this project is “on behalf of” another entity, what is the entity:

PROJECT LOCATION ADDRESS:

Street Address

(required)

City State Zip Code
The project location will be utilized to verify inclusion in an opportunity zone and/or DCEO underserved area.

PROJECT BENEFIT INFORMATION
Provide the total number of persons served based upon the Census:

CENSUS TRACT NUMBER(s) — Use additional sheet, if necessary.

Is this project located in an Enterprise Zone? O Yes [No
Is this project located in an Empowerment Area? OYes [ONo
Is this project located in a Tax Increment Financing District? [ Yes [ No

What is the current unemployment rate of the County? (from IDES Non-Seasonally Adjusted,
available at: https://www?2.illinois.gov/ides/Imi/Pages/Local_Area_Unemployment_Statistics.aspx )
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APPLICATION WRITER
CONTACT PERSON: TITLE:

ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER:

Firm Name
Street Address P.O. Box
(required) (Only if no street address)
City State Zip Code
(include + 4)
E-Mail
(required)

BUSINESS PHONE: ( ) FAX PHONE: ( )
FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:

(required)
PROJECT ENGINEER, if selected
CONTACT PERSON: TITLE:
ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER:
Firm Name
Street Address P.O. Box

(required) (Only if no street address)
City State Zip Code
(include + 4)
E-Mail
(required)

BUSINESS PHONE: ( ) FAX PHONE: ( )
FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:

(required)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS

UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

Commerce & Economic Opportunity

Organization Name: City of Collinsville DUNS# 06-057-6626 NOFO # 92-1
CSFA Number: 420-75-2373 CSFA Description: | oo et on =MD Hescal vear:  [2020
SECTION A --STATE OF ILLINOIS FUNDS Grant #
Revenues TOTAL REVENUE
(a). State of Illinois Grant Amount Requested S 1,725,000.00

BUDGET SUMMARY STATE OF ILLINOIS FUNDS

Budget Expenditure Categories

OMB Uniform Guidance
Federal Awards Reference 2 CFR 200

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

. Design/Engineering

. Building/Land Purchase

. Equipment/Materials/Labor

. Equipment

. Wiring/Electrical

. Mechanical System

. Paving/Concrete/Masonry

. Plumbing

© |0 N |o ||l w N |-

. Construction Management/Oversight

. Construction

1,725,000.00

11.

Other Construction Expenses

12.

Excavation/Site Prep/Dem

13.

Site Work

14.

Demolition & Removal

15.

Contingency

16.

Total Direct Costs (lines 1-15)

1,725,000.00

17.

Indirect Costs* (see below)

#H |h PR |P PR |R PR R PR |F PP P

Rate:

Base:

18.

Total Costs State Grant Funds (16 &17)

1,725,000.00
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Organization Name: City of Collinsville NOFO # 92-1
SECTION - A (continued) Indirect Cost Rate Information
If your organization is requesting reimbursement for indirect costs on line 17 of the Budget Summary, please select one of the following options.

Our Organization receives direct Federal funding and currently has a Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) with our Federal Cognizant Agency. A copy of this agreement will be
1) D provided to the State of Illinois” Indirect Cost Unit for review and documentation before reimbursement is allowed. This NICRA will be accepted by all State of Illinois Agencies up to any
statutory, rule-based or programmatic restrictions or limitations.

NOTE: (If this option is selected, please provide basic Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement information in area designated below)

Your Organization may not have a Federally Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement. Therefore, in order for your Organization to be reimbursed for Indirect Costs from the State of Illinois,
your Organization must either:

A. Negotiate an Indirect Cost Rate with the State of Illinois’ Indirect Cost Unit with guidance from your State Cognizant Agency on an annual basis.

B. Elect to use the de minimis rate of 10% modified total direct cost (MTDC) which may be used indefinitely on State of Illinois Awards.
C. Use a Restricted Rate designated by programmatic or statutory policy. (See Notice of Funding Opportunity for Restricted Rate Programs)

Our Organization currently has a Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement with the State of Illinois that will be accepted by all State of Illinois Agencies up to any statutory, rule-based or
2a) D programmatic restrictions or limitations. Our Organization is required to submit a new Indirect Cost Rate Proposal to the Indirect Cost Unit within six (6) months after the close of each fiscal
year (2 CFR 200 Appendix IV (C)(2)(c).

NOTE: (If this option is selected, please provide basic Indirect Cost Rate information in area designated below)

Our Organization currently does not have a Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement with the State of Illinois. Our Organization will submit our initial Indirect Cost Rate Proposal (ICRP)
2b) D immediately after our Organization is advised that the State award will be made and, in no event, later than three (3) months after the effective date of the State award (2 CFR 200 Appendix IV
(C)(2)(b). The initial ICRP will be sent to the State of Illinois’ Indirect Cost Unit.

NOTE: (Check with your State of Illinois Agency for information regarding reimbursement of indirect costs while your proposal is being negotiated)

3 Our Organization has never received a Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement from either the Federal government or the State of Illinois and elects to charge the de minimis rate of 10%
) D modified total direct cost (MTDC) which may be used indefinitely on State of lllinois awards (2 CFR 200.414 (c)(4)(f) & (200.68).

NOTE: (Your Organization must be eligible, see 2 CFR 200.414 (f), and submit documentation on the calculation of MTDC within your Budget Narrative under Indirect Costs)

For Restricted Rate Programs (check one) -- Our Organization is using a restricted indirect cost rate that:

4) D _ Is included as a “Special Indirect Cost Rate” in our NICRA (2 CFR 200Appendix IV (5) Or;
Complies with other statutory policies (please specify):
The Restricted Indirect Cost Rate is %
5) D No reimbursement of Indirect Cost is being requested. (Please consult your program office regarding possible match requirements)
) ) ] ) ) Period Covered by the NICRA: From: To: (mm/dd/yyyy)
Basic Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement information Approving Federal/State agency (please specify):
if Option (1) or (2a) is selected PP g gency (b pectiy): S— -
The Indirect Cost Rate is: % The Distribution Base is:
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STATE OF ILLINOIS

UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

Commerce & Economic Opportunity

Organization Name: City of Collinsville

NOFO # 92-1

Fiscal Year 2020

SECTION B

-- NON STATE OF ILLINOIS FUNDS

Grant Number:

Revenues TOTAL REVENUE
populate) Private Public
(b). -Cash $ i $ ;
(c). -Non-cash $ - $ -
(d). Other Funding & Contributions $ - $ -
NON-STATE Funds Total $ - $ -

BU

DGET SUMMARY NON-STATE OF ILLINOIS FUNDS

Budget Expenditure Categories

TOTAL Private EXPENDITURES

TOTAL Public EXPENDITURES

. Design/Engineering

. Building/Land Purchase

. Equipment/Materials/Labor

. Equipment

. Wiring/Electrical

. Mechanical System

. Paving/Concrete/Masonry

. Plumbing

Ol |IN|oc|JO | |WIN]|F-

. Construction Management/Oversight

10. Construction

4,575,000.00

11. Other Construction Expenses

12. Excavation/Site Prep/Dem

13. Site Work

14. Demolition & Removal

15. Contingency

16. Total Direct Costs (lines 1-15)

4,575,000.00

17. Indirect Costs* (see below)

AR |A|A|P|PR|PR|PR|PR|PR|PR|PR|PR|PR|R|R P

Al |A|AR|PR|PR|PR|PR|PR|PR|PR|PR|PR|P|P|P|P

Rate: % Base:

18. Total Costs NON -State Grant Funds (16 &17)

$ 4,575,000.00
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CERTIFICATION

STATE OF ILLINOIS
UNIFORM GRANT BUDGET TEMPLATE

AGENCY: Commerce & Economic Opportunity

Organization Name: City of Collinsville

CSFA Description: Rebuild Illinois Competitive Public [NOFO # 92-1

CSFA #: 420-75-2373

DUNS # 06-057-6626

Fiscal Year(s): 2020

(2 CFR 200.415)

“By signing this report, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is true, complete, and accurate and that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent information or the
omission of any material fact, could result in the immediate termination of my grant award(s).

Institution/Organization

Signature

Name of Official

Title
Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent)

Date of Execution

Institution/Organization

Signature

Name of Official

Title

Executive Director (or equivalent)

Date of Execution

Note: The State awarding agency may change required signers based on the grantee’s organizational structure. The required
signers must have the authority to enter into contractual agreements on behalf of the organization.
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2 CMT

June 1, 2020

RE: ENGINEER’S COST ESTIMATE

Crawford, Murphy & Tilly, Inc has prepared plans and specifications for the project titled “Collinsville
IL WWTP Biosolids Handling System Upgrade Project”. We are submitting the following cost estimate
for the project in accordance with the “Engineer’s Cost Estimate” requirements for the Rebuild lllinois
Competitive Public Infrastructure Grant program.

We hope this information is helpful in your evaluation of the application. Please feel free to contact
me with any questions you may have concerning the cost estimate.

Thank you,

CRAWFORD, MURPHY & TILLY, INC.
Adrianne P. Eilers, P.E.

Project Manager

Crawford, Murphy & Tilly Centered in Value

Gateway Tower One Memorial Drive Suite 500 St. Louis, Missouri 63102 PHONE 314.436.5500 FAX 314.436.0723 cmtengr.com Engineers and Consultants
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PAGE 2

ltem Unit No.. of Cost per Total Unit Installation Total ltem
Units Unit Cost Cost

Mobilization, Bonds &
Insurance LS 1 $350,000 | $350,000 $350,000
Process Building
Slab on Grade CY 130 $440 $57,070 $57,070
Walls CYy 72 $700 $50,296 $50,296
Biosolids Storage
Building
Walls (Push Walls) CcY 311 $700 | $217,363 $217,363
Foundation CY 334 $440 | $147,156 $147,156
Lime Silo Equipment
Pad CYy 15 $440 $6,519 $6,519
Storage Building Odor
Control Equipment Pad CY 59 $440 $26,074 $26,074
Odor Control Equipment
Pads (Except Storage
Bld.) CY 10 $440 $4,400 $4,400
Odor Control Rem. &
Rep. Sidewalk CcY 2 $625 $1,250 $1,250
Exterior CMU SF 3,200 $12 $38,400 $38,400
Insulation 2" SF 5,390 $4 $21,560 $21,560
8" Structural CMU SF 5,390 $18 $97,020 $97,020
Drainage Mat SF 640 $2 $1,152 $1,152
Stone Sill LF 320 $15 $4,800 $4,800
Metal Deck SF 4,000 $9 $36,000 $36,000
Steel Joist EA 14 $2,400 $33,600 $33,600
Miscellaneous Metal
Fastenings LS 1 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
Lintels LF 197 $450 $88,502 $88,502
Process Building Simple
Saver Roof Insulation SF 3,970 $10 $39,700 $39,700
Metal Roof SF 3,970 $2 $8,734 $8,734
Air Barrier SF 2,380 $0 $952 $952
Siding SF 2,380 $10 $23,800 $23,800
Sheathing SF 2,380 $2 $4,760 $4,760
Metal Studs SF 2,380 $2 $4,760 $4,760
Gutters LF 126 $9 $1,134 $1,134
Downspouts LF 80 $7 $560 $560
Snow and Ice Guards FL 126 $35 $4,410 $4,410
Aluminum Windows SF 384 $30 $11,520 $11,520
OH Doors EA 2 $10,000 $20,000 $20,000
Man Doors EA 11 $2,500 $27,500 $27,500
Manure Spreader Truck EA 1 $200,000 | $200,000 $200,000

Crawford, Murphy & Tilly

Gateway Tower One Memorial Drive Suite 500 St. Louis, Missouri 63102 PHONE 314.436.5500

FAX 314.436.0723

Centered in Value

cmtengr.com Engineers and Consultants
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PAGE 3

ltem Unit No. of Cost per Total Unit Installation Total Item
Units Unit Cost Cost

Compact Wheel Loader | EA 1 $200,000 | $200,000 $200,000
Paddle Aerator EA 1 $75,000 $75,000 $75,000
Metal Building System
(Biosolids Storage
Facility) SF 10,600 $34 | $360,400 $360,400
Sink (SK-1) EA 1 $1,000 $1,000 $731 $1,731
Hot Water Heater
(HWT-1) EA 1 $1,700 $1,700 $300 $2,000
Mix Valve (1.25") EA 1 $1,250 $1,250 $46 $1,296
Emergency Shower and
Eye Wash Station
(ESH-1) EA 1 $4,150 $4,150 $600 $4,750
Floor Drain (FD-1) EA 4 $665 $2,660 $480 $3,140
Trench Drain (TD-1) EA 1 $1,625 $1,625 $150 $1,775
Cleanout (CO-1) EA 2 $284 $568 $200 $768
Waste and Vent Pipe 10 LF 30 $23 $690 $743 $1,433
Potable Water Pipe 10 LF 15 $23 $345 $371 $716
Subcontractor
Overhead and Profit % 10 $17,609 $1,761 $1,761
Exhaust Fan (EF-1) EA 1 $1,075 $1,075 $300 $1,375
Supply Fan (SF-1) EA 1 $1,750 $1,750 $625 $2,375
Supply Fan (SF-2 & SF-
3) EA 2 $5,925 $11,850 $3,000 $14,850
Duct Heater (EDH-1) EA 1 $3,600 $3,600 $167 $3,767
Ductless Split AC Unit
(AC-1) EA 1 $3,475 $3,475 $667 $4,142
Unit Heater (UH-1 thru
UH-4) EA 4 $1,100 $4,400 $480 $4,880
Subcontractor
Overhead and Profit % 10 $31,388 $3,139 $3,139
FRP Air Balancing
Valves-Odor Control
6" FRP Damper EA 5 $82 $408 $408
8" FRP Damper EA 2 $97 $193 $193
20" FRP Damper EA 2 $205 $409 $409
30" FRP Damper EA 2 $314 $628 $628
FRP Ductwork-Odor
Control
6" FRP Duct LF 110 $27 $2,965 $2,965
6" FRP 90° Bend EA 9 $194 $1,742 $1,742
8" FRP Duct LF 80 $34 $2,728 $2,728
8" FRP 90° Bend EA 10 $243 $2,431 $2,431
8"x6"x6" FRP Tee EA 1 $500 $500 $500

Crawford, Murphy & Tilly

Gateway Tower One Memorial Drive Suite 500 St. Louis, Missouri 63102 PHONE 314.436.5500

FAX 314.436.0723

Centered in Value

cmtengr.com Engineers and Consultants
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PAGE 4

ltem Unit No. of Cost per Total Unit Installation Total Item
Units Unit Cost Cost

8" FRP Wye Cleanout EA 2 $300 $600 $600
10" FRP Duct LF 10 $38 $375 $375
10" FRP 90° Bend EA 1 $285 $285 $285
20" FRP Duct LF 25 $119 $2,985 $2,985
20" FRP 90° Bend EA 2 $804 $1,608 $1,608
30" FRP Duct LF 105 $194 $20,412 $20,412
30" FRP 90° Bend EA 10 $1,410 $14,100 $14,100
30"x30"x20" FRP Tee EA 2 $1,800 $3,600 $3,600
SCH. 80 PVC
Ductwork-Odor Control
6" SCH. 80 PVC Duct LF 30 $41 $1,215 $1,215
6" SCH. 80 PVC 90°
Bend EA 5 $257 $1,285 $1,285
6"x6"x6" SCH. 80 PVC
TEE EA 1 $410 $410 $410
8" SCH. 80 PVC Duct LF 180 $60 $10,800 $10,800
8" SCH. 80 PVC 90°
Bend EA 6 $560 $3,360 $3,360
8" SCH. 80 PVC 45°
Bend EA 3 $540 $1,620 $1,620
8" SCH. 80 PVC 22.5°
Bend EA 4 $520 $2,080 $2,080
8"x8"x6" SCH. 80 PVC
Tee EA 1 $900 $900 $900
10" SCH. 80 PVC Duct LF 10 $112 $1,115 $1,115
10" SCH. 80 PVC 90°
Bend EA 1 $1,120 $1,120 $1,120
10"x8"x8" SCH. 80 PVC
Tee EA 1 $1,620 $1,620 $1,620
Duct Supports 6"-8" LF 190 $45 $8,550 $8,550
Duct Supports 20"-30" LF 130 $105 $13,650 $13,650
Concrete Encased
Conduit and Wire
(Biosolids feed) LF 185 $46 $8,492 $9,528 $18,019
Concrete Encased
Conduit and Wire (Odor
Control feeds LF 375 $16 $5,813 $9,900 $15,713
Concrete Encased
Conduit and Fiber Optic
(Biosolids feed) LF 330 $13 $4,290 $5,148 $9,438
Conduit and Wire
(Relocated light) LF 100 $3 $325 $780 $1,105
600A circuit breaker
(Existing MCP) EA 1 $3,165 $3,165 $320 $3,485

Crawford, Murphy & Tilly

Gateway Tower One Memorial Drive Suite 500 St. Louis, Missouri 63102 PHONE 314.436.5500

FAX 314.436.0723

Centered in Value

cmtengr.com Engineers and Consultants
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PAGE 5

ltem Unit No. of Cost per Total Unit Installation Total Item
Units Unit Cost Cost

6' wide, 6' deep trench
and backfill (Biosolids
feed) LF 615 $13 $7,811 $14,022 $21,833
2' wide, 4' deep trench
and backfill (Odor
Control feeds) LF 375 $2 $713 $2,438 $3,150
Handhole EA 2 $1,265 $2,530 $510 $3,040
Biosolids Process Bldg
600A Power Panel,
480.277V, 3 PH, 4 wire EA 1 $15,200 $15,200 $3,165 $18,365
75KVA Transformer,
480-208Y/120V, 3 PH,
4 wire EA 1 $12,650 $12,650 $2,530 $15,180
225A Lighting Panel,
208Y/120V, 3 PH, 4
wire EA 1 $3,165 $3,165 $1,900 $5,065
30A Safety Switch EA 11 $1,140 $12,540 $3,520 $16,060
Size 0 Motor starter EA 2 $950 $1,900 $510 $2,410
Exit sign EA 3 $255 $765 $390 $1,155
1X4 Light Fixture EA 14 $510 $7,140 $1,820 $8,960
1X4 Light Fixture with
emergency battery
backup EA 7 $570 $3,990 $910 $4,900
Wallpack Light Fixture EA 3 $510 $1,530 $390 $1,920
Conduit and Wiring LS 1 $9,500 $9,500 $19,000 $28,500
House Control Panel EA 1 $31,625 $31,625 $6,325 $37,950
PLC Programing EA 1 $0 $0 $25,300 $25,300
Fire Alarm Control
Panel EA 1 $6,325 $6,325 $1,250 $7,575
Fire Alarm Annunciator
Panel EA 1 $380 $380 $320 $700
Knox Box EA 1 $125 $125 $95 $220
Smoke Detectors EA 9 $190 $1,710 $1,125 $2,835
Pull Stations EA 4 $125 $500 $380 $880
Notification Devices —
Strobe and Horn EA 4 $190 $760 $500 $1,260
Biosolids Storage Bldg
Wallpack Light Fixture EA 5 $510 $2,550 $650 $3,200
High Bay Light Fixture EA 22 $635 $13,970 $5,610 $19,580
High Bay Light Fixture
with emergency battery
backup EA 8 $700 $5,600 $2,040 $7,640
Conduit and Wiring LS 1 $4,150 $4,150 $9,500 $13,650

Crawford, Murphy & Tilly

Gateway Tower One Memorial Drive Suite 500 St. Louis, Missouri 63102

PHONE 314.436.5500

Centered in Value

FAX 314.436.0723 cmtengr.com Engineers and Consultants
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PAGE 6

ltem Unit No. of Cost per Total Unit Installation Total Item
Units Unit Cost Cost

Heat Detectors EA 5 $255 $1,275 $475 $1,750
Pull Stations EA 4 $125 $500 $1,520 $2,020
Notification Devices —
Strobe and Horn EA 6 $190 $1,140 $4,560 $5,700
Sludge Transfer Bldg
Size 2 Motor Starter EA 2 $2,530 $5,060 $2,530 $7,590
3HP VFD, 480V, 3 PH EA 2 $3,165 $6,330 $1,900 $8,230
30A Safety Switch EA 2 $1,140 $2,280 $640 $2,920
Conduit and Wire LS 1 $1,265 $1,265 $2,530 $3,795
Demolition — conduit
and wire EA 1 $0 $0 $635 $635
Demolition - VFD EA 3 $0 $0 $960 $960
Excavation CY 2,235 $30 $67,050 $67,050
Granular Bedding,
Footings (12") CY 156 $35 $5,460 $5,460
Granular Bedding,
Building Slabs (6" and
8") CY 341 $35 $11,935 $11,935
Granular Bedding,
Exterior Concrete (6")
(Includes south pad) CY 97 $35 $3,395 $3,395
Backfill CY 3,640 $30 $109,200 $109,200
Miscellaneous LS 1 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000
Erosion Control
Measures LS 1 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
Asphalt Access Road SY 5,390 $80 $431,200 $431,200
Permanent Seeding LS 1 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Bollards-Batch Tank
Odor Control EA 2 $800 $1,600 $1,600
Bollards-Biosolids
Storage Facility EA 12 $800 $9,600 $9,600
Sanitary Sewer Drain
Line (DI)
4" Pipe LF 30 $28 $840 $840 $1,680
8" Pipe LF 245 $25 $6,125 $6,125 $12,250
8" 45 deg MJ EA 3 $240 $720 $720 $1,440
Manhole EA 1 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
Plant Water Line (PVC)
4" Pipe LF 110 $26 $2,860 $2,860 $5,720
4" Fittings EA 2 $250 $500 $500 $1,000
Sludge Feed Forcemain
(D)
6" Pipe LF 1,270 $20 $25,400 $25,400 $50,800

Crawford, Murphy & Tilly Centered in Value

Gateway Tower One Memorial Drive Suite 500 St. Louis, Missouri 63102 PHONE 314.436.5500 FAX 314.436.0723 cmtengr.com Engineers and Consultants
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ltem Unit No.. of Cost per Total Unit Installation Total Item
Units Unit Cost Cost

6" 45 deg MJ EA 6 $180 $1,080 $1,080 $2,160
6" 90 deg MJ EA 1 $205 $205 $205 $410
2" Potable Water Line
2" Pipe LF 80 $25 $2,000 $2,000 $4,000
Reaction Tank
Discharge
6" Flexible Pipe LS 1 $500 $500 $500 $1,000
6" x 2" FL Tee EA 1 $440 $440 $440 $880
Sludge Pump
Modifications
4" FL LF 15 $300 $4,500 $4,500 $9,000
6" FL LF 6 $375 $2,250 $2,250 $4,500
4" 90 deg FL EA 4 $190 $760 $760 $1,520
6" x 6" Tee FL EA 2 $420 $840 $840 $1,680
6" x 4" Tee FL EA 3 $465 $1,395 $1,395 $2,790
Plant Water
4" Sch 80 PVC LF 145 $7 $1,015 $1,015 $2,030
2" Sch 80 PVC LF 15 $3 $45 $45 $90
1" Sch 80 PVC LF 60 $1 $60 $60 $120
4" 90 Deg PVC EA 3 $60 $180 $180 $360
2" 90 deg PVC EA 2 $15 $30 $30 $60
1" 90 deg PVC EA 8 $9 $72 $72 $144
4" x 4" Tee EA 1 $82 $82 $82 $164
4" x 2" Tee EA 1 $105 $105 $105 $210
4" x 1" Tee EA 3 $105 $315 $315 $630
Hose Bib EA 3 $500 $1,500 $1,500 $3,000
4" Plug Valve EA 1 $850 $850 $850 $1,700
Polymer Feed Line
2" Sch 40 PVC LF 40 $2 $80 $80 $160
2" 90 deg PVC EA 4 $15 $60 $60 $120
Ammonia Scrubber
Suction Piping
6" Sch 40 PVC LF 85 $9 $765 $765 $1,530
6" 90 deg PVC EA 7 $165 $1,155 $1,155 $2,310
6" x 6" Tee PVC EA 2 $275 $550 $550 $1,100
Ammonia Scrubber
Vent Piping
4" Sch 40 PVC LF 10 $5 $50 $50 $100
4" 90 deg PVC EA 4 $60 $240 $240 $480
Air Compressor Piping LS 1 $3,000 $3,000 $0 $3,000

Crawford, Murphy & Tilly Centered in Value

Gateway Tower One Memorial Drive Suite 500 St. Louis, Missouri 63102 PHONE 314.436.5500 FAX 314.436.0723 cmtengr.com Engineers and Consultants
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ltem Unit No.. of Cost per Total Unit Installation Total Item
Units Unit Cost Cost

Sludge Feed Forcemain
6" FL LF 80 $375 $30,000 $30,000 $60,000
6" 90 deg FL EA 6 $280 $1,680 $1,680 $3,360
Process Drain Line
8" MJ LF 60 $25 $1,500 $1,500 $3,000
4" MJ LF 15 $26 $390 $390 $780
2" Sch 40 PVC LF 10 $2 $20 $20 $40
2" 90 deg PVC EA 1 $15 $15 $15 $30
2" Tee PVC EA 1 $50 $50 $50 $100
4" 45 deg MJ EA 2 $125 $250 $250 $500
8" x 4" Wye MJ EA 3 $925 $2,775 $2,775 $5,550
8" 45 deg MJ EA 4 $240 $960 $960 $1,920
8" Wye MJ EA 1 $820 $820 $820 $1,640
Progressing Cavity
Pumps EA 2 $10,000 $20,000 $1,000 $21,000
Odor Control System
Biosolids Storage
Facility EA 1 $422,600 $422,600 $21,130 $443,730
Primary Clarifier 1 & 2 EA 1 $37,200 $37,200 $1,860 $39,060
Primary Clarifier 3 EA 1 $26,200 $26,200 $1,310 $27,510
Sludge Batch Tanks EA 1 $46,000 $46,000 $2,300 $48,300
Fiberglass Launder
Covers Equipment LS 1 $95,940 $95,940 $19,188 $115,128
Dewatering and
Biosolids Stabilization
System Equipment LS 1 $1,650,000 | $1,650,000 $82,500 | $1,732,500
Contingency % 5 $6,000,000 $300,000 $300,000
Total $6,300,000

Crawford, Murphy & Tilly

Gateway Tower One Memorial Drive Suite 500 St. Louis, Missouri 63102 PHONE 314.436.5500

Centered in Value

FAX 314.436.0723 cmtengr.com Engineers and Consultants
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Project Location Map

A project location map must be included in the application. It is expected to be
sufficiently detailed to show the following information: 1) specific boundaries of the
project area; 2) all integral components of the system being improved or constructed,
including water tower, well, pump stations, existing water/sewer mains, proposed
water/sewer mains, etc.; 3) railroads, highways, interstates, towns/cities/villages (rural
projects), county lines, and corporate limits. The project map must be suitable for
reproduction and shall not exceed the page size of 11 x 17 inches. (Applicants may also
submit blueprints or larger project maps as a supplement to their submission, if they deem
necessary in order to show project details sufficiently.)

(To be inserted once available)
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APPROXIMATE SCALE

400 ¢} 400 FEET
== F— e |

NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM

FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP

CITY OF

COLLINSVILLE,
ILLINOIS

MADISON AND ST CLAIR
COUNTIES .

PANEL 1 OF 5

COMMUNITY-PANEL NUMBER
170439 0001 B

EFFECTIVE DATE:
FEBRUARY 18,1981

federal emergency management agency
federal insurance administration

This is an official copy of a portion of the above referenced flood map. It

was extracted using F-MIT On-Line. This map does not reflect changes

or amendments which may have been made subsequent to the date on the
title block. For the latest product information about National Flood Insurance
] Program flood maps check the FEMA Flood Map Store at www.msc.fema.gov
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Project Summary

The Project Summary should consist of an approximately two-page narrative covering all key points of the
proposed project to be funded, in part or in full, with RIPI grant funds. This summary must address the

following:

Relationship to Governor’s Five-Year Economic Plan — Explain how this project relates
to the principles, goals, challenges or key industries identified in the Governor’s Five-Year
Economic Plan. The Plan can be found at:
https://www2.illinois.gov/dceo/Pages/EconPlan2019.aspx

Connections to other capital investments — Does this project connect to other ongoing
projects or planned investments in the region by the State of Illinois, federal or local
governments?

Impact Amplification —Is this project’s impact amplified by proximity or connection to
other assets, such as public transportation, highways, bodies of water, and industry clusters,
among others?

Minority Inclusion Plan —Provide a Plan or at minimum, a narrative on how minority and
women-owned businesses in the area will be included in the project.

Business Infrastructure — How does this project improve your community’s ability to retain
or increase jobs? Provide details of how current infrastructure impacts businesses. Cite
specifics and provide documentation and/or testimonials from affected businesses.

. Key Details:

e Describe the project — What is being proposed and why.

e What is the present condition of the infrastructure for which grant funds are being
requested? Is there a lack of infrastructure, or a threat to health and safety being
addressed? How long has the problem existed? Address the severity and immediacy of
the problem.

e Describe the project area, including legal boundaries. Who is being affected and how?
Provide a detailed explanation of how this specific project area was determined.

e The project structure (i.e., will the residents be direct customers of the water district or is
an agreement needed, what is source of water, who will treat wastewater, etc.).

e Whether the project is necessary to comply with state or federal regulations.

e Justification of the local government's need for assistance in relation to its overall
financial capability, including discussion of outstanding indebtedness.

(To be inserted once available)
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MINORITY BENEFIT/AFFIRMATIVE HOUSING STATEMENT

a. What is the percentage of the minority group(s) population residing in
the community?

%

Identify the characteristics of the population of the project area by specific ethnic group. This information
may be obtained from the most recent Census Data for the “applicant community.” If submitting an “on
behalf of” application for a project in an unincorporated area, use Census Data for the project’s County.

Total # of Hispanic /
Racial Group Persons Latino Ethnicity
White
Black/African American
Asian

American Indian/Alaskan Native

Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander

American Indian/Alaskan Native and White

Asian and White

Black/African American and White

American Indian/Alaskan Native and Black/African American

Other Individuals Reporting more than One Race

# of Female Headed Households

With the_exception of "Female Heads of Households", the above numbers should
equal the total number of persons to benefit from the project (“targeted"” area).

b. What is the goal for the percentage of funded contracts to be awarded to
minority contractors?

%

c. If the percentage goal in b is substantially less than the percentage of minorities
residing in the community, please explain.

d. The applicant agrees to affirmatively further fair housing by posting Fair Housing Posters
and by making HUD Fair Housing Complaint Forms available to the public.
In addition, the unit of local government
U Already has a Fair Housing Resolution on file. (Indicate Number and Date Passed

)

Q1 If funded, will pass a Fair Housing Resolution.

Signature of Chief Elected Official: Date

(To be inserted once available)
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IMPACT PER CAPITA DETERMINATION

Please provide the following information relative to the project for which funds are being requested:

a. Total Project Cost: $__ 6,900,000.00 (must match Total Project Costs indicated

on the Uniform Capital Budget Template, Budget Narrative Summary)

b. Rebuild Illinois Grant Requested: $_ 1,725,000.00 (must match State Request indicated on the
Uniform Capital Budget Template, Budget Narrative Summary)

C. Total # of Persons Served: # 33,567 (must match Project Information page, I.
Project Benefit Information)

d. Cost per Capita: $ 51.39 (Line b divided by Line c)
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JOB CREATION DOCUMENTATION

Engineer providing cost estimate should assist with this information

How many days of construction is anticipated?

365

Provide a list of all personnel that will be necessary to complete construction. Include the Job Title, the total
number of people that will hold that job title, and the total number of hours that job title is anticipated to be

utilized. Use additional pages as needed.

Job Title Number in Number of
Job Title Hours Utilized

Superintendent 1 2080
Labor — Journeyman 4 4000
Labor — Apprentice 2 1600
Brick Mason — Foreman 1 80

Brick Mason - Journeyman 2 160
Brick Mason — Apprentice 1 80

Cement Mason — Foreman 1 240
Cement Mason - Journeyman 2 480
Cement Mason — Apprentice 1 480
Carpenter — Foreman 1 1600
Carpenter — Journeyman 3 3200
Carpenter - Apprentice 1 800
Roofer — Foreman 1 24

Roofer — Journeyman 2 48

Roofer — Apprentice 2 48

Painter — Foreman 1 80

Painter — Journeyman 3 240
Painter — Apprentice 1 80

Truck Driver 10 1600
Iron Worker — Foreman 1 400
Iron Worker — Journeyman 4 1360
Iron Worker — Apprentice 2 640
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Steamfitter — Journeyman 2 640
Steamfitter — Apprentice 1 320
Pipefitter — Journeyman 2 640
Pipefitter — Apprentice 1 320
Operating Engineer 5 800
Electrician — Foreman 1 800
Electrician — Journeyman 2 1200
Electrician — Apprentice 2 1200
Project Manager 4 1440
Engineer 4 4800
Testing Technician 2 800
Surveyor 2 32
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Project Readiness Summary

Each application must demonstrate that the proposed project is appropriate and achievable and that
all actions have been completed to ensure timely implementation of the project. Specifically, the
application must address all of the following, if applicable:

¢

Status of required permit(s) from the state and or federal agencies. If not applicable,
address why;

The community must have full control of the right-of-way either by having 100
percent of the necessary private property easements signed or a right-of-way docket.
If not applicable, address why;

Water/wastewater treatment agreement; If not applicable, address why.

Identify the ownership of any property needed to complete the project (including
option to purchase); and verify that the project will be shovel-ready;

Additional funding commitment(s);

Status of written permission from railroad(s), county highway commissioners,
IDOT, etc. to proceed with any railroad and/or road borings that are proposed. If
not applicable, address why;

If a "phased project,” indicate the status of all pertinent readiness issues. In
addition, the application should include supporting documentation, as appropriate.

(To be inserted once available)
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JOHN M. SHIMKUS 15 PROFESSIONAL PARK DRIVE
MARVYVILLE, IL 62062

15TH DISTRICT, ILLINOIS (618) 268-7190
2217 RayBURN House OFFicE BUILDING
WASHINGTON, DC 20515 4 CiTy HALL, Room 12
(202) 2255271 Congress of the United States M0 Essr Locust Sacer
ENERGY AND COMMERCE 4 (618) 2628271
ORIt FHouge of Repregentatives
SUBCOMMITTEES: ) 201 NORTH VERMILION STREET, SUITE 325
ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE Miasbmgtun, EQI: 205151315, . - . : DANVILLE, IL 61832
RANKING MEMBER ) ' (217) 446-0664
HEALTH
COMMUNICATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY
May 29, 2020

Ms. Erin Guthrie

Director

Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity
500 East Monroe Street

Springfield, IL 62701-1509

Dear Ms. Guthrie:

I write this letter on behalf of the City of Collinsville’s application to the Illinois Department
of Commerce and Economic Opportunity for Rebuild Illinois Public Infrastructure Program grant
funds to upgrade their bio-solids handling and odor control system.

These much-needed improvements to the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant will allow
Collinsville to produce a Class A bio-solids product that can be distributed to the residents and
farming community to provide nutrients for lawns and crops. The planned upgrades to the treatment
process will reduce operating costs and energy consumption, while the upgrades to the odor control
system will significantly reduce noxious from migrating to the developed area near the facility.
Additionally, the City’s project will put many laborers back to work throughout the construction of
the upgrades, bringing economic relief to our area during this unprecedented time.

I ask that you give full and fair consideration to the City of Collinsville’s application and
look forward to working with you on future projects in the region.

Sincerely,

I HIMKUS
ember of Congress

JMS:mr

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER
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RODNEY DAVIS COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE

13TH DISTRICT, ILLINOIS SUBCOMMITTEE ON

GENERAL FARM COMMODITIES AND
Risk MANAGEMENT

www.rodneydavis.house.gov ’ SUBCOMMITTEE ON
www.facebook.com/reprodneydavis @nngregg ut tbe wnlteh étateg HOHTICU:LLIJJH&::IZE’:RAZP;ISL?E(;ZNOLOGY,
www.twitter.com/rodneydavis ,
FHouse of Representatives COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE
Wagbingtun’ ZB@ 20515_1313 SUBCOMMITTEE ON AVIATION-VICE CHAIR

SUBCOMMITTEE ON
HIGHWAYS AND TRANSIT

SUBCOMMITTEE ON
WATER RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT

June 2, 2020

The Honorable John Miller
City of Collinsville

125 S. Center Street
Collinsville, IL 62234

Dear Mayor Miller,

I am proud to support the City of Collinsville’s application for the Rebuild Illinois Public
Infrastructure program funds for upgrades to the outdated bio-solids handling and odor
control system at the city’s Wastewater Treatment Plant.

The City of Collinsville is in need of upgrades for its 30-year-old bio-solids handling and
odor control system. The city’s planned upgrades will allow them to produce a Class A
bio-solids product and will reduce operating costs and energy consumption, creating a
significant savings for taxpayers. Additionally, improvements to the odor control system
will significantly reduce noxious odors from spreading to nearby residential and business
areas. The City’s $6,910,000 upgrade project will create numerous construction jobs
throughout the 15-month construction phase and will improve development conditions to
the entire area surrounding the Wastewater Treatment Plant.

For these reasons, I am proud to support this application.

Sincerely,

b

Rodney Davis
Member of Congress

2004 Fox Drive 108 EAST MARKET 9 JUNCTION DRIVE, SUITE 8 1740 LongwoORTH House OFFICE BUILDING 104 W. NORTH STREET 243 WATER STREET, SuIte 100
CHAMPAIGN, IL 61820 TAYLORVILLE, IL 62568 GLEN CARBON, IL 62034 WASHINGTON, DC 20515 NormaL, IL 61761 DECATUR, IL 62523
(217) 403-4690 (217) 824-5117 (618) 205-8680 (202) 225-2371 (309) 252-8834 (217) 791-6224

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER
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ILLINOIS STATE SENATE

COMMITTEES:
APPROPRIATIONS 1l
CRIMINAL LAW
JUDICIARY VICE CHAIRPERSON
LABOR
LICENSED ACTIVITIES
VETERANS AFFAIRS

SPRINGFIELD OFFICE:
31 1B CAPITOL BUILDING
SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62706
PHONE: 217.782.5247

DISTRICT OFFICE:
111 N WOOD RIVER AVE.
WOOD RIVER. ILLINOIS 62095
PHONE: 618.251.9840

WWW.SENATORCROWE.COM

RACHELLE CROWE

STATE SENATOR < 56TH DISTRICT

May 27, 2020

The Honorable John Miller
City of Collinsville

125 S. Center Street
Collinsville, IL 62234

RE: City of Collinsville ‘
Support of Wastewater Treatment Plant Bio-solids Handling and Odor Control System
Upgrades '

Dear Mayor Miller,

I am pleased to support the City of Collinsville’s application for Rebuild Illinois Public
Infrastructure Program funding for their Wastewater Treatment Plant Bio-solids Dewatering
Project.

Collinsville is in critical need of financial assistance to upgrade their inefficient, 30-year-old bio-
solids handling and odor control system. The City’s upgrade project will significantly improve
the bio-solids handling process and will eliminate the need for long-term storage and mixing of
liquid bio-solids, thereby reducing operating costs and energy consumption at the Wastewater
Treatment Plant. Nearby residents and businesses will especially appreciate upgrades to the odor
control system, as this has been a source of complaints for many years. Lastly, the City’s project
will help “rebuild” Illinois by bringing numerous construction jobs to the area throughout the
upgrade process.

Please give your full consideration to the City of Collinsville’s application for Rebuild Illinois
Public Infrastructure Program funding for upgrades to their Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Sincerely,

Rachelle Crowe
State Senator — 56™ District

SOYBEAN INKS
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DISTRICT OFFICE SPRINGFIELD OFFICE

2105 VANDALIA ST. 253-S STRATTON

UNIT 16 OFFICE BUILDING

COLLINSVILLE, IL. 62234 SPRINGFIELD, IL

618-365-6650 62706
217-782-8018

KATIE STUART
STATE REPRESENTATIVE ¢ 11271H DISTRICT
May 26, 2020

The Honorable John Miller
Mayor, City of Collinsville
125 S. Center Street
Collinsville, IL 62234

Dear Mayor Miller,

| am writing in support of the City of Collinsville and their application to secure grant funding
through the Rebuild Illinois Public Infrastructure Program to upgrade the bio-solids handling and
odor control system at the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant.

The City’s $6,910,000 upgrade project will eliminate the need for long-term storage and mixing
of liquid bio-solids, while producing a Class A bio-solids product. Due to the reduced electrical
usage and cost savings to the City, there will be no user charge increase associated with this
project. Migrating noxious odor from the Wastewater Treatment Plant has been an issue for
years. Improvements to the odor control system is sure to have a positive impact on economic
development near the facility.

I strongly support the City of Collinsville’s request for Rebuild Illinois Public Infrastructure
Program funding and encourage your favorable consideration.

Sincerely,

vok= -

Katie Stuart
State Representative 112"
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RESOLUTION COMMITTING LOCAL FUNDS

Resolution No.

(The Resolution CANNOT be dated prior to the date of the Public Hearing)

WHEREAS, the City Council (County Board) of the City (County) of
Illinois has taken action to submit a Rebuild Illinois competitive public infrastructure appllcatlon

WHEREAS, receipt of Rebuild Illinois grant assistance is essential to allow the City (County) of
to undertake the project to :
(project description)

WHEREAS, criteria are such that financial participation by the grantee is required in conjunction
with Rebuild Illinois funds, and

WHEREAS, the City (County) of has certain monies allocated
for the above-referenced project with cash on hand, as needed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City (County) of

does hereby commit funds from (account/fund) for use in conjunction with a
Rebuild Illinois Public Infrastructure Grant, such funds to equal % of the estimated
total project cost of $ ,or$

PASSED and APPROVED at its regular (special) City Council (County Board) Meeting, held on
the day of , . (date required)

Mayor (County Board Chairman)

ATTEST:

City Clerk (County Clerk)

(To be inserted once available)
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The City of Collinsville will hold a public hearing on June 9, 2020,
at 6:30pm, in the LaSalle Room located inside the Gateway Convention
Center at One Gateway Drive, Collinsville, Illinois, to provide interested
parties an opportunity to express their views on the proposed Rebuild
Illinois Public Infrastructure Grant (RIPI) project. Persons with disabilities
or non-English speaking persons who wish to attend the public hearing and
need assistance should contact Dennis Kress, Public Works Director, in
writing at 300 Simpson Street, Collinsville, IL 62234 or by calling (618)
346-5211 no later than June 4, 2020. Every effort will be made to make
reasonable accommodations for these persons.

On or about June 30, 2020, the City of Collinsville intends to apply
to the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity for a
grant from the Rebuild Illinois program. This program is funded by state
funds as included in the 2019 Capital Bill. These funds are to be used for a
community development project that will include the following activities:
wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) biosolids system improvements that
will use a dry lime stabilization and pasteurization process, which includes
the purchase and construction of: new mixing and aeration equipment;
pumping equipment; process building; biosolids storage facility with truck
loading bay; dewatering equipment; polymer system; dry lime storage, feed
and reaction equipment; conveyance system; odor control systems;
purchase of a new front end loader, manure spreader and windrow
machine; and associated site, civil, electrical, mechanical, and structural
work. The total amount of Rebuild Illinois funds to be requested is
$1,725,000. The City of Collinsville also proposes to expend $5,175,000
in non-Rebuild Illinois funds on the project. These non-Rebuild Illinois
funds will be derived from a low interest loan through the Illinois
Environmental Protection Agency which will be repaid with revenue
collected from wastewater fees. There will be no user charge increase
associated with this project due to reduced operating costs from the
proposed improvements.

Information related to this project will be available for review prior
to the public hearing as of May 26, 2020, at the office of the Public Works
Director located at 300 Simpson Street, Collinsville, IL 62234 between the
hours of 7:30am to 3:30pm. Interested residents are invited to provide
comments regarding these issues either at the public hearing or by prior
written statement. Written comments should be submitted to Dennis Kress,
Public Works Director, at 300 Simpson Street, Collinsville, IL 62234 no
later than June 4, 2020, in order to ensure placement of such comments in
the official record of the public hearing proceedings. This project will
result in no displacement of any persons or businesses. For additional
information concerning the proposed project, please contact Dennis Kress
at (618) 346-5211, or write to Dennis Kress, Public Works Director, 300
Simpson Street, Collinsville, IL 62234.
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(To be inserted once available)
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[[l] BELLEVILLE NEWS-DEMOCRAT

O’Fallon Progress - Command Post - The Legal Reporter
The Highland News Leader - Highland Advertiser Direct

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLICATION

Account # Ad Number Identification PO Amount Cols Lines

692337 0004653718 | PUBLIC NOTICE The City of Collinsville will holc | public hearing/Rebuild IL Program $266.40 2 45
Attention: STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COLLINSVILLE, CITY OF Ic\:lligggisl\(:gNROE & ST.CLAIR) .SS
125 S CENTER ' : )

COLLINSVILLE, IL 62234

PUBLIC NOTICE

The City of Collinsville will hold a public hearing on June 9, 2020, at
6:30pm, in the LaSalle Room located inside the Gateway Convention Center at
One Gateway Drive, Collinsville, lllinois, to provide interested parties an opportuni-
ty to express their views on the proposed Rebuild Illinois Public Infrastructure
Grant (RIPI) project. Persons with disabilities or non-English speaking persons
who wish to attend the public hearing and need assistance should contact Dennis
Kress, Public Works Director, in writing at 300 Simpson Street, Collinsville, IL
62234 or by calling (618) 346-5211 no later than June 4, 2020. Every effort will
be made to make reasonable accommodations for these persons.

On or about June 30, 2020, the City of Collinsville intends to apply to the Illi-
nois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity for a grant from the Re-
build Illinois program. This program is funded by state funds as included in the
2019 Capital Bill. These funds are to be used for a community development proj-
ect that will include the following activities: wastewater treatment plant (WWTP)
biosolids system improvements that will use a dry lime stabilization and pasteuri-
zation process, which includes the purchase and construction of: new mixing and
aeration equipment; pumping equipment; process building; biosolids storage fa-
cility with truck loading bay; dewatering equipment; polymer system; dry lime
storage, feed and reaction equipment; conveyance system; odor control systems;
purchase of a new front end loader, manure spreader and windrow machine; and
associated site, civil, electrical, mechanical, and structural work. The total
amount of Rebuild lllinois funds to be requested is $1,725,000. The City of
Collinsville also proposes to expend $5,175,000 in non-Rebuild Illinois funds on
the project. These non-Rebuild lllinois funds will be derived from a low interest
loan through the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency which will be repaid
with revenue collected from wastewater fees. There will be no user charge in-
crease associated with this project due to reduced operating costs from the pro-
posed improvements.

Information related to this project will be available for review prior to the
public hearing as of May 26, 2020, at the office of the Public Works Director locat-
ed at 300 Simpson Street, Collinsville, IL 62234 between the hours of 7:30am to
3:30pm. Interested residents are invited to provide comments regarding these is-
sues either at the public hearing or by prior written statement. Written comments
should be submitted to Dennis Kress, Public Works Director, at 300 Simpson
Street, Collinsville, IL 62234 no later than June 4, 2020, in order to ensure place-
ment of such comments in the official record of the public hearing proceedings.
This project will result in no displacement of any persons or businesses. For addi-
tional information concerning the proposed project, please contact Dennis Kress
at (618) 346-5211, or write to Dennis Kress, Public Works Director, 300 Simpson

Street, Collinsville, IL 62234.

This is to certify that the undersigned
Jeffry Couch is the Editor and General
Manager of the Bellevile News-Democrat,
in MADISON, MONROE & ST. CLAIR
COUNTIES, a public and English secular
newspaper of general circulation, which
has been regularly published daily in the
cities of Belleville, Waterloo, Collinsville &
Highland, Counties of Madison, Monroe &
St. Clair, State of lllinois, for at least one
year prior to the first publication of the
notice hereinafter mentioned, and that a
notice of which the annexed is a true
printed copy, has been published in said
newspaper, issues of:

1 Insertions

May 24, 2020

JEFFRY COUCH

Editor and General Manager

Qa/% Ambry

By

His Autl%zed Agent /

Page 37



Certified Minutes of Public Hearing

The minutes of the public hearing must be certified by the chief elected official or other authorized
local officials, such as county clerk, city clerk, etc.

(To be inserted once available)
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Attendance Sheet

A copy of the public hearing attendance sheet must be included as part of the resident participation
documentation. It is suggested that each person attending the public hearing provide his address
and identify his role of participation (e.g., resident, elected or appointed official, municipal
employee, contractor, grant administrator, business owner, etc.)

(To be inserted once available)
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT CERTIFICATIONS

On this (date) of (month), (year), the (title and name of the Chief Elected Official) of (name of the local government)
hereby certifies to the Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity in regard to an application and award of
funds through the Rebuild Illinois Grant that:

1. It confirms that no aspect of the project for assistance has or shall commence prior to the award of funds to the
community and the receipt of an environmental clearance from the Department.

2. It will comply with the Interagency Wetland Policy Act of 1989 including the development of a plan to
minimize adverse impacts on wetlands, or providing written evidence that the proposed project will not have
an adverse impact on a wetland. It confirms that Project must also comply with Federal Wetlands Protection
regulations at 24-CFR 58.5(b)(2) and Executive Order 11990, which may require preparation of an Eight-Step
Wetlands Review.

3. It will comply with the Illinois Endangered Species Protection Act and the Illinois Natural Area Preservation
Act by completing the consultation process with the Endangered Species Consultation Program of the Illinois
Department of Natural Resources, or providing written evidence that the proposed project is exempt.

4. It will identify and document all appropriate permits necessary to the proposed project, including, but not
limited to: building, construction, zoning, subdivision, IEPA and IDOT.

5. No legal actions are underway or being contemplated that would significantly impact the capacity of the (hame
of local government) to effectively administer the program, and to fulfill the requirements of the program.

6. It will coordinate with the County Soil and Water Conservation District regarding standards for surface and
sub-surface (tile) drainage restoration and erosion control in the fulfillment of any project utilizing Rebuild
Illinois funds and involving construction.

7. It is understood that the obligation of the State will cease immediately without penalty of further payment
being required if in any fiscal year the Illinois General Assembly or federal funding source fails to appropriate
or otherwise make available sufficient funds for this agreement.

8. It acknowledges the applicability of Illinois prevailing wage rate requirements to construction projects; a wage
rate determination must be obtained prior to commencement of any construction or equipment installation;
and, it shall discuss these requirements with the contractor.

10. It will comply with OMB 2 CFR 200 and applicable areas of Illinois” Grant Accountability and Transparency
Act (GATA).

11. The area, in whole or in part, in which project activities will take place, IS or IS NOT (circle one) located in a
floodplain.

A FEMA Floodplain map is included in the application (as required) and is located on Page
If yes, does it participate in the National Flood Insurance Program? Yes No

If no, provide an explanation as to why it does not participate:

Signature of Chief Elected Official Date

Not Applicable
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MANDATORY DISCLOSURES

Award applicants and recipients of awards from the State of Illinois (collectively referred to herein as
“Grantee”) must disclose, in a timely manner and in writing to the State awarding agency, all violations of
State or federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the award.
See 30 ILCS 708/40; 44 1ll. Admin Code § 7000.40(b)(4); 2 CFR § 200.113. Failure to make the required
disclosures may result in remedial action.

Please describe all violations of State or federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations
potentially affecting the awarding of a grant to your organization:

Grantee has a continuing duty to disclose to the Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity (the
“Department”) all violations of criminal law involving fraud, bribery or gratuity violations potentially
affecting this grant award.

By signing this document, below, as the duly authorized representative of the Grantee, | hereby certify that:

o All of the statements in this Mandatory Disclosure form are true, complete and accurate to the best
of my knowledge. | am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may
subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001).

e There is no action, suit or proceeding at law or in equity pending, nor to the best of Grantee’s
knowledge, threatened, against or affecting the Grantee, before any court or before any
governmental or administrative agency, which will have a material adverse effect on the
performance required by the grant award.

e Grantee is not currently operating under or subject to any cease and desist order, or subject to any
informal or formal regulatory action, and, to the best of the Grantee’s knowledge, it is not currently
the subject of any investigation by any state or federal regulatory, law enforcement or legal
authority.

o If Grantee becomes the subject of an action, suit or proceeding at law or in equity that would have a
material adverse effect on the performance required by an award, or an investigation by any state or
federal regulatory, law enforcement or legal authority, Grantee shall promptly notify the Department
in writing.

Grantee Organization: City of Collinsville

By:

Signature of Authorized Representative

Printed Name: John Miller

Printed Title: Mayor Date:
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE

Award applicants and recipients of awards from the State of Illinois (collectively referred to herein as
“Grantee”) must disclose in writing to the awarding State agency any actual or potential conflict of interest
that could affect the State award for which the Grantee has applied or has received. See 30 ILCS 708/35; 44
I1l. Admin Code § 7000.40(b)(3); 2 CFR § 200.112. A conflict of interest exists if an organization’s
officers, directors, agents, employees and/or their spouses or immediate family members use their
position(s) for a purpose that is, or gives the appearance of, being motivated by a desire for a personal gain,
financial or nonfinancial, whether direct or indirect, for themselves or others, particularly those with whom
they have a family business or other close associations. In addition, the following conflict of interest
standards apply to governmental and non-governmental entities.

a. Governmental Entity. If the Grantee is a governmental entity, no officer or employee of the
Grantee, member of its governing body or any other public official of the locality in which the
award objectives will be carried out shall participate in any decision relating to a State award which
affects his/her personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership or association in
which he/she is directly or indirectly interested, or which affects the personal interest of a spouse or
immediate family member, or has any financial interest, direct or indirect, in the work to be
performed under the State award.

b. Non-governmental Entity. If the Grantee is a non-governmental entity, no officer or employee of
the Grantee shall participate in any decision relating to a State award which affects his/her personal
interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership or association in which he/she is directly or
indirectly interested, or which affects the personal interest of a spouse or immediate family member,
or has any financial interest, direct or indirect, in the work to be performed under the State award.

The Grantee shall also establish safeguards, evidenced by policies, rules and/or bylaws, to prohibit
employees or officers of Grantee from engaging in actions, which create or which appear to create a conflict
of interest as described herein.

The Grantee has a continuing duty to immediately notify the Department of Commerce and
Economic Opportunity (the “Department”) in writing of any actual or potential conflict of interest, as
well as any actions that create or which appear to create a conflict of interest.

Please describe all current potential conflict(s) of interest, as well as, any actions that create or which

appear to create a conflict of interest related to the State award for which your organization has applied.

There are no conflicts of interest.

If the Grantee provided information above regarding a current potential conflict of interest or any actions
that create or appear to create a conflict of interest, the Grantee must immediately provide documentation to
the applicable Department grant manager to support that the potential conflict of interest was appropriately
handled by the Grantee’s organization. If at any later time, the Grantee becomes aware of any actual or
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potential conflict of interest, the Grantee must notify the Department’s grant manager immediately, and

provide the same type of supporting documentation that describes how the conflict situation was or is being
resolved.

Supporting documentation should include, but is not limited to, the following: the organization’s bylaws; a
list of board members; board meeting minutes; procedures to safeguard against the appearance of personal
gain by the organization’s officers, directors, agents, and family members; procedures detailing the proper
internal controls in place; timesheets documenting time spent on the award; and bid documents supporting
the selection of the contractor involved in the conflict, if applicable.

By signing this document, below, as the duly authorized representative of Grantee, | hereby certify that:

o All of the statements in this Conflict of Interest Disclosure form are true, complete and accurate to
the best of my knowledge. | am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims
may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001).

o If | become aware of any situation that conflicts with any of the representations herein, or that might
indicate a potential conflict of interest or create the appearance of a conflict of interest, | or another

representative from my organization will immediately notify the Department’s grant manager for
this award.

e | have read and | understand the requirements for the Conflict of Interest Disclosure set forth herein,
and I acknowledge that my organization is bound by these requirements.

Grantee Organization: City of Collinsville

By:

Signature of Authorized Representative

Printed Name: John Miller

Printed Title: Mayor Date:
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT

The : County, Illinois, seeks to
support the efforts of the to obtain Rebuild
Illinois grant funds from the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic
Opportunity for (proposed project)

located in

As the chief executives of our respective local governments, we are signing this
agreement to cooperate as much as needed to accomplish these improvements.

The is hereby designated as the lead agency for this
application and will be the applicant for the funds. The will be
liable for all program administration functions should the grant be awarded.

Attest Attest

Date:

NOTE: This general form (or a suitable variation) is to be used by local government
applicants whose proposed project or project area involves more than one jurisdiction.
It is a required part of any "on behalf of" or joint application with appropriate
modifications as may be required to fit local conditions.

Not Applicable
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Current Infrastructure Condition Documentation

(To be inserted once available)
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Documentation of Commitment from
Leverage/Match Sources

(To be inserted once available)
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Copies of Construction Permits

(To be inserted once available)
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THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH, That the Grantor s, ARDELL C. DAVINROY and
EVELYN A. DAVINROY, his wife, A : :

of the . g of ' in the County of Madison

and Stateof Tllinois FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of

One ($1.00) Dollar and other good and valuable considerations §§§§é§§%

in hand paid, CONVEY and WARRANT to THE CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, a
Municipal Corporation,

of the : of : County of Madison and

State of Illinois the following described real estate to-wit:

A tract of land located inthe Fractional N.W. 1/4 of Section
31, T."3N&L R.. 8 W. of the Third Principal Meridian, Madison
County, Illinois, more fully described as follows:

BEGINNING at the Southeast corner of the Fractional N.W. 1/4
of Section 31; thence North along the East line of said Fractional
N.W. 1/4 of Section 31 from said beginning point a distance of
1,185.31 feet; thence West along a line parallel with the South
line of said fractional quarter section a distance of 735.0 feet;
thence South along a line parallel with the East line of said
fractional guarter section a distance of:1,185.31 feet to.a
point on the South line of said fractional quarter section; thence
East along said line a distance of 735.0 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

Containing 20.0 acres, more or less.

Reserving to the Grantor a non-exclusive easement of egress
and- ingress over the South forty (40) feet of the subject property
from the West line thereof to the East line of Simpson Street in
Valley View Park Subdivision. . This easement contemplates a street
right-of-way forty (40) feet in width, but may be increased, if
necessary, to meet the minimum standards set by the City of

. Collingyidle: ; :
SUBJECT to easements, conditions and restrictions of record.

~ = ! e )
2 = 5= DIATE OF ILLINOIS

DE ECTATE
A B 4 AL

M

; : 2= \ ""31‘:»:‘ alke ' el e 5 b

: : : =St ——H Sepir0 [ DEPT.OF|Z 4 6. 01 , F3E

situated in the 28.10680 (RE\Coufity of ; Madison - 3 s
3 /! ; %

Fir SerLOh: \l\

in the State of Illinois hereby releasing and waiving all right under and by virtue of

the Homestead exemption Laws of the State wherein said land is located.

DATED this : ile ' day of ' -~ ﬁ 19 70.

Cctotf (()Mam; 4 (SEA;,{

ARDELL C. DAVINROY

(SEAL)
‘ }SEAL);

‘ (SEAL). SN [
‘Granteeb address: 125 South Center Street .. o im il

-~ Collinsville, Tllinois 62234k,
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STATE OF ILLINOIS

County of Madison

My Commission Expires %‘mﬂ £7 197 v ‘ Notary Public S ::"1_ :\‘.T‘:';i-
B TN > S

STATE OF

County of

My Commission Expires

WARRANTY DEED

TO

"

b 270 B85
I, the undérsigned, a Notary Public,

in and for, and residing in said County, in the State aforesaid,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that * :

ARDELL C. DAVINROY and EVELYN A. DAVINROY,
his wife,

are
personally known to me to be the same personS  whose nameS/ subscribed to the
foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that
they  signed, sealed and delivered the said instrument as their free and
voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set forth, including the release and
waiver of the right of homestead, '
GIVEN under my hand and seal, this 7% day of =

SN
S

e

SS.
. I,

a Notary Public, in and for and residing in said County, in the State aforesaid
DO HEREBY CERTIFY That

personally known to me to be the Same person  whose name  subscribed to
the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowl-

s edged that signed, sealed and delivered the said instrument as free
and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set forth, including the
release and waiver of the right of homestead.

GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal, this day of
A.D. 19
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PRIVATE PROPERTY EASEMENTS

Total Number of Easements Needed
Total Number of Easements Signed

Percentage of Easements Signed*

Name Address

Easement
Signed

Jane Doe — vilyiein)s — 123 Main Street

X

Not Applicable
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Water Purchase or Wastewater Treatment
Agreement

(if applicable)

Not Applicable
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Option to Purchase

(if applicable)

Not Applicable
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RESOLUTION NO. 20-18R

A RESOLUTION WITH REGARD TO FAIR HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES
WITHIN THE CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, the City of Collinsville, Illinois (hereinafter the “City™), finds that the economic
stability of the City directly depends upon stable, integrated, and balanced patterns;

WHEREAS, the City finds that stable and integrated and balanced living patterns are
threatened by discriminatory acts and unlawful housing practices;

WHEREAS, the City finds that discriminatory acts and unlawful housing practices contribute
to the formation and preservation of segregated neighborhoods, thereby affecting the quality of
daily life of the citizens of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City further finds that discriminatory acts and unlawful housing practices
interfere with the achievement of stable, integrated, and balanced living patterns, thereby
depriving the citizens of the benefits of interracial, interreligious, and intercultural association.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
COLLINSVILLE, ILLINCIS as follows:

Section 1. That the findings hereinabove stated are hereby incorporated by reference and
made part of this Resolution.

Section 2. The disctiminatory and unlawful housing practices as defined by the Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) pursuant to the Community Block Grant
Regulations, are hereby specifically against the policy and practices of the City of Collinsville to
participate in or allow the expenditure of government funds for housing projects which are not
consistent with HUD rules and regulations.

PASSED by the City Council and Approved by the Mayor on May 26, 2020.
Ayes: Stehman, Green, Jerome, Hausmann, Miller
Nays: None
Absent: None

Approved: May 26, 2020. @

J ohn‘T\'/Iiller, Mayor
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. W=9 Request for Taxpayer
orm
(Rev. October 2018)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Identification Number and Certification

» Go to www.irs.gov/FormW for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

City of Collinsville

2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

following seven boxes.

D Individual/sole proprietor or D C Corporation |:| S Corporation |:| Partnership

single-member LLC

3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the

D Trust/estate

4 Exemptions (codes apply only to
certain entities, not individuals; see
instructions on page 3):

Exempt payee code (if any) 3

Print or type.

O

Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) »

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that

Exemption from FATCA reporting
code (if any) C

is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.
Other (see instructions) » Government

(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.

125 S. Center St.
6 City, state, and ZIP code

Collinsville, IL 62234

See Specific Instructions on page 3.

Requester’s name and address (optional)

7 List account number(s) here (optional)

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part |, later. For other
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a
TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Social security number

or

Employer identification number ]

3[({7|-|/6|0(0[1|3|9]|8

I  Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. | am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that | am

no longer subiject to backup withholding; and
3.1 am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid,
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part Il, later.

Sign

Signature of
Here

A
U.S. person > <7 L//‘Jrﬂ \ L,k:ﬁ, ’}__fj CJ—’

General Instructions U

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormWW/9.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

* Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

Date > 1 ‘26’ Q \jﬁ?‘_‘t \_;
L T
e Form 10289-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
funds)

* Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)

* Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)

* Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

* Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
* Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tuition)

e Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

e Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident
alien), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding,
later.

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)
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5/26/2020 View Details - Entity Overview | System for Award Management

M
mAM A NEW WAY TO SIGN IN - If you already have
a SAM account, use your SAM email for login.gov.

SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT
Login.gov FAQs

A ALERT: SAM.gov will be down for scheduled maintenance Saturday, 06/13/2020 from 8:00 AM to1:00 PM

A Due toa CAGE service interruption, SAM registrants may encounter an error validating a CAGE Code. If this happens, please try again later.

Entity Dashboard

» Entity Overview

» Entity Registration Entity Overview
» Core Data
r Assertions Entity Registration Summary
+ Reps & Certs Name: CITY OF COLLINSVILLE
» POCs Business Type: US Local Government
Last Updated By: Pamela Reid
» Exclusions Registration Status: Active

. . Activation Date:11/01/2019
» Active Exclusions L.
Expiration Date:10/31/2020

» Inactive Exclusions

» Excluded Family
Members

Exclusion Summary

. . 0
RETURN TO SEARCH Active Exclusion Records? No

GSA

https://sam.gov'SAM/pag es/public/entitySearch/entitySearchEntityOverview.jsf

1/
Page 55

1


http://www.gsa.gov/
http://www.fapiis.gov/
http://www.gsa.gov/iae
http://www.gsa.gov/
http://www.usa.gov/

y’ IRS Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

P.0. Box 2508 In reply refer to: 0752139618
Cincinnati OH 45201 Apr. 23, 2019 LTR 4076C 0
37-6001398 000000 OO
- 00021384
BODC: TE

CITY OF COLLINSVILLE
% TAMARA K AMMANN FINANCE DIRECTOR
. 125 S CENTER ST
E§§ COLLLNSVILLE IL 62236-2707

032763

Federal Identification Number: 37-6001398
Person to Contact: CUSTOMER SERVICE
Toll Free Telephone Number: 1-877-829-5500

Dear Taxpaver:

This responds to your request for information about your federal tax
status. Our records do not specify yvour federal tax status. However,
the following general information about the tax treatment of state
and local governments and affiliated organizations may be of interest
to vou.

GOVERNMENTAL UNITS

Governmental units, such as States and their political subdivisions,
are not generally subject to federal income tax. Political
subdivisions of a State are entities with one or more of the
sovereign powers of the State such as the power to tax. Typically
they include counties or municipalities and their agencies or
departments. Charitable contributions to governmental units are
tax-deductible under section 170(c)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code
if made for a public purpose.

ENTITIES MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 115(1)

An entity that is not a governmental unit but that performs an
essential government function may not be subject to federal income
tax, pursuant to Code section 115(1). The income of such entities is
excluded from the definition of gross income as long as the income
(1) is derived from a public utility or the exercise of an essential
government function, and (2) accrues to a State, a political
subdivision of a State, or the District of Columbia. Contributions
made to entities whose income is excluded income under section 115
may not be tax deductible to contributors.

TAX-EXEMPT CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS

An organization affiliated with a State, county, or municipal
government may qualify for exemption from federal income tax under
section 501(c)(3) of the Code, if (1) it is not an integral part of
the government, and (2) it does not have governmental powers
inconsistent with exemption (such as the power to tax or to exercise
enforcement or regulatory powers). Note that entities mav meet the
requirements of both sections 501(c)(3) and 115 under certain
circumstances, See Revenue Procedure 2003-12, 2003-1 C.B. 316.
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0752139618
Apr. 23, 2019 LTR 4076C 0
37-6001398 000000 00
00021385

CITY OF COLLINSVILLE

% TAMARA K AMMANN FINANCE DIRECTOR
125 S CENTER ST

COLLLNSVILLE IL 62236-2707

Most entities must file a Form 1023, Application for Recognition

of Exemption Under Section 501(c))(3) of the Internal Revenue Code,
to request a determination that the organization is exempt from
federal income tax under 501(c)(3) of the Code and that charitable
contributions are tax deductible to contributors under section
170Cc)(2). In addition, private foundations and other persons
sometimes want assurance that their grants or contributions are made
to a governmental unit or a public charity. Generally, grantors and
contributors mayv rely on the status of governmental units based on
State or local law. Form 1023 and Publication 4220, Applying for
501C(c)(3) Tax-Exempt Status, are available online at www.irs.gov/eo.

We hope this general information will be of assistance to you. This
letter, however, does not determine that vou have any particular
tax status. If vou are unsure of yvour status as a governmental unit
or state institution whose income is excluded under section 115(1)
vou may seek a private letter ruling by following the procedures
specified in Revenue Procedure 2007-1, 2007-1 I.R.B. 1 (updated
annually).

If vou have anyv questions, please call us at the telephone number
shown in the heading of this letter.
Sincerely vours,

Teri M. Johnson
Operations Manager, AM Ops. 3
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125 S. Center St. Collinsville, IL 62234
(618) 346-5200
www.collinsvilleil.org

June 25, 2019

To the Citizens of the City of Collinsville:

Pursuant to City policy and in conformation with State law, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) of the City of Collinsville, lllinois (the City), for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2018, is hereby
transmitted. This report was prepared in accordance with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) and audited by an independent firm of licensed certified public account-
ants.

This report is the City management’s representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently,
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all information presented in
this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City has
established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to protect the City’s assets from
loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient, reliable information for the preparation of the City’s finan-
cial statements in conformance with GAAP. This internal control structure is designed to provide a reason-
able, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance rec-
ognizes that:

1. The cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
2. The valuation of costs and benefits require estimates and judgments by management.

As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete
and reliable in all material respects.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP, a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. The goal of this independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that
the basic financial statements of the City for the year ended December 31, 2018, are free of material mis-
statement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the basic financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. The
independent auditors concluded, based upon their audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unmodified opinion that the City’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 are fairly
presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component
of the financial section of this report.
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Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America require that management provide
a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the
independent auditor’s report.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presenta-
tion, including all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all mate-
rial aspects, that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of
operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its various funds, and that all disclosures nec-
essary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City’s financial activity have been
included.

PROFILE OF THE CITY

The City is located approximately twelve miles east of downtown St. Louis, Missouri. The three Collins
brothers (for whom the City was named) arrived in the area in 1817. A village was platted in 1837 and a
village charter was adopted in 1850. In 1872, the City of Collinsville was incorporated.

Through its history, the City has been the site of zinc works, lead works, coal mines, knitting mill, cow bell
factory, and canning plants. The bulk of these industries were gone by the 1950’s. Collinsville is now the
sixth-largest Metro East City with a 2010 census population of 25,579 and an estimated 2017 population

(based on City building permit data) of 25,838.

Besides being a residential community, the City has a hospitality district with over 1,300 hotel/ motel rooms
and the Gateway Convention Center (Southwestern lllinois’ largest convention and visitor’s center). The
City is also home to Ameren lllinois Corporate Headquarters, the District 11 lllinois State Police, Illinois De-
partment of Transportation headquarters, Cahokia Mounds State Historic Site, and Fairmount Park Race-
track.

Pursuant to a special census, the City was certified by the State of lllinois as a home rule unit, as of August
24, 2005, under Section 6 of Article VII of the 1970 lllinois Constitution. Approximately 90% of the City’s
2018 Equalized Assessed Valuation is in Madison County, with the remainder in St. Clair County. The City
encompasses nearly ten square miles and is bordered by a number of unincorporated areas. Incorporated
areas that border the City include the Village of Maryville on the north and the Village of Caseyville on the
south.

The City is a municipality operating under the City Council-Manager form of government. The adoption of
this form of government was approved by a public referendum in 1991. The City Council is the governing
legislative and policy making body for the City and consists of a Mayor and four Council members, all elect-
ed at large, with the Mayor voting on all issues and without veto power. The City Council has purely legisla-
tive powers, through which it establishes policy and makes all laws, rules, and regulations. The City Manag-
er, City Clerk, Corporate Counsel, City Attorney, and City Treasurer are appointed by the Mayor with the
approval of the City Council. The City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer for the City and is responsible
for implementing the legislation and policies adopted by the City Council as well as all aspects of City opera-
tions.
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The City provides a full range of municipal services, including police, fire, emergency medical services, pub-
lic works (streets, sanitary sewer, and water), community development, community services, park and rec-
reation, convention center, and general administration. The financial statements of the City include the
financial activities of the City and any component units, entities which are financially accountable to the
City. The City does not currently have any component units.

The budget serves as a complete business plan for the City that includes the financial and operational plans
for the following year. All departments of the City are required to submit requests for appropriation to the
City Manager who uses these requests as a starting point for development of a proposed budget. The Di-
rector of Finance presents to the City Manager estimates detailing the various revenues, grants, bond pro-
ceeds, and other funding sources that are anticipated. The budget is prepared on a fund basis and is bro-
ken down further by department, programs within each department, then objects of expenditure (i.e.; sala-
ry, benefits, contractual services, commodities, debt service, capital) within programs, and finally line items
within the objects. After consultation with the department heads and Finance Director, the City Manager
presents a proposed budget to the Mayor and City Council. The Mayor and City Council hold workshops
and a public hearing prior to adopting the budget by December 31, Department heads, with the City
Manager’s approval, may transfer funds within departmental programs. The legal level of control of the
City Council extends to the program level. The City Manager is authorized to move funds within a depart-
ment between programs up to $10,000. The City Council must authorize transfers between departments or
any increase in a fund’s budget. Budget-to-actual comparisons for the General Fund and Major Special
Revenue Funds are provided in this report as required supplemental information. Budget-to-actual com-
parisons for the non-major funds are provided in this report as other supplemental information. The
2018/2019 biennial budget document may be found on the City’s website at
http://www.collinsvilleil.org/docs/finance/2018-2019%20BUDGET.pdf

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates:

Local Economy. The recession that struck the nation’s economy full-force in the fall of 2008 was unlike any
previous adjustment or correction experienced in the past. The recession was spurred by a collapse in the
credit and housing markets, asset liquidation by manufacturers and retailers, and falling consumption and
purchasing by consumers. The regional economy is now in full recovery mode and is improving at a solid
pace. The Equalized Assessed Value (EAV) of the City’s real estate increased by $32,295,479 (3.0%) while
the City’s sales tax revenues increased by $533,761 (4.4%), both of these increases are dramatic improve-
ments for the City’s market and economy. It should also be noted that according to statistics prepared by
the lllinois Department of Employment Security the City’s unemployment rate hovers around 4.2% which is
very close to being considered “full employment”.

Long-term Financial Planning. Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund for 2018 was 40.7% of total
General Fund revenues and exceeded the policy guidelines set by the City Council for budgetary and plan-
ning purposes of between 15%-20% of total General Fund revenues. The City includes five-year revenue,
expense/expenditure, and fund balance projections in its budget in an effort to facilitate long-term financial
planning and anticipate future problems. Staff uses the five-year projections to plan operational changes
and capital projects as well as analyze the City’s ability to react to its changing environment. This increase in
unassigned fund balance allows the City to fund additional Capital Improvement Projects and address oper-
ational issues in a financially responsible manner that does not require increasing the City’s property tax

il
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levy above the corresponding increase correlated to the increase in the EAV. The long term financial strate-
gy of the City Council is to maintain a low and competitive property tax levy while leveraging its locational
strength to grow other revenue sources related to hospitality and retail sales.

Major Initiatives. The City is committed to several major initiatives that are anticipated to result in positive
secondary economic and financial impacts for the City. These efforts are focused on serving the overall City
Business Plan through focusing on two guiding principles; 1) increasing operational efficiency, and 2)
providing a positive financial impact. These major initiatives include the following:

1. New Water Treatment Plant Construction: The City’s water treatment plant is an aging facility orig-
inally constructed in 1958 and reaching its production capacity. Construction has begun on the $18
million new water treatment that is being financed with a low-interest EPA loan. This project was
completed in April 2019 with the new plant being placed into service.

2. Gateway Convention Center: The City recently merged the Gateway Convention Center and as-
sumed the responsibility for both ownership and operations. This decision was a pure business de-
cision as the Gateway Center provided approximately $36 million in annual economic impacts to
the City in 2016. This merger provides a positive impact to the City’s financial fund balance by
$2,946,627. There was approximately $21 million of physical assets less accumulated depreciation
of $12 million resulting in a net addition of $9 million. With the $9 million of assets and $3 million
in fund balance offset by the approximate $4 million in debt was a positive impact to the City of $8
million. This action also provides more efficient operations of the Gateway Center through consoli-
dation of employment positions. It is estimated that this consolidation will save approximately
$400,000 annually on the operational costs for the Gateway Center thereby allowing these savings
to be reinvested into the capital of the Gateway Center to ensure and grow its position in the mar-
ket.

3. Parks and Recreation Development: The City received contributed assets from the Collinsville Area
Recreation District and as a consequence was required to create a Parks and Recreation Depart-
ment for the first time since 1991. Two items of note make a direct positive impact to the City’s fi-
nancial position:

a. Splash City Water Park and Park Equipment: This net asset is valued (Asset Cost less Accu-
mulated Depreciation) at $5.2 million and the ownership was transferred to the City absent
any associated debt. This action was a net benefit to the financial position of the City of the
full appraised value of the asset; and

b. Willoughby Heritage Farm: This net asset is valued at $1.5 million and the ownership was
transferred to the City absent any associated debt. This action was a net benefit to the fi-
nancial position of the City of the full appraised value of the asset.

4. Strategic Financial Actions: Given the strategic economic development strategy focused in tourism
and hospitality with the acquisition of the Gateway Convention Center and the creation of a Parks
and Recreation Department, the following financial strategies were adopted by the City Council in
an effort to maintain the City’s low property tax level:

a. Hotel Occupancy Tax: The City raised the Hotel Occupancy Tax from 7% to 9% to aid in fi-
nancing tourism and hospitality efforts. This increase is projected to yield an additional
$600,000 in revenues; and
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b. Food and Beverage Tax: This tax was limited to a defined hospitality district located along
SR 157 (North Bluff Road) and included Eastport Business Park and Collinsville Crossing.
The City extended this 1% tax to the entirety of the City to aid in funding tourism and hospi-
tality efforts. This increase is projected to yield an additional $300,000 in revenues.

5. Street and Sidewalk Investment: The City is committed to substantial investments into the com-
plete transportation system through investing $750,000 in local road improvements and $200,000
into the sidewalk network.

6. Utility System Investment: The City is committed to maintaining and expanding its utility system to
serve current customers as well as to attract new customers (economic development) through in-
vesting approximately $1.5 million per year over the next 6 years in the sewer and water systems.

7. Development of a consolidated Public Works Facility: The City is committed to developing consoli-
dated Public Works Facility that will consolidate satellite operations and increase efficiencies for
both work and aged facilities. The City acquired approximately 19 acres for this project in 2017
with the property being strategically located in the center of the City. Full efforts for this project are
expected to start in 2019 and finish in 2020.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers' Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certifi-
cate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report issued for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. This is the ninth year that the City has received
this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Re-
porting by the Government Finance Officers’ Association (GFOA), a governmental unit must publish an easi-
ly readable and efficiently organized CAFR, the contents of which conform to program standards. Such re-
ports must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a
period of one year only. We believe this report conforms to the Certificate of Achievement program re-
guirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA for its determination.

This report could not have been completed without the assistance of the entire staff of the various depart-
ments of the City. Special thanks go to the Finance Department for its contributions. We would also like to
acknowledge our auditors, Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP, for their assistance in compiling this report.
Our sincere gratitude is extended to the Mayor and the City Council for their interest and support in plan-
ning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

W ol

Mitchell Bair Pamela Reid, CPA
City Manager Director of Finance
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Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Consultants and Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

June 25, 2019

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the CITY OF COL-
LINSVILLE, ILLINOIS (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in ac-
cordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We con-
ducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amer-
ica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material mis-
statement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the as-

[J 15450 South Outer Forty Road, Suite 135, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-2066, 636-532-9525, Fax 636-532-9055
(] 1000 Washington Square, P. O. Box 1457, Washington, Missouri 63090-8457, 636-239-4785, Fax 636-239-5448
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sessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the ap-
propriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the re-
spective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of December 31, 2018, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in ac-
cordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplemental Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and required supplemental information, as listed in the table of contents, be pre-
sented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate op-
erational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplemental information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited proce-
dures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collec-
tively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The other supplemental information and introduc-
tory and statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The other supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and re-
lates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial state-
ments. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the finan-
cial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing

Page 75



standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplemental
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 25, 2019
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compli-
ance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.

The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial report-
ing and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Michael D. Williams, CPA
Chesterfield, Missouri
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As management of the City of Collinsville, Illinois (the City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In the government-wide financial statements, the assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City
exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources for the most recent fiscal year by $29,340,457
(net position).

The City’s total net position increased by $15,439,370.

At the end of 2018, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $10,307,198 or 37.6% of total
General Fund expenditures for the year.

Net position of the City’s governmental activities increased $14,792,528 and the business-type activities
increased by $646,842.

The City merged with the Collinsville Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium and Office Building Au-
thority (the Authority) resulting in a special item of $7,868,952 that increased the net position as of De-
cember 31, 2017, which included total assets of $13,075,885 and liabilities of $5,206,933. The merger
resulted in a $2,946,627 increase in the General Fund.

The City’s total debt increased by $9,997,971. The increase resulted from the merger of the Authority
of $4,714,789. An additional IEPA Loan of $8,296,929 offset by the reduction from the City debt pay-
ments.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. There are three components to the basic statements:

1.

Government-wide financial statements

2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements

This report also contains required supplemental information and other supplemental information in addition to
the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The government-wide financial statements exclude
fiduciary fund activities.
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The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is im-
proving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows for future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
accrued vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to re-
cover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public works, health and sanita-
tion, community and economic development, community services, and parks and recreation. The business-type
activities include water and sewer.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segre-
gated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund account-
ing to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City
can be divided into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essential functions reported as governmen-
tal activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable re-
sources, as well as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better under-
stand the long-term impact of the City’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental funds balance
sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and the government-wide governmental
activities.

The City maintains thirteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the govern-
mental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances for four major funds: General Fund, Tax Increment Financing Fund, Collinsville Crossings Fund,
and Capital Projects Fund. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation called “Other Governmental Funds”. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmen-

Page 78



tal funds is provided in the form of combining schedules in the other supplemental information section of this
report.

The City adopts an annual budget for all governmental funds. Budgetary comparison schedules for the major
funds have been provided to demonstrate legal compliance with the adopted budget.

Proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions and the same type of information
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses an enterprise
fund to account for its water and sewer operations.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the re-
sources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary
funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full un-
derstanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required supplemental information. This MD&A, budgetary comparison schedule and notes to the schedule
for the General Fund, Tax Increment Financing Fund, and Collinsville Crossings Fund, and information con-
cerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees represent fi-
nancial information required by GASB to be presented. Such information provides users of this report with ad-
ditional data that supplements the government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and notes to
the financial statements.

Other supplemental information. This part of the annual report includes financial information such as com-
bining statements for the nonmajor governmental funds and budgetary comparison schedules.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In
the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of re-
sources by $29,340,457 at December 31, 2018.

By far the largest portion of the City’s net position (243.3%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings and improvements, equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; conse-
quentially, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets
is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A portion of the City’s net position (28.9%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how

it may be used. Unrestricted net position may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in two of the three categories of
net position for its governmental activities and all three categories of net position for its business-type activities.
The negative amount of unrestricted net position in governmental activities is due to outstanding long-term debt
not used for capital assets.

The condensed statement of net position is as follows:

December 31

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current and other assets $26,886,240 23,843,942 7,192,473 6,932,562 34,078,713 30,776,504
Capital assets, net 50,701,068 33,615,406 49,172,269 41,995,832 99,873,337 75,611,238
Total Assets 77,587,308 57,459,348 56,364,742 48,928,394 133,952,050 106,387,742
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 12,298,044 2,674,732 2,232,133 1,181,227 14,530,177 3,855,959
LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities 79,212,983 55,133,996 27,529,245 18,769,677 106,742,228 73,903,673
Other liabilities 4,267,049 3,319,922 3,129,476 3,309,759 7,396,525 6,629,681
Total Liabilities 83,480,032 58,453,918 30,658,721 22,079,436 114,138,753 80,533,354
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 4,149,586 4,688,109 853,431 1,332,345 5,003,017 6,020,454
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital
assets 45,996,059 32,815,136 24,784,354 24,831,510 70,780,413 57,646,646
Restricted 8,471,101 6,918,719 - - 8,471,101 6,918,719
Unrestricted (52,211,426) (42,741,802) 2,300,369 1,866,330 (49,911,057) (40,875,472)
Total Net Position ~ $§ 2,255,734 (3,007,947) 27,084,723 26,697,840 29,340,457 23,689,893

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $14,792,528. Included
in that increase is a $7,868,952 increase related to the merger with the Authority. Revenues increased by
$10,934,027 from 2017 to 2018 while expenses increased by $5,322,178. The increase in revenue is mainly
attributed to the increase in capital grants and contributions from the transfer of operations for the Collinsville
Area Recreation District and increase in charges of services from the merger with the Authority. The increase
in expenses primarily reflects increased parks and recreation and community services expenses for the conven-

tion center.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $646,842. Water and
sewer fees are adjusted each year to insure that revenues keep up with inflation as expenses do.

The condensed statement of activities is as follows:
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REVENUES
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grants and
contributions
General revenues:
Property tax
Intergovernmental
Utility tax
Franchise fees
Other taxes
Investment income
Gain on sale of assets
Other
Total Revenues

EXPENSES
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and sanitation
Community/economic
development

Community services
Parks and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Water and sewer

Total Expenses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)
BEFORE SPECIAL ITEM
AND TRANSFERS

SPECIAL ITEM

TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN NET POSI-
TION

NET POSITION, JANUARY 1
RESTATEMENT

NET POSITION, JANUARY 1,
AS RESTATED

NET POSITION, DECEM-
BER 31

December 31

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
$ 7,573,196 5,899,434 9,142,518 8,727,973 16,715,714 14,627,407
247,859 114,747 - - 247,859 114,747
8,568,108 354,092 127,750 902,000 8,695,858 1,256,092
5,972,089 5,386,785 - - 5,972,089 5,386,785
17,441,008 17,393,678 - - 17,441,008 17,393,678
1,317,444 1,203,867 - - 1,317,444 1,203,867
351,517 365,090 - - 351,517 365,090
187,488 162,687 - - 187,488 162,687
270,344 110,980 121,902 39,324 392,246 150,304
44,625 44,855 - 15,000 44,625 59,855
193,013 196,449 - - 193,013 196,449
42,166,691 31,232,664 9,392,170 9,684,297 51,558,861 40,916,961
3,873,694 4,496,437 - - 3,873,694 4,496,437
16,913,272 15,671,649 - - 16,913,272 15,671,649
4,753,374 4,624,721 - - 4,753,374 4,624,721
1,503,961 1,473,222 - - 1,503,961 1,473,222
2,600,125 2,431,943 - - 2,600,125 2,431,943
3,501,338 673,129 - - 3,501,338 673,129
1,523,332 3,305 - - 1,523,332 3,305
1,537,425 1,509,937 - - 1,537,425 1,509,937
- - 7,781,922 7,755,922 7,781,922 7,755,922
36,206,521 30,884,343 7,781,922 7,755,922 43,988,443 38,640,265
5,960,170 348,321 1,610,248 1,928,375 7,570,418 2,276,696

7,868,952 - - - 7,868,952 -

963,406 931,777 (963,406) (931,777) - -
14,792,528 1,280,098 646,842 996,598 15,439,370 2,276,696
(3,007,947) (4,288,045) 26,697,840 25,701,242 23,689,893 21,413,197

(9,528,847) - (259,959) - (9,788,806) -
(12,536,794) (4,288,045) 26,437,881 25,701,242 13,901,087 21,413,197
$ 2,255,734 (3,007,947) 27,084,723 26,697,840 29,340,457 23,689,893
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FUNDS FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term in-
flows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financ-
ing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of 2018, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $21,179,538, an
increase of $2,979,189 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 2.6% of this total amount ($556,393)
constitutes nonspendable fund balance, which is inventory, deposits, and prepaid items. Approximately 39.0%
of this total amount ($8,251,420) constitutes restricted fund balance, which is restricted primarily for economic
development, motor fuel tax, or police purposes. Approximately 4.1% of this total amount ($869,692) consti-
tutes committed fund balance, which is earmarked by the City Council for future capital projects in various spe-
cial revenue and capital projects funds. Approximately 5.6% of this total amount ($1,195,360) constitutes as-
signed fund balance, which has been authorized by the City Council to be spent during the subsequent fiscal
year. Approximately 48.7% of this total amount ($10,306,673) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is
available for spending at the City’s discretion.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned
fund balance of the General Fund was $10,307,198 while total fund balance was $12,233,371. As a measure of
the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance
to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 37.6% of total General Fund expenditures,
while total fund balance represents 44.6% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased by $2,036,474 during the current fiscal year. The in-
crease in the fund balance is mainly attributed to the merger for the Gateway convention Center as a special
item amounting to $2,946,627, an increase in charges for services primarily related to the income from the
convention center. General fund expense reflects increases primarily related to parks and recreations and com-
munity services relating to the expenditures of managing the recently added convention center and additional
parks for the current fiscal year.

The Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund is a major special revenue fund of the City. Its resources are to be
used entirely for leveraging development within the boundaries of the City’s four tax increment financing dis-
tricts. At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the TIF Fund was $2,371,577, which is an in-
crease of $363,849 compared to 2017. Significant capital projects funded by the TIF during 2018 included:
Mill and Repaving Projects and Church Street Water Main Replacement.

The Collinsville Crossings Fund is a major special revenue fund of the City. Its resources are to be used for
debt service payments on the 2014 general obligation bonds (originally Series 2007A) related to the Collinsville
Crossings development and the debt service payments on the 2007 revenue bonds related to the Collinsville
Crossings development. At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the Collinsville Crossings
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Fund was $3,067,848, which is an increase of $292,057 compared to 2017. Sales tax generated in the develop-
ment is more than the required debt service payments.

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and certain
debt related to capital assets. At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the Capital Projects Fund
was $1,201,630, which is a decrease of $485,657. The decrease is due to a planned use of fund balance to pur-
chase various equipment and infrastructure projects.

Proprietary fund. The City’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the govern-
ment-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounted to $2,300,369 increase
of $434,039 or 23.6%. No significant change in the net investment in capital assets component of net position.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The 2018 expenditure budget for the City’s General Fund represents an original budget of $22,368,690 in-
creased by $2,420,052 to $24,788,742, an adjustment of approximately 10.8%. Actual, budget basis expendi-
tures in the General Fund were $23,656,196 which is $1,132,546 less than the final, amended budgeted. The
changes during the year were as follows:

e Increase of $2,512,653 for expenditures for managing the convention center which was a merger in
2018 with the Authority. However, this increase was offset by a decrease in City Council Program of
$1,045,650 of cost for the payments to the Authority for apportion of the taxes allocated to pay the debt
of the convention center. Net increase to the City of $1,467,003.

e Increase of $213,234 in the Human Resources Program of the Administration Department for additional
legal services related to union contracts and hiring personnel.

e Increase of $446,204 in the Parks and Recreation Program for the following:

o $205,309 for maintenance activities and a significant workers’ compensation related accident result-
ing in claims to worker’s compensation that the City will attempt recovery form the accident suspect.

o $178,685 for expenditures for the Willoughby Farm which was contributed to the City in 2018 from
the Collinsville Area Recreation District.

o $62,210 for expenditures for the Aquatic Center which was contributed to the City in 2018 from the
Collinsville Area Recreation District.

e Increase of $204,825 in the Fire Program primarily for workers’ compensation payments.

e Increase of $41,245 in Operating Program related to janitorial services which was budgeted to be
brought in-house but was delayed.

e Increase of $31,274 in the Finance Program for additional accounting services and professional services
for support related to the expanded responsibilities related to the additional facilities.

e Increase of $16,267 in Economic Development Program for the expanding into the Great River &
Routes Tourism Bureau.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31,
2018, amounts to $99,873,337, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, buildings and improvements, land improvements, equipment, vehicles, and infrastruc-
ture. The total increase in capital assets for the current year was $24,262,099 ($17,085,662 increase for gov-
ernmental activities and $7,176,437 increase for business-type activities). The increase in the governmental ac-
tivities was largely due to the merger with the Authority resulting in net capital asset increase of $9,637,117 and

the contributed assets of $7,921,984 from the Collinsville Area Recreation District.

The City’s capital assets, net of depreciation, are as follows:

Land

Construction in
progress

Buildings and im-
provements

Land improvements

Equipment

Vehicles

Infrastructure

Total Capital
Assets, Net

December 31
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
$ 6,081,542 4,161,749 451,329 451,329 6,532,871 4,613,078
2,190,327 71,156 18,293,080 10,073,595 20,483,407 10,144,751
17,515,023 4,700,014 21,687,768 22,442,010 39,202,791 27,142,024
270,024 - - - 270,024 -
2,471,072 706,487 257,728 316,123 2,728,800 1,022,610
2,029,617 2,013,129 266,652 243,879 2,296,269 2,257,008
20,143,463 21,962,871 8,215,712 8,468,896 28,359,175 30,431,767
$50,701,068 33,615,406 49,172,269 41,995,832 99,873,337 75,611,238

For government-wide financial presentation, all depreciable capital assets were depreciated from acquisition

date to the end of 2018. Fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as expenditures.

Additional information for capital assets can be found in Note C in the notes to the financial statements.

Long-term Debt

At the end of 2018, the City had total long-term debt obligations for governmental and business-type activities

in the amount of $59,272,455 compared to $49,112,229 at the end of 2017. During 2018, the City made sched-
uled debt service payments and issued new debt of $8,296,929 for the construction of the new water plant. The
City also acquired the convention center revenue bonds of $4,714,789 as part of the merger with the Authority.

The general obligation bonds included on the following schedule are covered by insurance policies insuring the
payment of principal and interest when due. Consequently, they have been assigned a rating of “Aaa” by
Moody’s Investor Services, Inc. General obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City.

Page 84



Taxable GO Bonds:
Series 2009
Series 2017B
Non-taxable GO Bonds:
Series 2017A
Bond premium
GO Refunding Bonds:
Series 2012
Bond premium
GO Refunding Bonds:
Series 2013A
Bond premium
GO Refunding Bonds:
Series 2014
Bond premium
LIST Revenue Bonds:
Series 2007
Revenue Bonds:
Series 2003
Series 2004
Capital leases
Note payable
IEPA loan
Compensated absences

Total Long-
term Debt

December 31

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

$ - 170,000 - - - 170,000
1,850,000 1,885,000 - - 1,850,000 1,885,000
330,000 430,000 - - 330,000 430,000
8,036 10,715 - - 8,036 10,715
- - 9,315,000 9,380,000 9,315,000 9,380,000
- - 168,232 201,038 168,232 201,038
- - 1,225,000 2,290,000 1,225,000 2,290,000
- - 69,285 118,193 69,285 118,193
4,910,000 5,345,000 - - 4,910,000 5,345,000
44,461 49,692 - - 44,461 49,692
19,820,000 20,015,000 - - 19,820,000 20,015,000

1,987,847 - - - 1,987,847 -

2,046,942 - - - 2,046,942 -
670,220 800,270 - 2,901 670,220 803,171
473,914 520,086 - - 473,914 520,086
- - 14,112,221 5,815,292 14,112,221 5,815,292
1,611,589 1,438,289 629,708 640,753 2,241,297 2,079,042
$33,753,009 30,664,052 25,519,446 18,448,177 59,272,455 49,112,229

Additional information regarding the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note E in the notes to the financial

statements.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be ad-
dressed to the City of Collinsville, Director of Finance, 125 South Center Street, Collinsville, IL 62234.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,480,261 1,358,849 6,839,110
Investments 11,997,810 2,981,656 14,979,466
Receivables, net:
Property tax 731,106 - 731,106
Intergovernmental 4,636,033 - 4,636,033
Services 797,087 1,985,716 2,782,803
Other 483,854 - 483,854
Inventory 30,200 228,652 258,852
Deposits 520,086 - 520,086
Prepaid items 6,107 - 6,107
Restricted cash 860,722 637,600 1,498,322
Insurance trust 1,342,974 - 1,342,974
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 8,271,869 18,744,409 27,016,278
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 42,429,199 30,427,860 72,857,059
Total Assets 77,587,308 56,364,742 133,952,050
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding 363,276 501,823 865,099
Deferred amounts related to pensions 11,934,768 1,730,310 13,665,078
Total Deferred Outflows Of Resources 12,298,044 2,232,133 14,530,177
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 2,198,799 2,203,655 4,402,454
Accrued payroll and benefits 554,438 99,348 653,786
Other payables 68,805 - 68,805
Customer deposits payable 357,024 637,600 994,624
Unearned revenue 678,486 - 678,486
Accrued interest payable 409,497 188,873 598,370
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 2,884,279 2,076,057 4,960,336
Due in more than one year 30,868,730 23,443,389 54,312,119
Due in more than one year - total OPEB liability 10,331,686 547,867 10,879,553
Due in more than one year - net pension liability 35,128,288 1,461,932 36,590,220
Total Liabilities 83,480,032 30,658,721 114,138,753
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 3,318,609 836,223 4,154,832
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 830,977 17,208 848,185
Total Deferred Inflows Of Resources 4,149,586 853,431 5,003,017
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 45,996,059 24,784,354 70,780,413
Restricted for:
Economic development 5,562,773 - 5,562,773
Restricted tax revenues 2,175,094 - 2,175,094
Forfeitures and seizures 733,234 - 733,234
Unrestricted (52,211,426) 2,300,369 (49,911,057)
Total Net Position $ 2,255,734 27,084,723 29,340,457
See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

Program Revenues

Net Revenues (Expenses) And
Changes In Net Position

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Charges Operating Capital
For Grants And Grants And Governmental Business-type
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary Government
Governmental activities:
General government $ 3,873,694 566,258 33,700 86,731 (3,187,005) - (3,187,005)
Public safety 16,913,272 1,771,754 176,977 - (14,964,541) - (14,964,541)
Public works 4,753,374 4,278 11,464 339,926 (4,397,706) - (4,397,706)
Health and sanitation 1,503,961 1,515,269 - - 11,308 - 11,308
Community/economic development 2,600,125 2,175,473 - 219,467 (205,185) - (205,185)
Community services 3,501,338 1,365,832 25,718 - (2,109,788) - (2,109,788)
Parks and recreation 1,523,332 174,332 - 7,921,984 6,572,984 - 6,572,984
Interest on long-term debt 1,537,425 - - - (1,537,425) - (1,537,425)
Total Governmental Activities 36,206,521 7,573,196 247,859 8,568,108 (19,817,358) - (19,817,358)
Business-type activities:
Water and sewer 7,781,922 9,142,518 - 127,750 - 1,488,346 1,488,346
Total Primary Government $ 43,988,443 16,715,714 247,859 8,695,858 (19,817,358) 1,488,346 (18,329,012)
General Revenues
Property tax 5,972,089 - 5,972,089
Intergovernmental:
Sales and use tax 9,284,917 - 9,284,917
Home rule sales tax 4,144,382 - 4,144,382
State income tax 2,453,701 - 2,453,701
Telecommunications tax 636,417 - 636,417
Motor fuel tax 654,711 - 654,711
Replacement tax 266,880 - 266,880
Utility tax 1,317,444 - 1,317,444
Franchise fees 351,517 - 351,517
Other taxes 187,488 - 187,488
Investment income 270,344 121,902 392,246
Gain on sale of capital assets 44,625 - 44,625
Other 193,013 - 193,013
Special item - merger 7,868,952 - 7,868,952
Transfers 963,406 (963,406) -
Total General Revenues, Special Item, And Transfers 34,609,886 (841,504) 33,768,382
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 14,792,528 646,842 15,439,370
NET POSITION, JANUARY 1, AS RESTATED (12,536,794) 26,437,881 13,901,087
NET POSITION, DECEMBER 31 $ 2,255,734 27,084,723 29,340,457
See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2018
Tax
Increment  Collinsville Capital Other Total
General Financing Crossings Projects Governmental  Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,352,221 1,099,224 - 158,509 870,307 5,480,261
Investments 6,239,401 1,157,352 2,695,587 662,327 1,243,143 11,997,810
Receivables, net:
Property tax 571,725 159,381 - - - 731,106
Intergovernmental 3,780,794 7,971 519,435 - 327,833 4,636,033
Services 797,087 - - - - 797,087
Other 365,634 3,158 - 115,062 - 483,854
Due from other funds 53,861 - - - - 53,861
Inventory 30,200 - - - - 30,200
Deposits - - - 520,086 - 520,086
Prepaid items 6,107 - - - - 6,107
Restricted cash 860,722 - - - - 860,722
Total Assets $ 16,057,752 2,427,086 3,215,022 1,455,984 2,441,283 25,597,127
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 539,907 15,608 - 254,354 39,678 849,547
Accrued payroll and benefits 544,412 10,026 - - - 554,438
Other payables 68,805 - - - - 68,805
Customer deposits payable 357,024 - - - - 357,024
Unearned revenue 678,486 - - - - 678,486
Due to other funds - - 53,701 - 160 53,861
Total Liabilities 2,188,634 25,634 53,701 254,354 39,838 2,562,161
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues:
Ambulance fees 328,294 - - - - 328,294
Intergovernmental revenues 1,289,230 2,737 93,473 - 96,333 1,481,773
Property tax 18,223 27,138 - - - 45,361
Total Deferred Inflows Of Resources 1,635,747 29,875 93,473 - 96,333 1,855,428
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Inventory 30,200 - - - - 30,200
Deposits - - - 520,086 - 520,086
Prepaid items 6,107 - - - - 6,107
Restricted for:
Forfeiture funds 686,756 - - - - 686,756
Police inventory savings 7,750 - - - - 7,750
TIF economic development - 2,371,577 - - - 2,371,577
Collinsville Crossings debt - - 3,067,848 - - 3,067,848
Motor fuel tax - - - - 1,104,872 1,104,872
DUI court fines - - - - 18,770 18,770
Police vehicles - - - - 19,958 19,958
Business districts - - - - 973,889 973,889
Committed to:
Tree memorial - - - - 3,817 3,817
Collinsville animal shelter - - - - 184,331 184,331
Capital projects - - - 681,544 - 681,544
Assigned for:
Subsequent year's budget 1,195,360 - - - - 1,195,360
Unassigned 10,307,198 - - - (525) 10,306,673
Total Fund Balances 12,233,371 2,371,577 3,067,848 1,201,630 2,305,112 21,179,538
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows Of
Resources, And Fund Balances $ 16,057,752 2,427,086 3,215,022 1,455,984 2,441,283 25,597,127
See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 21,179,538

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds. The cost of the assets is $104,769,571
and the accumulated depreciation is $54,068,503. 50,701,068

Certain amounts are not a use of financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in the governmental funds. These items consist of:

Net pension liability (35,128,288)
Deferred outflows related to pensions 11,934,768

Deferred inflows related to pensions (3,318,609)
Net OPEB liability (10,331,686)
Deferred inflows related to OPEB (830,977)
Insurance trust 1,342,974

Workers compensation payable (1,349,252)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are unavailable in the governmental funds. 1,855,428

Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at year-
end consist of:

Accrued interest payable (409,497)
Accrued compensated absences (1,611,589)
Capital leases payable (670,220)
Note payable (473,914)
General obligation bonds (7,090,000)
Revenue bonds (23,854,789)
Unamortized bond premium (52,497)
Unamortized bond deferred charges 363,276
Total Net Position Of Governmental Activities $ 2255734

See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Tax
Increment  Collinsville Capital Other Total
General Financing Crossings Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property tax $ 3,351,017 2,631,365 - - - 5,982,382
Intergovernmental 14,270,559 128,328 2,167,181 75,000 1,752,491 18,393,559
Other local taxes 2,097,870 62,452 - 1,317,444 - 3,477,766
Licenses and permits 724,393 - - - - 724,393
Charges for services 3,333,887 - - - - 3,333,887
Fines and forfeitures 275,952 - - - 16,855 292,807
Investment income 156,854 41,735 29,466 12,360 29,929 270,344
Gifts and donations 77,705 9,761 - 25,000 650 113,116
Other 1,054,967 - - - 9,550 1,064,517
Total Revenues 25,343,204 2,873,641 2,196,647 1,429,804 1,809,475 33,652,771
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 3,367,158 - - 19,999 4,723 3,391,880
Public safety 14,596,787 - - - 13 14,596,800
Public works 2,372,687 - - - 377,321 2,750,008
Health and sanitation 1,503,961 - - - - 1,503,961
Community/economic development 673,466 1,455,740 41,500 - 399,144 2,569,850
Community services 2,609,702 - - - - 2,609,702
Parks and recreation 905,879 - - - - 905,879
Capital outlay 607,921 667,844 - 1,760,638 22,653 3,059,056
Debt service:
Principal 681,691 249,955 630,000 129,576 100,000 1,791,222
Interest and fiscal charges 117,536 58,936 1,233,090 32,768 12,434 1,454,764
Total Expenditures 27,436,788 2,432,475 1,904,590 1,942,981 916,288 34,633,122
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (2,093,584) 441,166 292,057 (513,177) 893,187 (980,351)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)
Sale of capital assets 21,987 - - 27,520 - 49,507
Transfers in 1,163,444 - - - 79,317 1,242,761
Transfers out (2,000) (77,317) - - (200,038) (279,355)
Total Other Financ-
ing Sources (Uses) 1,183,431 (77,317) - 27,520 (120,721) 1,012,913
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

BEFORE SPECIAL ITEM (910,153) 363,849 292,057 (485,657) 772,466 32,562
SPECIAL ITEM - MERGER 2,946,627 - - - - 2,946,627
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 2,036,474 363,849 292,057 (485,657) 772,466 2,979,189
FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1,

AS RESTATED 10,196,897 2,007,728 2,775,791 1,687,287 1,532,646 18,200,349
FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31 $ 12,233,371 2,371,577 3,067,848 1,201,630 2,305,112 21,179,538
See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Net Change In Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays over the capitalization threshold ($2,850,393)
exceeded depreciation ($3,803,775) in the current period.

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets:
Cost of disposals, net of accumulated depreciation
Contributed capital assets

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the governmental funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to the
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of the governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
position. Also, the governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt
and related items.

Repayments:
General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Capital leases
Note payable
Amortization

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
Accrued interest on long-term debt
Accrued compensated absences
OPEB expense
Pension expense
Insurance trust
Workers compensation payable

In the statement of activities, the net position of the merging entity is reported as a special item,
whereas in the governmental funds, the fund balance of the merging entity is reported as a

special item. This amount is the change in equity balances.

Change In Net Position Of Governmental Activities

See notes to financial statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

§ 2,979,189

(953,382)

(54,385)
8,348,641

120,654

740,000
875,000
130,050
46,172
(33,635)

(49,026)
(173,300)
820,064
(2,067,774)
(241,283)
(616,782)

4,922,325

8 14792.528
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND

DECEMBER 31, 2018
Water And
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,358,849
Investments 2,981,656
Accounts receivables, net:
Services 1,985,716
Inventory 228,652
Total Current Assets 6,554,873
Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 18,744,409
Other capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation 30,427,860
Total Capital Assets 49,172,269
Restricted cash 637,600
Total Noncurrent Assets 49,809,869
Total Assets 56,364,742
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding 501,823
Deferred amounts related to pensions 1,730,310
Total Deferred Outflows Of Resources 2,232,133
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 2,203,655
Accrued payroll and benefits 99,348
Customer deposits payable 637,600
Accrued interest payable 188,873
Compensated absences - current 302,831
IEPA loan payable - current 608,226
Bond payable - current 1,165,000
Total Current Liabilities 5,205,533
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated absences 326,877
Total OPEB liability 547,867
Net pension liability 1,461,932
IEPA loan payable 13,503,995
Bond payable 9,612,517
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 25,453,188
Total Liabilities 30,658,721
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 836,223
Deferred amounts related to other post employment benefits 17,208
Total Deferred Inflows Of Resources 853,431
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 24,784,354
Unrestricted 2,300,369
Total Net Position $ 27,084,723
See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE
IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Water And
Sewer Fund

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 8,791,481
Fees 248,513
Other 102,524
Total Operating Revenues 9,142,518

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 3,377,875
Contractual services 1,278,133
Commodities 677,449
Maintenance 229,853
Depreciation 1,633,132
Total Operating Expenses 7,196,442
OPERATING INCOME 1,946,076

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment income 121,902
Interest expense (585,480)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (463,578)

INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

AND TRANSFERS 1,482,498
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 127,750
TRANSFERS OUT (963,406)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 646,842
NET POSITION, JANUARY 1, AS RESTATED 26,437,881
NET POSITION, DECEMBER 31 § 27,084,723

See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Other receipts
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cash flows used in noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets
Proceeds from IEPA loan payable
Principal payments on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Net Cash Used In Capital And Related Financing Activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investments
Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31

ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RECONCILIATION
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Total Ending Cash And Cash Equivalents

See notes to financial statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Water And
Sewer Fund

$ 8,833,249
(1,881,734)
(3,554,465)

102,524

3,499,574

(963,406)

(9,063,724)
8,296,929
(1,132,901)

(352,371)

(2,252,067)

121,902
3,754,027
(2,981,656)

894,273

1,178,374

818,075

$ 1,996,449

$ 1,358,849
637,600

$ 1,996,449

(Continued)
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid items
Deferred outflows related to pensions

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and benefits
Customer deposits payable
Compensated absences
Total OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to OPEB

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions
Capital asset acquisitions through accounts payable

See notes to financial statements

Water And
Sewer Fund

$ 1,946,076

1,633,132

(233,123)
(55,443)
327,156

(1,192,185)

31,988
(7,713)
26,378

(11,045)
(14,455)
1,546,859
(496,122)
(1,929)

1,553,498

$ 3,499,574

$ 127,750
2,094,979
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

ASSETS

Cash

Investments:
Common stock
Corporate bonds
Government securities
Money market funds
Mutual funds
The Illinois Funds

Receivables:
Property tax
Interest

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

NET POSITION
Restricted for pensions

See notes to financial statements

§ 410,542

6,783,251
4,792,069
12,022,801
839,678
19,084,274
12

2,288,548
107,915
46,329,090

15,000

$ 46,314,090
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer:
Property tax $ 2,215,041
Replacement tax 226,752
Employee 619,998
Total Contributions 3,061,791
Reimbursements 1,920
Interest and dividends 819,744
Net decrease in the fair value of investments (3,616,132)
Less - Investment management and custodial fees (161,140)
Net Investment Income (2,957,528)
Total Additions 106,183
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments 3,361,748
Refunds of contributions 20,038
Administrative expenses 45,765
Total Deductions 3,427,551
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (3,321,368)
NET POSITION - RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS, JANUARY 1 49,635,458
NET POSITION - RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS, DECEMBER 31 $ 46,314,090
See notes to financial statements
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS (the City) was incorporated on November 30, 1872. The City
operates under a City Council - Manager form of government and provides the following services: general
government, public safety (police and fire), public works, health and sanitation, community and economic de-
velopment, community services, and water and sewer. The City Manager and council members exercise over-
sight responsibility for all of these governmental services.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally ac-
cepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing government accounting and fi-
nancial reporting principles. The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below:

1.

Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the City include the financial activities of the City and any compo-
nent units, entities which are financially accountable to the City. The City does not currently
have any component units.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental reve-
nues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given func-
tion or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identi-
fiable with a specific function. Program revenues include: 1) charges for services to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided
by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduci-
ary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as sepa-
rate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measure-
ment focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund fi-
nancial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a lia-
bility is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as reve-
nue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Contin-
ued)

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be measurable and
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay li-
abilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service ex-
penditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, claims, and judgments, are
recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, franchise taxes, and interest associated with the cur-
rent fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized, when
applicable, as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund -- This fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It accounts for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Tax Increment Financing Fund -- This fund is a special revenue fund used to account for in-
cremental taxes, other revenues, and all expenditures related to the tax increment financing areas.

Collinsville Crossings Fund -- This fund is a special revenue fund used to account for sales
taxes that are restricted to pay debt service costs of the related economic development area.

Capital Projects Fund -- This fund is a capital projects fund used to account for the acquisition
or construction of capital facilities and certain debt related to capital assets.

The other governmental funds of the City are considered nonmajor. They are special revenue
funds which account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to ex-
penditures for specific purposes, and one debt service fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

Water and Sewer Fund -- This fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s water
and sewer department.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Contin-
ued)

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type:

Pension Trust Funds -- These funds accounts for the activities of the Police and Firefighter’s
Pension Funds, which accumulate resources for pension benefit payments to qualified public
safety employees.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are reimbursements between funds for direct
costs applicable to the other fund. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as pro-
gram revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operat-
ing revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal oper-
ating revenues of the enterprise fund are charges to customers. Operating expenses for enterprise
funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation and amortization.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

4. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

For cash flow statement purposes, the City considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased
with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The City maintains a cash and in-
vestment pool and interest allocated to each fund based on month-end balances and investment
policies.

The City is authorized by State Statute to invest in obligations of the United States of America,
insured interest bearing accounts of banks, savings and loan associations or credit unions, certain
short-term obligations of corporations organized in the United States, money market mutual
funds that invest in obligations of the United States of America or its agencies or are guaranteed
by the full faith and credit of the United States of America, the Illinois Funds, the Illinois Metro-
politan Investment Fund, and repurchase agreements of government securities. The Pension
Trust Funds are also allowed to invest limited percentages of their monies in mutual funds and
equity securities.

Investments are stated at fair value. Investment income is recognized as earned. Gains or losses
on sales and exchanges of fixed-income securities are recognized on the transaction date.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for uncollectible receivables is as follows:

December 31
Funds Receivables 2018
General Fund Garbage receivables $ 46,548
General Fund Ambulance receivables 370,284
Proprietary Fund Water and sewer receivables 298,591
Total $ 715,423

Interfund Transactions
The City has the following types of transactions among funds:

Transfers -- Transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to the fund through which re-
sources are to be expended are recorded as transfers. Such transfers are reported as other financ-
ing sources (uses).

Due To/From Other Funds -- Current portions of long-term interfund loans receivable/payable
are considered “available spendable resources” and are reported as assets and liabilities of the
appropriate funds.

Elimination of interfund activity has been made for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activi-
ties and business-type activities are reported on the government-wide statement of net position as
“internal balances”.

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year-end are
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid
items are recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.
Inventories

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories are re-
corded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. Inventory in the

governmental fund consists of expendable street department supplies held for consumption. In-
ventory in the business-type fund consists of waterworks and sewerage supplies.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

9.

10.

11.

12.

Restricted Assets

Certain cash and cash equivalents are restricted as to use for police seizure escrow, debt pay-
ments, and and water and sewer customer deposits.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, equipment, intangibles, and infrastructure (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. The City defines capital
assets as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of
two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated acquisition value at the date
of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materi-
ally extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation is being computed on the straight-line method, using asset lives as follows:

Assets Years
Buildings and improvements 7—-40
Land improvements 10 - 40
Equipment 5-15
Vehicles 5-10
Infrastructure 20-50

Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay amounts are accrued when incurred. The City’s pol-
icy permits employees to earn one to five weeks of vacation per year, based on length of service.
In addition, employees earn sick leave at the rate of one and one-half working days for each cal-
endar month of employment or 18 days per year. The maximum accumulation for any employee
is one year vacation earned and 60 days of sick leave. Annually, unused sick leave over 60 days
is paid to an employee at a rate of 50%. Accumulated unused sick leave is paid to an employee
upon retirement.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the appli-
cable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds us-
ing the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of any applicable bond premium or
discount.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

12.

13.

14.

15.

Long-term Obligations (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and dis-
counts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued
is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as
debt service expenditures.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a con-
sumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an out-
flow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City currently has deferred outflows of
resources related to charges on refunding of long-term and debt pensions reported on the state-
ment of net position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate sec-
tion for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City currently has deferred inflows of re-
sources for unavailable revenues from various sources reported on the governmental funds bal-
ance sheet. The City also has deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and pension re-
ported on the statement of net position.

Property Taxes

The City levied its 2018 property taxes in December 2018 based upon the assessed valuation as
of the previous January 1. Property taxes are due in four installments in the following year, usu-
ally beginning in June, and are considered delinquent after the due dates. Property taxes for
2018 become an enforceable lien in January 2019. Because this tax levy will be used to pay ex-
penditures budgeted in 2019, no part of this tax levy is shown as a revenue.

Fund Balance Policies

The fund balance amounts are reported in the following applicable categories listed from the
most restrictive to the least restrictive:

Nonspendable -- The portion of fund balance that cannot be spent because they are either: 1)
not in spendable form or 2) legally or contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted -- The portion of fund balance that is subject to external restrictions and constrained

to specific purposes imposed by agreement, through constitutional provisions, or by enabling
legislation.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

15.

16.

17.

Fund Balance Policies (Continued)

Committed -- The portion of fund balance that are to be only used for specific purposes pursuant
to constraints imposed by formal approval of an ordinance by the City Council, which has the
highest level of decision-making authority. Formal Council approval is required to establish and
amend or remove any specific committed balances.

Assigned -- The portion of fund balance that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Assigned balances are authorized by
the City Council or by the City Manager under the direction of the City Council.

Unassigned -- Amounts that are available for any purpose; these positive amounts are reported
only in the General Fund.

When an expenditure is incurred in governmental funds which may be paid using either re-
stricted and unrestricted resources, the City’s policy is to pay the expenditures from the restricted
fund balance and then from less restrictive classification - committed, assigned, and unassigned
fund balances.

The fund balance of the City has been accumulated to provide stability and flexibility to respond
to unexpected adversity and/or opportunities. The target is to maintain an ending fund balance of
between 15% and 20% of estimated annual revenues for both the General Fund and Enterprise
Fund. Should the fund balance fall below 10% of revenues, a plan for expenditure reductions
and/or revenue increases shall be submitted to the City Council by the City Manager. If the bal-
ance should exceed 20%, the excess shall be utilized for one-time expenditures as recommended
by the City Manager to the City Council. If the fund balance falls below 10%, the City shall re-
build the balance within two fiscal years.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the City to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the basic financial state-
ments and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension asset/liability, deferred outflows of resources and de-
ferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about fiduciary
net position of the City’s pension defined benefit pension plans (the Plans) and additions to/
deductions from the Plans fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by the Plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. In-
vestments are reported at fair value.
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NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

1.

Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits
may not be returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession
of an outside party. The City requires that all deposits not covered by the Federal Deposit Insur-
ance Corporation (FDIC) insurance be collateralized with investments held by the financial insti-
tution in the City’s name. The value of the securities must amount to the total of the City’s cash
not insured by FDIC.

As of December 31, 2018, the City’s bank balances were entirely secured or collateralized with
securities held by the City or by its agent in the City’s name.

Investments

The Illinois Funds and the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund are pooled investments that are
operated by the State of Illinois as a not-for-profit common law trust and are not registered with
the SEC. The funds are monitored regularly through the state by internal and external audits.
The goals of the funds are to provide liquidity and to maintain balances that are equal to the par
value of the invested shares with no loss to market fluctuations. The fair value of the City’s po-
sition in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

As of December 31, 2018, the City had the following investments:
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NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

2. Investments (Continued)

Maturities
Fair No Less Than 1-5 6-10 More Than Credit
Investments Value Maturity One Year Years Years 10 Years Risk
Primary Government
Illinois Metropolitan Investment
Fund $ 1,309,890 1,309,890 - - - - AAA
The Illinois Funds 11,652,905 11,652,905 - - - - AAA
Money market funds 2,016,671 2,016,671 - - - - Not rated
Repurchase agreements 6,053,000 - 6,053,000 - - - N/A
Total Primary
Government 21,032,466 14,979,466 6,053,000 - - -
Fiduciary Funds
Firefighter's Pension Fund
The Illinois Funds 12 12 - - - - AAA
Money market funds 157,874 157,874 - - - - Not rated
Mutual funds 11,905,184 11,905,184 - - - - N/A
Government securities:
Federal National Mortgage
Association 1,205,064 - - 516,239 311,701 377,124 AAA
Federal Home Loan Mort-
gage Corporation 482,597 - - 328,687 153,910 - AAA
U.S. Treasury notes 5,725,217 - 899,170 3,839,845 986,202 - N/A
Total Firefighter's
Pension Fund 19,475,948 12,063,070 899,170 4,684,771 1,451,813 377,124
Police Pension Fund
Common stock 6,783,251 6,783,251 - - - - N/A
Corporate bonds 132,339 - - 132,339 - - AAA
Corporate bonds 616,159 - - 539,946 76,213 - AA
Corporate bonds 2,608,631 - - 2,277,047 331,584 - A
Corporate bonds 1,434,940 - - 1,301,653 133,287 - BBB
Money market funds 681,804 681,804 - - - - Not rated
Mutual funds 7,179,090 7,179,090 - - - - N/A
Government securities:
Government National Mort-
gage Association 26,910 - - - 19,263 7,647 N/A
Federal Home Loan Mort-
gage Corporation 1,478,222 - 238,327 250,571 126,164 863,160 AAA
Federal National Mortgage
Association 1,262,363 - 98 495,153 249 766,863 AAA
Municipal bonds 24,525 - - 24,525 - - AAA
Municipal bonds 460,640 - 164,441 296,199 - - AA
Municipal bonds 55,295 - - 55,295 - - A
U.S. Treasury notes 1,301,968 - 193,549 597,380 511,039 - N/A
Total Police Pension
Fund 24,046,137 14,644,145 596,415 5,970,108 1,197,799 1,637,670
Total Fiduciary Funds 43,522,085 26,707,215 1,495,585 10,654,879 2,649,612 2,014,794
Total Investments $ 64,554,551 41,686,681 7,548,585 10,654,879 2,649,612 2,014,794
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NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

2.

Investments (Continued)
Investment Policies
The City’s formal investment policies are as follows:

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its ob-
ligations. To minimize credit risk, it is the City's policy to: 1) limit investments to the safest
type of security; 2) prequalify the institution's brokers/dealers, intermediaries, and advisors with
which the City will conduct business; and 3) diversify the portfolio, to the extent necessary, in
order to minimize potential losses on individual securities.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse inter-
est rate changes. The City minimizes interest rate risk by structuring the investment portfolio so
that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the
need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity.

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City’s in-
vestment in a single issuer. The City minimizes concentration of credit risk by diversifying the
investment portfolio.

Concentration of credit risk is required to be disclosed by the City for investments in any one
issuer that represent 5% or more of total investments (investments issued by or explicitly guaran-
teed by the United States Government, investments in mutual funds, investments in external in-
vestment pools, and investments in other pooled investments are exempt). Defined benefit plans
are required to disclose investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total plan net
position with the same exemptions as above. At December 31, 2018, the City had the following
investment concentrations:

Percent Of
Fair Total
Investments Value Investments
Primary Government
Money market funds $ 2,016,671 9.59 %
Repurchase agreements 6,053,000 28.78
Percent Of
Fair Total Plan
Investments Value Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
Federal National Mortgage Association $ 2,467,427 533 %
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NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements

The City classifies its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
GAAP. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the as-
set. Level 1 inputs are prices quoted in active markets for those securities; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs using a matrix pricing technique; and Level 3 inputs are sig-
nificant unobservable inputs. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’
relationship to benchmark quoted prices. The inputs and methodologies used for valuing in-
vestment securities are not necessarily an indication of risk associated with investing in those se-

curities.

The City has the following recurring fair value level measurements as of December 31, 2018:

Primary Government
Investments by fair value level:
Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund
The Illinois Funds
Total Investments By Fair
Value Level

Investments not subject to fair value
level classification:
Money market funds
Repurchase agreements

Total Primary Government
Investments

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$ 1,309,890
11,652,905

1,309,890

11,652,905

12,962,795

1,309,890

11,652,905

2,016,671

6,053,000

821032466
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NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Fiduciary Funds
Investments by fair value level:
Common stock
Corporate bonds
The Illinois Funds
Mutual funds:
Equity
Bond
Government securities:
Government National Mortgage
Association
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation
Federal National Mortgage
Association
Municipal bonds
U.S. Treasury notes
Total Investments By Fair
Value Level

Investments not subject to fair value
level classification:
Money market funds

Total Fiduciary
Funds Investments

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
$ 6,783,251 6,783,251 - -
4,792,069 - 4,792,069 -
12 - 12 -
18,219,264 18,219,264 - -
865,010 - 865,010 -
26,910 26,910 - -
1,960,819 - 1,960,819 -
2,467,427 - 2,467,427 -
540,460 - 540,460 -
7,027,185 7,027,185 - -
42,682,407 32,056,610 10,625,797 -
839,678
$ 43,522,085
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NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the governmental activities was as follows:

For The Year Ended December 31, 2018

Balance Balance
December 31 December 31
Governmental Activities 2017 Increases Decreases 2018
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 4,161,749 1,919,793 - 6,081,542
Construction in progress 173,742 2,127,739 111,154 2,190,327
Total Capital Assets Not
Being Depreciated 4,335,491 4,047,532 111,154 8,271,869
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 9,076,805 22,562,379 89,124 31,550,060
Land improvements - 1,022,056 19,478 1,002,578
Equipment 4,074,617 4,508,157 389,894 8,192,880
Vehicles 4,855,728 482,645 143,134 5,195,239
Infrastructure 50,524,916 32,029 - 50,556,945
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 68,532,066 28,607,266 641,630 96,497,702
Less - Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 4,376,791 9,735,479 77,233 14,035,037
Land improvements - 750,858 18,304 732,554
Equipment 3,368,130 2,707,133 353,455 5,721,808
Vehicles 2,837,511 466,364 138,253 3,165,622
Infrastructure 28,562,045 1,851,437 - 30,413,482
Total Accumulated Depreciation 39,144,477 15,511,271 587,245 54,068,503
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net 29,387,589 13,095,995 54,385 42,429,199
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net $ 33,723,080 17,143,527 165,539 50,701,068

Beginning capital assets were increased by $107,674 to reflect a prior period adjustment for capital assets that
were not capitalized in the prior year. During 2018, the City merged the operations of the Collinsville Metro-

politan Exposition Auditorium and Office Building Authority with the General Fund. In conjunction with this
merger, the City recorded $21,344,610 in capital additions and $11,707,496 in depreciation expense.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities as follows:
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NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

For The
Year Ended
December 31
2018
Governmental Activities
General government $ 154,054
Public safety 605,576
Public works, including infrastructure 1,978,913
Community and economic development 51,527
Community services 650,232
Parks and recreation 363,473
Total $ 3,803,775
Capital asset activity for the business-type activities was as follows:
For The Year Ended December 31, 2018
Balance Balance
December 31 December 31
2017 Increases Decreases 2018
Business-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $§ 451,329 - - 451,329
Construction in progress 10,096,170 8,340,696 143,786 18,293,080
Total Capital Assets Not
Being Depreciated 10,547,499 8,340,696 143,786 18,744,409
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 35,347,659 - - 35,347,659
Equipment 3,075,125 30,510 - 3,105,635
Vehicles 1,183,628 152,307 36,495 1,299,440
Infrastructure 32,138,512 407,267 - 32,545,779
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 71,744,924 590,084 36,495 72,298,513
Less - Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 12,905,649 754,242 - 13,659,891
Equipment 2,759,002 88,905 - 2,847,907
Vehicles 939,749 129,534 36,495 1,032,788
Infrastructure 23,669,616 660,451 - 24,330,067
Total Accumulated Depreciation 40,274,016 1,633,132 36,495 41,870,653
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net 31,470,908 (1,043,048) - 30,427,860
Total Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, Net $ 42,018,407 7,297,648 143,786 49,172,269

Beginning capital assets were increased by $22,575 to reflect a prior period adjustment for capital assets.
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NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the business-type activities as follows:

For The
Year Ended
December 31
2018
Business-type Activities
Water and sewer $ 1,633,132
NOTE D - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
Interfund transfers are as follows:
For The
Year Ended
December 31
Transfers In Transfers Out 2018
General Fund Motor Fuel Tax Fund $ 200,038
General Fund Water and Sewer Fund 963,406
Collins House Fund General Fund 2,000
Fournie Lane Business District Fund Tax Increment Financing Fund 77,317
Total $ 1,242,761

The General Fund receives transfers for reimbursement of expenses paid by that fund for expenses related to
other funds. The transfer between the Tax Increment Financing Fund and the Fournie Lane Business District
Fund provided funds for debt service purposes.

Individual interfund assets and liabilities balances are as follows:

December 31
Receivable Fund Payable Fund 2018
General Fund Collinsville Crossings Fund $ 53,701
General Fund Collins House Fund 160
Total $ 53,861

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that: 1) interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, 2) transactions are recorded in the account-
ing system, and 3) payments between funds are made. All interfund balances are expected to be repaid during
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019.
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT

A summary of changes in long-term debt is as follows:

For The Year Ended December 31, 2018 Amounts
Balance Balance Due
December 31 December 31 Within
2017 Additions Reductions 2018 One Year
Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds $ 7,830,000 - 740,000 7,090,000 790,000
List revenue bonds 20,015,000 - 195,000 19,820,000 195,000
Convention center revenue

bonds - 4,714,789 680,000 4,034,789 730,000

Bond premium 60,407 - 7,910 52,497 -
Capital leases 800,270 - 130,050 670,220 85,727
Note payable 520,086 - 46,172 473,914 47,275
Compensated absences 1,438,289 1,130,020 956,720 1,611,589 1,036,277

Total Governmental
Activities $ 30,664,052 5,844,809 2,755,852 33,753,009 2,884,279
Business-type Activities

General obligation bonds $ 11,670,000 - 1,130,000 10,540,000 1,165,000

Bond premium 319,231 - 81,714 237,517 -

Capital leases 2,901 - 2,901 - -
IEPA loan 5,815,292 8,296,929 - 14,112,221 608,226
Compensated absences 640,753 272,521 283,566 629,708 302,831

Total Business-

type Activities $ 18,448,177 8,569,450 1,498,181 25,519,446 2,076,057

Compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund.
The City has the following bond issues outstanding:

On July 23, 2007, the City issued $20,250,000 of Limited Incremental Sales Tax (LIST) Revenue Bonds, Se-

ries 2007 with interest at 5% to 5.35% and maturing on March 1, 2031. The maturity dates may be extended

if projected revenues are not met and sufficient funds to make debt payments are not available. The proceeds
were used to reimburse or pay redevelopment costs associated with the Collinsville Crossings Shopping Cen-
ter. The bonds are liquidated by the Collinsville Crossings Fund. The amount of bonds outstanding as of De-
cember 31, 2018 is $19,820,000.

On January 12, 2009, the City issued $2,700,000 of Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009 with in-
terest at 4.7% to 5.95% and maturing on December 15, 2028. The proceeds were used to pay redevelopment
costs in the Eastport Plaza Drive Business District for work related to the Doubletree Inn. The bonds are lig-
uidated by the Tax Increment Financing Fund. The bonds were partially refunded during the year Decem-
ber 31, 2017. Final payment on the bonds was made during the year December 31, 2018.
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

On September 27, 2012, the City issued $9,625,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 with
interest at 1.8% to 3% and maturing on December 15, 2026. The proceeds were used to advance refund a por-
tion of the Series 2006 Bonds. The bonds are liquidated by the Water and Sewer Fund. The amount of bonds

outstanding as of December 31, 2018 is $9,315,000.

On June 4, 2013, the City issued $5,480,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 A with in-
terest at 3% and maturing on December 15, 2020. The proceeds were used to advance refund a portion of the
Series 2006 Bonds. The bonds are liquidated by the Water and Sewer Fund. The amount of bonds outstand-
ing as of December 31, 2018 is $1,225,000.

On July 9, 2014, the City issued $6,260,000 of Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014
with interest at 2% to 4% and maturing on December 15, 2027. The proceeds were used to advance refund a
portion of the Series 2007A Bonds. The bonds are liquidated by the Collinsville Crossings Fund. The
amount of bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2018 is $4,910,000.

On December 13, 2017, the City issued $430,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017A with
interest at 3% and maturing on December 15, 2021. The proceeds were used to refund the 2007B Fournie Lane

redevelopment. The bonds are liquidated by the Fournie Lane Business District Fund. The amount of bonds
outstanding as of December 31, 2018 is $330,000.

On December 13, 2017, the City issued $1,885,000 of Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2017B with interest at 2% to 3.4% and maturing on December 15, 2028. The proceeds were used to refund a
portion of the 2009 bonds for Eastport Plaza Drive redevelopment. The bonds are liquidated by the Tax Incre-
ment Financing Fund. The amount of bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2018 is $1,850,000.

During 2018, the City merged the operations of the Collinsville Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium, and Of-
fice Building Authority with the General Fund. In conjunction with this merger, the City recorded the related
convention center refunding revenue bonds originally issued in 2003 and 2004. The terms of the bonds were
amended in 2015 with an interest rate at 2.685% and maturing on January 1, 2023. The original proceeds were
used for costs related to the convention center. The bonds are liquidated by the General Fund with the City’s
hospitality tax. The balance outstanding on these bonds as of December 31, 2018 is $4,034,789.

The LIST revenue bonds which are generally paid based upon the sales tax collections per the applicable ordi-

nance with certain mandatory redemptions. A summary of the minimum debt service requirements for the
bonds is as follows:
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

For The
Years Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
December 31 Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 1,520,000 1,372,589 2,892,589 1,165,000 315,420 1,480,420
2020 1,600,000 1,330,195 2,930,195 1,200,000 281,250 1,481,250
2021 1,690,000 1,285,391 2,975,391 1,265,000 245,250 1,510,250
2022 1,675,000 1,234,857 2,909,857 1,305,000 207,300 1,512,300
2023 1,479,789 1,186,579 2,666,368 1,340,000 168,150 1,508,150
2024 - 2028 11,280,000 4,225,840 15,505,840 4,265,000 258,150 4,523,150
2029 - 2031 11,700,000 1,564,875 13,264,875 - - -
Total $30,944,789 12,200,326 43,145,115 10,540,000 1,475,520 12,015,520

Capital Lease Agreements

On December 18, 2009, the City entered into a $379,721 capital lease for energy efficient equipment. The City
makes annual payments of $51,653 with interest at 4.25% until maturity in December 2018. This capital lease
is liquidated by both the governmental activities and business-type activities based upon actual initial costs.
Final payment on the lease was made during the year December 31, 2018.

On February 22, 2016, the City entered into a $900,233 capital lease dated for a fire truck. The City makes

monthly payments of $8,590 with interest at 2.25% until maturity in February 2026. The lease is liquidated by
the Capital Projects Fund. The principal amount of the lease outstanding as of December 31, 2018 is $670,220.

Assets acquired through capital lease agreements are as follows:

December 31

2018
Equipment $ 337,438
Vehicles 905,059
Less - Accumulated depreciation (428,337)
Total $ 814,160

Loan Agreements and Note Payable

On June 19, 2017, the City entered into an $18,505,957 Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) loan
for construction of a new water treatment plant, interest at 1.64%, payment amounts to be determined upon pro-
ject completion, loan proceeds paid to City as construction progresses, which matures on January 22, 2039. The
loan is liquidated by the Water and Sewer Fund. The amount of loan outstanding as of December 31, 2018 is
$14,112,221.
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NOTE E - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

On December 12, 2017, the City entered into a $520,086 note payable to bank, due in installments through De-
cember 12, 2027; interest at 2.65%. The proceeds were used to purchase a fire vehicle. The note payable is
liquidated by the Capital Projects Fund. The amount of note payable outstanding as of December 31, 2018 is
$473,914.

A summary of the debt requirements for the capital lease and note payable are as follows:

For The
Years Ending Capital Leases Note Payable

December 31 Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 85,727 17,353 103,080 47,275 11,990 59,265
2020 88,111 14,969 103,080 48,512 10,753 59,265
2021 90,568 12,511 103,079 49,844 9,420 59,264
2022 93,091 9,989 103,080 51,181 8,083 59,264
2023 95,683 7,397 103,080 52,554 6,711 59,265
2024 - 2027 217,040 6,300 223,340 224,548 12,379 236,927
Total $ 670,220 68,519 738,739 473,914 59,336 533,250

NOTE F - LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

The City was certified as a home rule unit by the State of Illinois as of August 24, 2005. Under Section 6 of
Article VII of the 1970 Illinois Constitution, home rule units have no debt limitation.

NOTE G - PENSION PLANS
1. Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF)
Plan Description

The City’s defined benefit pension plan for regular employees provides retirement and disability
benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The
City participates in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multi-employer
public pension fund. A summary of IMRF’s pension benefits is provided in the “Benefits Pro-
vided” section of this document. Details of all benefits are available from IMRF. Benefit provi-
sions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State
of [llinois. IMREF issues a publicly available CAFR that includes financial statements, detailed
information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position, and required supplemental infor-
mation. The report is available for download at www.imrf.org. The pension liability is generally
liquated by the General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund.
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)
1. Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) (Continued)
Benefits Provided

IMRF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate in the Regular
Plan (RP). The Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) plan is for sheriffs, deputy sher-
iffs, and selected police chiefs. Counties could adopt the Elected County Official (ECO) plan for
officials elected prior to August 8, 2011 (the ECO plan was closed to new participants after that
date).

All three IMRF benefit plans have two tiers. Employees hired before January 1, 2011, are eligi-
ble for Tier 1 benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for pension benefits when they have at least
eight years of qualifying service credit. Tier 1 employees who retire at age 55 (at reduced bene-
fits) or after age 60 (at full benefits) with eight years of service are entitled to an annual retire-
ment benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1%3% of the final rate of earnings
for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a
maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earn-
ings during any consecutive 48 months within the last ten years of service, divided by 48. Under
Tier 1, the pension is increased by 3% of the original amount on January 1 every year after re-
tirement.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 em-
ployees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating employees who retire at
age 62 (at reduced benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years of service are enti-
tled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1%5% of the
final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service
credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings
is the highest total earnings during any 96 consecutive months within the last ten years of ser-
vice, divided by 96. Under Tier 2, the pension is increased on January 1 every year after re-
tirement, upon reaching age 67, by the lesser of: 3% of the original pension amount, or 2 of
the increase in the CPI of the original pension amount.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

As of December 31, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 74
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 30
Active employees 118

Total 222
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

1.

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) (Continued)
Contributions

As set by statute, the City’s Regular Plan members are required to contribute 4.5% of their an-
nual covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addi-
tion to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The
City’s annual contribution rate for calendar year 2018 was 9.73%. For the fiscal year ended De-
cember 31, 2018, the City contributed $706,172 to the plan. The City also contributes for disa-
bility benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at
the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by IMRF’s Board of
Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Net Pension Liability (Asset)

The City’s net pension liability (asset) was measured as of December 31, 2018. The total pen-
sion liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The following are the methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability at De-
cember 31, 2018:

e Actuarial Cost Method used was Entry Age Normal.

e Asset Valuation Method used was Market Value of Assets.

¢ Inflation Rate was assumed to be 2.75%.

e Salary Increases were expected to be 3.75% to 14.5%, including inflation.

¢ Investment Rate of Return was assumed to be 7.5%.

e Projected Retirement Age was from the Experience-based Table of Rates, specific to the
type of eligibility condition, last updated for the 2014 valuation according to an experience
study from years 2011 to 2013.

e The IMREF - specific rates for Mortality (for nondisabled retirees) were developed from the
RP-2014 Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current
IMRF experience.

e For Disabled Retirees, an IMRF-specific mortality table was used with fully generational
projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF-specific rates were developed from
the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality Table, applying the same adjustments that were ap-
plied for nondisabled lives.
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

1. Ilinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) (Continued)

e For Active Members, an IMRF-specific mortality table was used with fully generational
projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF-specific rates were developed from
the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience.

¢ Long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return to the target asset allocation
percentage and adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geo-
metric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table
as of December 31, 2018:

Long-term

Expected

Target Real Rate

Asset Class Percentage Of Return

Domestic equity 37.00 % 7.15 %

International equity 18.00 7.25
Fixed income 28.00 3.75
Real estate 9.00 6.25

Alternative investments 7.00 3.20 - 8.50
Cash equivalents 1.00 2.25

Single Discount Rate

A single discount rate of 7.5% was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection of
cash flow used to determine this single discount rate assumed that the plan members’ contribu-
tions will be made at the current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will be made
at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the mem-
ber rate. The single discount rate reflects:

1. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (during the period in
which the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and

2. The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds
with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve) as of the
measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term expected
rate of return are not met).

For the purpose of the most recent valuation, the expected rate of return on plan investments is
7.5%, the municipal bond rate is 3.71%, and the resulting single discount rate is 7.5%.
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) (Continued)
Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary

Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
(a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances at December 31, 2017 $ 29,161,754 29,366,837 (205,083)
Changes for the year:
Service cost 577,866 - 577,866
Interest on the total pension liability 2,156,841 - 2,156,841
Difference between expected
and actual experience 606,212 - 606,212
Changes of assumptions 881,543 - 881,543
Contributions - employer - 706,172 (706,172)
Contributions - employee - 317,661 (317,661)
Net investment income - (1,496,688) 1,496,688
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,385,623) (1,385,623) -
Other - 468,884 (468,884)
Net Changes 2,836,839 (1,389,594) 4,226,433
Balances at December 31, 2018 $ 31,998,593 27,977,243 4,021,350

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of the City, calculated using the discount
rate of 7.5%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability (asset) would be using a discount
rate that is 1% point lower (6.5%) or 1% point higher (8.5%) than the current rate.

Current Single
Discount Rate
Assumption

1% Decrease 1% Increase

Net pension liability (asset) $ 8,010,052 4,021,350 733,785
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)
1. Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $555,350 for the
IMRF plan, and a total of $5,074,292 for all three plans. The City reported deferred outflows
and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Outflows Inflows Net Outflows
Differences between expected and actual
experience $ 639,617 (197,126) 442,491
Assumption changes 750,070 (561,860) 188,210
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan investments 3,369,893 (1,541,221) 1,828,672
Total $4,759,580 (2,300,207) 2,459,373

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be rec-
ognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

For The
Years Ending
December 31
2019 $ 686,074
2020 363,980
2021 419,787
2022 989,532
Total $ 2,459,373

Payable to the Pension Plan

At December 31, 2018, the City reported a payable of $21,572 for the outstanding amount of
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Page 121



NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

2.

Firefighters’ Pension Fund
Plan Description

The Firefighters’ Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension that covers all sworn
fire personnel. Although this plan is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and
employee and employer contribution levels are governed by Illinois State Statutes and may be
amended only by the Illinois legislature. The City accounts for the plan as a Pension Trust Fund.

The Plan is administered by a Board of Trustees. The Board consists of two members appointed
by the City, two active members of the fire department elected by the membership, and one re-
tired member of the fire department elected by the membership.

Benefits Provided

The Plan provides retirement, termination, disability, and death benefits to employees grouped
into two tiers. Tier 1 is for employees hired prior to January 1, 2011, and Tier 2 is for employees
hired after January 1, 2011.

Tier 1 employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of creditable service are
entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of one-half of annual salary attached to rank on
last day of service. The pension shall be increased by 2.5% of annual salary for each year over
20 years up to 30 years, up to a maximum of 75% of salary. Employees with at least 10 years
but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced ben-
efit. The retiree’s annual benefit payment should be increased annually, following the first anni-
versary date of retirement and paid upon reaching at least the age 55, by 3% of the original pen-
sion and 3% compounded annually thereafter.

Tier 2 employees attaining the age of 55 or more with 10 years or more years of creditable ser-
vice are entitled to 2.5% of the final average salary for each year of creditable service. The sal-
ary is initially capped at $106,800 but increases annually thereafter and is limited to 75% of final
average salary. Employees with 10 or more years of creditable service may retire at or after age
50 and receive a reduced benefit. The retiree’s annual benefit payment should be increased an-
nually equal to the lessor of 3% per year or one-half the annual unadjusted percentage increase in
the consumer price index for the 12 months ending with the September preceding each Novem-
ber 1, after attaining the age of 60.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
As of January 1, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

35
3
Total 68
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)
2. Firefighters’ Pension Fund (Continued)
Contributions

Employees contribute a fixed percentage of their base salary to the plan. For the year ended De-
cember 31, 2018, the contribution percentage was 9.455%. If an employee leaves covered em-
ployment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be re-
funded. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan
as actuarially determined. Effective January 1, 2011, the City’s contributions must accumulate
to the point where the plan is 90% funded by the year 2040.

Net Pension Liability

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was measured by an actuarial valuation as of
that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The following are the methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability at De-
cember 31, 2018:

Inflation 2.5%
Salary increase Service based
Investment rate of return 6.75%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with a blue collar
adjustment, projected 5 years past the valuation date with Scale MO-2018. The disabled mor-
tality rates were based on 115% of the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, projected 5
years past the valuation date with Scale MO-2018.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2018, valuation were based on the results of ac-
tuarial experience study performed by the State of Illinois Department of Insurance in 2018.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (ex-
pected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. For 2018, the inflation rate assumption of the investment advisor was 3%.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return to the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each ma-
jor asset class are summarized in the following table:
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

2. Firefighters’ Pension Fund (Continued)

Long-term

Expected

Target Real Rate

Asset Class Allocation Of Return

T Bill 1.00 % 0.40 %
Short government/credit 5.00 1.90
Intermediate government 36.00 1.70
Large 6.00 4.45
Large value 6.00 4.70
Mid value 7.00 5.20
Small 7.00 5.60
Small value 7.00 6.50
International developed 5.00 4.45
International value 5.00 6.60
International small 5.00 7.45
Emerging markets 7.00 7.50
REIT 3.00 3.90

Discount Rate

A discount rate of 6.75% was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection of cash
flows used to determine this discount rate assumed that the plan members’ contributions will be
made at the current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal
to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based
on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to de-
termine the total pension liability.

For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is
6.75%, the municipal bond rate is 4.10%, and the resulting single discount rate is 6.75%.
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Firefighters’ Pension Fund (Continued)
Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary

Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability
(@) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances at December 31, 2017 $ 31,327,690 22,884,836 8,442,854
Changes for the year:
Service cost 712,235 - 712,235
Interest on the total pension liability 2,104,968 - 2,104,968
Difference between expected
and actual experience 403,525 - 403,525
Changes of assumptions 1,670,171 - 1,670,171
Contributions - employer - 1,019,701 (1,019,701)
Contributions - employee - 254,982 (254,982)
Net investment income - (1,566,330) 1,566,330
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,710,423) (1,710,423) -
Administrative expense - (21,335) 21,335
Net Changes 3,180,476 (2,023,405) 5,203,881
Balances at December 31, 2018 $ 34,508,166 20,861,431 13,646,735

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
6.75%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be using a discount rate that is 1%
point lower (5.75%) or 1% point higher (7.75%) than the current rate.

Current Single
Discount Rate
Assumption

1% Decrease 1% Increase

$ 18,451,496 13,646,735 9,732,451

Net pension liability
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

2. Firefighters’ Pension Fund (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $2,092,524 for
the Firefighters’ Pension Fund, and a total of $5,074,292 for all three plans. The City reported
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual
experience

Assumption changes

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

Total

Inflows Net Outflows

$ 345,876

(482,383) (136,507)
(501,415) 1,512,848

2,284,993

$4,645,132

(983,798) 3,661,334

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be rec-

ognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

For The
Years Ending
December 31

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

Total
3. Police Pension Fund

Plan Description

$ 1,038,266
685,470
718,315
756,858
166,183
296,242

$ 3,661,334

The Police Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension that covers all sworn police
personnel. Although this plan is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and em-
ployee and employer contribution levels are governed by Illinois State Statutes and may be
amended only by the Illinois legislature. The City accounts for the plan as a Pension Trust Fund.
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

3.

Police Pension Fund (Continued)

The plan is administered by a Board of Trustees. The Board consists of two members appointed
by the City, two active members of the police department elected by the membership, and one re-
tired member of the police department elected by the membership.

Benefits Provided

The Plan provides retirement, termination, disability, and death benefits to employees grouped
into two tiers. Tier 1 is for employees hired prior to January 1, 2011, and Tier 2 is for employees
hired after January 1, 2011.

Tier 1 employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of creditable service are
entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of one-half of annual salary attached to rank on
last day of service, or for one year prior to the last day, whichever is greater. The pension shall
be increased by 2.5% of annual salary for each year over 20 years up to 30 years, up to a maxi-
mum of 75% of salary. Employees with at least 8 years but less than 20 years of credited service
may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The retiree’s annual benefit payment
should be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and paid upon
reaching at least the age 55, by 3% of the original pension and 3% compounded annually there-
after.

Tier 2 employees attaining the age of 55 or more with 10 years or more years of creditable ser-
vice are entitled to 2.5% of the final average salary for each year of creditable service. The sal-
ary is initially capped at $106,800 but increases annually thereafter and is limited to 75% of final
average salary. Employees with 10 or more years of creditable service may retire at or after age
50 and receive a reduced benefit. The retiree’s annual benefit payment should be increased an-
nually equal to the lessor of 3% per year or one-half the annual unadjusted percentage increase in
the consumer price index for the 12 months ending with the September preceding each Novem-
ber 1, after attaining the age of 60.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

As of January 1, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 41

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits

Active employees 43
Total 5
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

3.

Police Pension Fund (Continued)
Contributions

Employees contribute a fixed percentage of their base salary to the plan. For the year ended De-
cember 31, 2018, the contribution percentage was 9.91%. If an employee leaves covered em-
ployment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be re-
funded. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan
as actuarially determined. Effective January 1, 2011, the City’s contributions must accumulate
to the point where the plan is 90% funded by the year 2040.

Net Pension Liability

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was measured by an actuarial valuation as of
that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The following are the methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability at De-
cember 31, 2018:

Inflation 2.5%
Salary increase Service based
Investment rate of return 6.75%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with a blue collar
adjustment, projected 5 years past the valuation date with Scale MO-2018. The disabled mortal-
ity rates were based on 115% of the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, projected 5 years
past the valuation date with Scale MO-2018.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2018, valuation were based on the results of ac-
tuarial experience study performed by the State of Illinois Department of Insurance in 2018.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (ex-
pected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. For 2018, the inflation rate assumption of the investment advisor was 2.18%.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return to the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each ma-
jor asset class are summarized in the following table:

Page 128



NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

3.

Police Pension Fund (Continued)

Asset Class

Fixed income and cash
Foreign equities

Large cap equities
Small cap equities

Discount Rate

Target

Allocation

41
19
30
10

%

Long-term
Expected
Real Rate
Of Return

27 %
54
5.0
59

A discount rate of 6.75% was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection of cash
flows used to determine this discount rate assumed that the plan members’ contributions will be
made at the current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal
to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rate and the member rate. Based
on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to de-

termine the total pension liability.

For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is
6.75%, the municipal bond rate is 4.10%, and the resulting single discount rate is 6.75%.
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

3.

Police Pension Fund (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Balances at December 31, 2017

Changes for the year:

Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Difference between expected

and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Reimbursements
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds
Administrative expense

Net Changes

Balances at December 31, 2018

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a)-(b)
$40,454,081 26,750,622 13,703,459
894,555 - 894,555
2,734,624 - 2,734,624
43,363 - 43,363
1,919,534 - 1,919,534
- 1,422,092 (1,422,092)
- 365,016 (365,016)
- 1,920 (1,920)
- (1,391,198) 1,391,198
(1,671,363) (1,671,363) -
- (24,430) 24,430
3,920,713 (1,297,963) 5,218,676
$44,374,794 25,452,659 18,922,135

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
6.75%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be using a discount rate that is 1%
point lower (5.75%) or 1% point higher (7.75%) than the current rate.

Net pension liability

1% Decrease

Current Single
Discount Rate

Assumption 1% Increase

$ 25,640,633 18,922,135 13,498,459
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)
3. Police Pension Fund (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $2,426,418 for
the Police Pension Fund, and a total of $5,074,292 for all three plans. The City reported deferred
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Outflows Inflows Net Outflows
Differences between expected and actual
experience § 57487 (476,363) (418,876)
Assumption changes 2,069,586 (394,464) 1,675,122
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments 2,133,293 - 2,133,293
Total $4,260,366 (870,827) 3,389,539

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be rec-
ognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

For The

Years Ending

December 31
2019 $ 946,572
2020 747,812
2021 494,529
2022 873,477
2023 327,149
Total $ 3,389,539
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

4. Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
December 31, 2018
Firefighters' Police
Pension Pension Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 410,542 - 410,542
Investments:
Common stock - 6,783,251 6,783,251
Corporate bonds - 4,792,069 4,792,069
Government securities 7,412,878 4,609,923 12,022,801
Money market funds 157,874 681,804 839,678
Mutual funds 11,905,184 7,179,090 19,084,274
The Illinois Funds 12 - 12
Receivables:
Property tax 938,046 1,350,502 2,288,548
Interest 41,895 66,020 107,915
Total Assets 20,866,431 25,462,659 46,329,090
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 5,000 10,000 15,000
NET POSITION
Restricted for pensions $ 20,861,431 25,452,659 46,314,090
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NOTE G - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

S. Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

For The Year Ended December 31, 2018

Firefighters' Police
Pension Pension Total
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer:
Property tax 910,998 1,304,043 2,215,041
Replacement tax 108,703 118,049 226,752
Employee 254,982 365,016 619,998
Total Contributions 1,274,683 1,787,108 3,061,791
Reimbursements - 1,920 1,920
Interest and dividend income 159,051 660,693 819,744
Net decrease in the fair value of investment  (1,683,239) (1,932,893) (3,616,132)
Less - Investment management and
custodial fees (42,142) (118,998) (161,140)
Net Investment Income (1,566,330) (1,391,198) (2,957,528)
Total Additions (291,647) 397,830 106,183
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments 1,694,324 1,667,424 3,361,748
Refunds of contributions 16,099 3,939 20,038
Administrative expenses 21,335 24,430 45,765
Total Deductions 1,731,758 1,695,793 3,427,551
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (2,023,405) (1,297,963) (3,321,368)
NET POSITION - RESTRICTED FOR
PENSIONS, JANUARY 1 22,884,836 26,750,622 49,635,458
NET POSITION - RESTRICTED FOR
PENSIONS, DECEMBER 31 $ 20,861,431 25,452,659 46,314,090

NOTE H - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description

The City’s OPEB plan (the Plan) provides OPEB for retirees of the City. The Plan is a single-employer defined
benefit healthcare plan administered by the City. No assets are accumulated in a trust for the Plan. The City
does not issue a separate report related to post-retirement healthcare benefits. The OPEB liability is generally

liquated by the General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund.
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NOTE H - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Contin-
ued)

Benefits Provided

The City provides pre- and post-Medicare post-retirement healthcare benefits to all retirees who worked for the
City, were enrolled in one of the City’s healthcare plans at the time of employment, and receive a pension from
the City through IMRF, the Police Pension Fund, or the Firefighters’ Pension Fund. The various eligibility re-

quirements vary with the type of retirement plan the employee was associated with.

Employee Covered by Benefit Terms

At December 31, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 25
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits -
Active employees 192
Total 17
Total OPEB Liability

The City’s total OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2018, and was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actu-
arial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Salary increase 3.00% including inflation
Discount rate 4.10%
Healthcare cost trend rates 2.0% for 2018, increasing to an ultimate

rate of 5.0% for 2026 and later years

The discount rate was based on the 20 year bond GO index at the end of the fiscal year. The rate for the prior
fiscal year was 3.44%.

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant mortality table for males and females, as appro-
priate, with generational projection based on Scale MP-2016.

The Plan has not had a formal actuarial experience study performed.
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NOTE H - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Contin-
ued)

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability
Balances at December 31, 2017 $11,620,912
Changes for the year:

Service cost 240,225
Interest on the total pension liability 392,597
Changes of assumptions (943,274)
Benefit payments (430,907)
Net Changes (741,359)

Balances at December 31, 2018 $ 10,879,553

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.44% in 2017 to 4.10% in
2018.

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 4.10%, as well
as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% point
lower (3.10%) or 1% point higher (5.10%) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
Total OPEB liability $ 12,369,080 10,879,553 9,669,083

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the healthcare cost trend rates of
2.0% increasing to 5.0%, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1% point lower (1.0% decreasing to 4.0%) or 1% point higher (3.0% decreas-
ing to 6.0%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
Total OPEB liability $ 9,464,549 10,879,553 12,620,726

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $537,733. Deferred outflows
and inflows of resources related to OPEB are from the following sources:
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NOTE H - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Contin-
ued)

Outflows Inflows Net Inflows

Assumption changes $ - (848,185) (848,185)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

For The
Years Ending
December 31
2019 $ (95,089)
2020 (95,089)
2021 (95,089)
2022 (95,089)
2023 (95,089)
Thereafter (372.,740)

Total $ (848,185)

NOTE I - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At December 31, 2018, the City construction commitments for the construction of a new water treatment plant
and various capital projects in the amount of $1,883,184.

The City is subject to various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable,
City management believes the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the City.

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may consti-
tute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the
grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE J - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance. There have been no sig-
nificant reductions in coverage from the prior year and settlements have not exceeded coverages in the past
three years.
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NOTE J - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The City is a member of the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC). The IPBC is a pooled
insurance cooperative established by certain units of local government in Illinois to administer personnel benefit
programs to the participating members.

As a member of the IPBC, the City has made contributions to the insurance plan, some of which are being
maintained by the IPBC for future claims or for return to the City. The funds are being held in several accounts
and the balances as of December 31 for each of the past three years are as follows:

December 31
2018 2017 2016
Administrative Account $ 5,222 788 7,357
Benefit Account 698,923 940,007 977,245
HMO Account 8,354 5,530 5,839
Terminal Reserve Account 630,475 637,932 641,002
Total $1,342,974 1,584,257 1,631,443

The City is self-insured with respect to workers’ compensation benefits. A third-party administers the plan and
provides information to the City regarding the claims incurred. The City retains the risk for the first $600,000
of an individual claim. Excess insurance coverage is purchased to cover individual claims in excess of
$600,000 for workers’ compensation benefits. There were no settlements in excess of the insurance coverage in
any of the three prior fiscal years. Unpaid claims as of December 31, 2018 were $1,349,252.

Balance As Of January 1, 2016 $ 730,479
Add - Claims incurred 284,826
Less - Claims paid (565,858)
Balance As Of December 31, 2016 449,447
Add - Claims incurred 644,091
Less - Claims paid (334,072)
Balance As Of December 31, 2017 759,466
Add - Claims incurred 862,315
Less - Claims paid (272,529)
Balance As Of December 31, 2018 $1,349,252

NOTE K - SOLID WASTE LANDFILL

The City maintained a solid waste landfill east of the City. This disposal facility was closed in 1986 and was
determined by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) to be satisfactorily closed and covered on
October 24, 1986.
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NOTE K - SOLID WASTE LANDFILL (Continued)

The IEPA requires the City to have sufficient operable equipment, personnel, and supervision available to com-
ply with applicable regulations; to provide a final cover of adequate depth; and adequate monitoring and control
over leachate, gas, water, and settling. In the inspection made by the Madison County Building, Zoning, and
Environmental Department, the City was found to be in compliance with applicable regulations.

In 1998, the IEPA notified the City that an inspection revealed possible environmental violations. At that
time, the City hired an engineer to examine the cause of the violations and provide further guidance on what
measures, if any, need to be taken by the City. The City has since dug wells and performed extensive testing
to remedy the situation. The City has filed for official permanent closure but, at this time, the IEPA has not
granted that status. The City has not recorded a liability for future costs due to the uncertainty of any addi-
tional procedures and any possible related costs. Any costs would be an estimate subject to changes resulting
from inflation, deflation, technology, or changes in laws or regulations.

NOTE L - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICTS

In 1986, the City established a Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District. Provisions for the establishment and
operation of a TIF District are in the Illinois Compiled Statutes, Chapter 65, Act 5, Article 11, Division 74.4.
The goals of the TIF District are defined in a redevelopment plan adopted by the City and dated December 26,
1986.

The objectives of the Collinsville, Illinois, Tax Increment Redevelopment Plan No. 1 are:

To reduce or eliminate those conditions which qualify the areas as a “conservation area”.

To prevent the recurrence of those conditions.

To enhance the tax base of the City and the other taxing districts which extend into the project area.
To preserve and enhance the value of properties adjacent to the project area.

To encourage private investment, rehabilitation, and redevelopment in the project area.

AN AN I

To provide necessary incentives to attract quality new commercial activities in the project area that are
compatible with the land use plan of the City.

7. To participate in planning, studies, professional services, site assembly, demolition, relocation, construction
of public works, job training and retraining, financing costs, payment in lieu of taxes, developers’ interest
costs, and other qualified project costs to attract the private investment, rehabilitation, and redevelopment in
an orderly plan in accordance with the City’s land use plans and regulations.

The redevelopment project costs of the TIF District have been financed from three revenue sources:

1. The real estate property taxes derived from any increment in property tax valuation from an established base
period.

2. The sales use and service tax increment, which generally is a state formula computation of the annual state
sales tax increment from sales within the TIF District compared to the base period.
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NOTE L - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICTS (Continued)

3. The “municipal sales tax increment” which is an amount equal to the increase in the aggregate amount of
taxes paid to the City from the Local Government Tax Fund compared to the base year which shall be the
calendar year immediately prior to the year in which the City adopted tax increment allocation financing.

Funds from the above sources are to be deposited in Special Tax Allocation Funds and redevelopment project
costs are to be paid from these funds.

On October 22, 2001, the City established TIF District #2 to provide funds to attract development in the vacant
southwest quadrant of the interchange of 1-255 and Horseshoe Lake Road. This 150-acre area is suitable for
retail and commercial use. TIF District #2 will be financed only with increases in property values within the
district and the related incremental taxes.

On January 27, 2003, the City established TIF District #3 to provide funds to attract development in the vacant
northeast quadrant of the of I-255 and 1-55/70 interchange. This 66-acre area is contiguous to TIF District #1
and is suitable for an industrial park. TIF District #3 will be financed only with increases in property values
within the district and the related incremental taxes.

On July 25, 2016, the City established TIF District #4 to provide funds to attract development, redevelopment,
and rehabilitation within the area which generally includes the St. Louis Road, Collinsville Road, and Bluff
Road Commercial Corridors from Fairmount Racetrack on the west Jefferson Avenue on the east and along
Bluff Road north to Interstate 55/70. This 857-acre area is suitable for commercial, retail, office, hospitality,
and recreation use. TIF District #4 will be financed only with increases in property values within the district
and the related incremental taxes.

The City pledged a portion of future property and sales tax revenues to repay the TIF bonds and other im-
provements in the TIF Districts. For the year ended December 31, 2018, total revenues in the Tax Increment
Financing Fund amounted to $2,873,641 and principal and interest payments amounted to $254,553.

NOTE M - FEDERAL DRUG FORFEITURE

During the year, the City received $161,676 in federal drug forfeiture revenue and from those funds expended
$97,468 for a balance of $571,034 at December 31, 2018. The City’s police department assists in drug raids
and seizes assets during those raids. All seized assets are turned over to Federal governmental agencies and
then shared on a percentage basis by municipalities and/or organizations that participated in the drug raids. The
governmental agencies require that those funds be used for police operations and, in some cases, drug enforce-
ment.

NOTE N - RESTRICTED NET POSITION

The government-wide statement of net position reports $8,471,101 of restricted net position, all of which is re-
stricted by enabling legislation.
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NOTE O - DEPOSIT

During 2017, the City prepaid a deposit in the amount of $520,086 for a firetruck. The City issued a note pay-
able to pay the deposit. The firetruck will be placed in service during 2019.

NOTE P - GOVERNMENT COMBINATIONS
Transfer of Operations

Under an intergovernmental agreement between the City and the Collinsville Area Recreation District (CARD),
CARD agreed to transfer some of its parks and recreational services to the City for the purpose of enhancing the
provision of those services to the City’s citizens. On May 1, 2018, CARD transferred the assets comprising its
aquatic park and farm to the City. As a result of the transfer, the City recognized $7,921,984 in capital assets.

Government Merger

In January 2018, the City entered into an intergovernmental agreement whereby the City merged with the
Collinsville Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium and Office Building Authority (the Authority). The initial
opening balances of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net
position, as of the beginning of the period, were determined on the basis of the carrying values reported in the
separate financial statements of the City and the Authority as of December 31, 2017, as follows:

December 31, 2017

City Authority Total
ASSETS
Current and other assets $ 23,843,942 3,438,771 27,282,713
Capital assets, net 33,615,406 9,637,114 43,252,520
Total Assets 57,459,348 13,075,885 70,535,233
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,674,732 - 2,674,732
LIABILITIES
Other liabilities 3,319,922 492,144 3,812,066
Long-term liabilities 55,133,996 4,714,789 59,848,785
Total Liabilities 58,453,918 5,206,933 63,660,851
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 4,688,109 - 4,688,109
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 32,815,136 4,922,325 37,737,461
Restricted 6,918,719 1,789,351 8,708,070
Unrestricted (42,741,802) 1,157,276 (41,584,526)
Total Net Position $ (3,007,947) 7,868,952 4,861,005

The City recorded a special item of $7,868,952 on the statement of activities and $2,946,627 in the General
Fund related to this merger.
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NOTE Q - FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) had issued several statements not yet implemented by

the City. The statements which might impact the City are as follows:

e GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance
regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and
how those activities should be reported. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting

periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

e (GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs
of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,

2019.

e GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements.
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to gov-
ernment financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. The re-
quirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.

NOTE R - RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION

The previously stated fund balance/net position have been restated as follows:

Capital Projects Governmental Business-type
Fund Activities
Fund balance/net position, December 31,
2017, as previously reported $ 1,664,712 (3,007,947) 26,697,840
Restatement for:
Cash and investments 22,575 (22,575)
Capital assets - 22,575
OPEB liability - (8,734,959) (240,822)
Deferred inflow related to OPEB - (19,137)
Fund Balance/Net Position, Decem-
ber 31, 2017, As Restated $ 1,687,287 (12,536,794) 26,437,881

NOTE S - DEFICIT BALANCE

At December 31, 2018, the Collins House Fund’s accumulated deficit of $525 is the result of expenditures
which exceeded revenues in 2018 plus prior years. The accumulated deficit will be offset by future revenues

received by the fund.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND - BUDGET BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Over
Original Final (Under)
Budget Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Property tax $ 1,140,380 1,140,380 1,131,542 (8,838)
Intergovernmental:
Sales and use tax 9,765,270 9,765,270 10,265,552 500,282
State income tax 2,397,750 2,397,750 2,449,600 51,850
Telecommunications tax 733,880 733,880 648,989 (84,891)
Replacement tax 79,950 79,950 39,976 (39,974)
Grants 120,700 120,700 153,051 32,351
Other 479,740 479,740 490,060 10,320
Other local taxes 1,732,570 1,732,570 2,044,632 312,062
Licenses and permits 716,420 716,420 724,399 7,979
Charges for services 2,687,890 2,687,890 3,006,211 318,321
Fines and forfeitures 335,110 335,110 277,338 (57,772)
Investment income 31,020 31,020 155,270 124,250
Gifts and donations 29,370 29,370 44,705 15,335
Other 312,010 312,010 833,548 521,538
Total Revenues 20,562,060 20,562,060 22,264,873 1,702,813
EXPENDITURES
General government:
City council 2,104,850 1,059,200 575,840 (483,360)
Boards 25,400 25,400 19,556 (5,844)
City manager 487,490 487,490 463,648 (23,842)
Operations 205,070 246,315 246,315 -
Human resources 306,350 519,584 520,391 807
Information technology 462,490 462,490 449,248 (13,242)
Finance 898,510 929,784 929,883 99
Total General Government 4,490,160 3,730,263 3,204,881 (525,382)
Public safety:
Police administration 1,214,530 1,214,530 1,157,270 (57,260)
Police operations 4,676,310 4,676,310 4,673,372 (2,938)
Police support 1,638,500 1,638,500 1,468,877 (169,623)
Animal control 217,040 217,040 199,483 (17,557)
Fire administration 496,490 496,490 503,805 7,315
Fire operations 3,693,820 3,898,645 3,898,644 9]
Emergency medical services 294,270 294,270 285,225 (9,045)
Emergency management 18,660 18,660 22,486 3,826
Total Public Safety 12,249,620 12,454,445 12,209,162 (245,283)
Public works:
Public works administration 171,310 171,310 164,408 (6,902)
Facilities maintenance 193,370 193,370 88,249 (105,121)
Streets 2,179,540 2,179,540 2,086,286 (93,254)
Fleet maintenance 151,730 151,730 22,920 (128,810)
Total Public Works 2,695,950 2,695,950 2,361,863 (334,087)
(Continued)
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND - BUDGET BASIS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Over
Original Final (Under)
Budget Budget Actual Budget
EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Health and sanitation:
Garbage service 1,541,260 1,541,260 1,492,768 (48,492)
Community/economic development:
Community development 289,880 289,880 189,312 (100,568)
Economic development 110,500 126,767 126,766 @)
Inspections 409,990 409,990 357,915 (52,075)
Total Community/Economic Development 810,370 826,637 673,993 (152,644)
Community services:
Shuttle bus 150,160 150,160 127,942 (22,218)
Convention center - 2,512,653 2,470,596 (42,057)
Total Community Services 150,160 2,662,813 2,598,538 (64,275)
Parks and recreation:
Parks and recreation administration 431,170 636,479 874,049 237,570
Willoughby farm - 178,685 178,732 47
Aquatic center - 62,210 62,210 -
Total Parks And Recreation 431,170 877,374 1,114,991 237,617
Total Expenditures 22,368,690 24,788,742 23,656,196 (1,132,546)
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (1,806,630) (4,226,682) (1,391,323) 2,835,359
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets 1,000 1,000 21,987 20,987
Transfers in 1,049,190 1,049,190 1,163,444 114,254
Transfer out - (2,000) (2,000) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,050,190 1,048,190 1,183,431 135,241
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET BASIS $ (756,440) (3,178,492) (207,892) 2,970,600
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE TO GAAP BASIS
Revenue accrual adjustments (87,667)
Expenditure accrual adjustments (409,404)
Unbudgeted merger adjustment 2,741,437
Total Adjustments To Reconcile
To GAAP Basis 2,244,366
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - GAAP BASIS 2,036,474
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 10,196,897
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 12,233,371
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND - BUDGET BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Over
Original Final (Under)
Budget Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Property tax $ 2,898,770 2,898,770 2,574,660 (324,110)
Intergovernmental:
Sales and use tax 27,740 27,740 28,040 300
Grants - - 100,000 100,000
Other local taxes 70,230 70,230 63,204 (7,026)
Investment income 6,410 6,410 41,735 35,325
Gifts and donations 3,370 3,370 9,761 6,391
Other 311,200 311,200 62,936 (248,264)
Total Revenues 3,317,720 3,317,720 2,880,336 (437,384)
EXPENDITURES
Community development 1,382,530 1,413,157 1,461,026 47,869
Community services 750,000 750,000 2,110 (747,890)
Capital outlay 2,460,000 2,460,000 708,869 (1,751,131)
Debt service 274,650 274,650 359,489 84,839
Total Expenditures 4,867,180 4,897,807 2,531,494 (2,366,313)
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,549,460)  (1,580,087) 348,842 1,928,929
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (87,000) (87,000) (77,317) 9,683
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS $ (1,636,460)  (1,667,087) 271,525 1,938,612
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE TO
GAAP BASIS
Revenue accrual adjustments (6,695)
Expenditure accrual adjustments 99,019
Total Adjustments To Reconcile
To GAAP Basis 92,324
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS 363,849
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 2,007,728
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 2,371,577
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
COLLINSVILLE CROSSINGS FUND - BUDGET BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Over
Original Final (Under)
Budget Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental:
Sales and use tax $ 2,222,940 2,222,940 2,055,194 (167,746)
Investment income 3,250 3,250 29,466 26,216
Total Revenues 2,226,190 2,226,190 2,084,660 (141,530)
EXPENDITURES
Community development 41,500 41,500 41,500 -
Debt service 1,824,590 1,863,090 1,863,090 -
Total Expenditures 1,866,090 1,904,590 1,904,590 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS $ 360,100 321,600 180,070 (141,530)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE
TO GAAP BASIS
Revenue accrual adjustments 111,987
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS 292,057
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 2,775,791
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 3,067,848
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Note to Budgetary Schedules

City ordinance requires that a legally adopted annual budget be prepared for all funds. The City Manager com-
piles a budget of estimated revenues and expenditures for the City and submits the budget to the City Council
prior to January 1 each year. Copies of the proposed budget are made available for public inspection for at least
10 days prior to passage of the budget. A public hearing is held on the budget by the City Council. Notice of
the hearing is given by publication in a newspaper with general circulation in the City.

The legal level of budgetary control is defined as the budgeted appropriation amount at the program level of ex-
penditures within a department.

Subsequent transfers within a fund may be made as follows:

e With the approval of the City Manager and the Finance Director, department heads may transfer
amounts up to $10,000 between programs within a department.

e City Council approval is required for all other transfers.

Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end. Supplemental appropriations can be made with the majority vote
of the City Council.

The City prepares its annual budget on the cash basis of accounting, which differs from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The City does not budget amounts for the issu-
ance or refunding of debt. The budget and all transactions are presented in accordance with the City’s method
(budget basis) in the required supplemental information for the major governmental funds to provide a mean-
ingful comparison of actual results with the budget.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the parks and recreation department in the General Fund had expendi-
tures exceeding appropriations by $237,617. In addition, the Northeast Business District Fund and the Fournie
Lane Business District had expenditures exceeding appropriates by $20,434 and $1,443, respectively. These
over expenditures were covered by additional current year revenues, available fund balance, or will be recov-
ered by future year’s revenues.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF CHANGES
IN NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) AND RELATED RATIOS -

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 577,866 571,611 537,899 574,104 601,096
Interest on the total pension liability 2,156,841 2,103,307 2,021,541 1,930,824 1,794,917
Difference between expected and actual experience 606,212 271,309 (341,745) (216,563) (474,909)
Changes of assumptions 881,543 (933,069) (34,346) 33,231 911,367
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,385,623) (1,219,394) (1,072,546) (1,043,363) (970,390)
Net Change In Total Pension Liability 2,836,839 793,764 1,110,803 1,278,233 1,862,081
Total Pension Liability Beginning 29,161,754 28,367,990 27,257,187 25,978,954 24,116,873
Total Pension Liability Ending (a) $ 31,998,593 29,161,754 28,367,990 27,257,187 25,978,954
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer $ 706,172 590,978 568,136 577,364 572,068
Contributions - employee 317,661 256,336 252,058 233,456 230,054
Net investment income (1,496,688) 4,477,518 1,702,493 125,178 1,454,168
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,385,623) (1,219,394) (1,072,546) (1,043,363) (970,390)
Other changes 468,884 (751,577) (371,182) (110,975) (56,995)
Net Change In Plan Fiduciary Net Position (1,389,594) 3,354,361 1,078,959 (218,340) 1,228,905
Plan Fiduciary Net Position Beginning 29,366,837 26,012,476 24,933,517 25,151,857 23,922,952
Plan Fiduciary Net Position Ending (b) $ 27,977,243 29,366,837 26,012,476 24,933,517 25,151,857
Net Pension Liability (Asset) Ending (a)-(b) $ 4,021,350 (205,083) 2,355,514 2,323,670 827,097
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability 8743 % 100.70 91.70 91.48 96.82
Covered Payroll $ 7,059,117 5,707,457 5,336,237 5,187,904 5,087,396
Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll 56.97 % (3.59) 44.14 44.79 16.26
Notes:
Information is not available for fiscal years prior to 2014.
The amounts noted above are as of the measurement date which is December 31.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS -

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Actuarially determined pension contributions $ 686,852 564,467 552,834 560,294 569,280
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions 706,172 590,978 568,136 577,364 572,068
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $  (19,320) (26,511) (15,302) (17,070) (2,788)
Covered Payroll $ 7,059,117 5,707,457 5,336,237 5,187,904 5,087,396
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 10.00 % 10.35 10.65 11.13 11.24

Notes to schedule:

Valuation date:

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 each year, which is 12 months prior to the beginning of
the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method

Wage growth

Inflation rate

Salary increases

Investment rate of return
Retirement age

Mortality

Other information:

Aggregate entry age normal

Level percent of payroll, closed

26 years closed until remaining period reaches 15 years (then 15 year rolling period)
5 years smoothed market; 20% corridor

3.5%

2.75%

3.75% to 14.5%, including inflation

7.5%, net of investment expenses

Experience-based Table of Rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition;
last updated for the 2014 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2011 - 2013.
For nondisabled retirees, an IMRF - specific mortality table was used with fully
generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF - specific

rates were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality
Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience. For disabled retirees,
an IMREF - specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection

scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMREF - specific rates were developed from
the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality Table, applying the same adjustments

that were applied for nondisabled lives. For active members, an IMRF - specific
mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base
year 2012). The IMRF - specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Employee
Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience.

There were no benefit changes during the year.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF
CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS -
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 712,235 701,995 802,529 751,669 742,354
Interest on the total pension liability 2,104,968 2,088,985 2,023,669 1,883,432 1,803,767
Difference between expected and actual experience 403,525 (208,429) (199,157) (512,634) -
Changes of assumptions 1,670,171 (701,979) - 1,359,601 -
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,710,423) (1,597,620) (1,520,098) (1,390,589) (1,359,863)
Net Change In Total Pension Liability 3,180,476 282,952 1,106,943 2,091,479 1,186,258
Total Pension Liability Beginning 31,327,690 31,044,738 29,937,795 27,846,316 26,660,058
Total Pension Liability Ending (a) $ 34,508,166 31,327,690 31,044,738 29,937,795 27,846,316
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer $ 1,019,701 719,265 787,666 743,056 666,611
Contributions - employee 254,982 240,904 227,725 234,908 239,369
Net investment income (1,566,330) 2,214,956 1,518,767 (353,447) 549,826
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,710,423) (1,597,620) (1,520,098) (1,390,589) (1,359,863)
Administrative expense (21,335) (15,723) (21,333) (13,332) (11,689)
Net Change In Plan Fiduciary Net Position (2,023,405) 1,561,782 992,727 (779,404) 84,254
Plan Fiduciary Net Position Beginning 22,884,836 21,323,054 20,330,327 21,109,731 21,025,477
Plan Fiduciary Net Position Ending (b) $ 20,861,431 22,884,836 21,323,054 20,330,327 21,109,731
Net Pension Liability Ending (a)-(b) $ 13,646,735 8,442,854 9,721,684 9,607,468 6,736,585
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability 60.45 % 73.05 68.68 67.91 75.81
Covered Payroll $ 2,547,901 2,408,514 2,408,514 2,484,484 2,430,009
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll 535.61 % 350.54 403.64 386.70 277.22

Notes:
Information is not available for fiscal years prior to 2014.

The amounts noted above are as of the measurement date which is December 31.

Changes of assumptions - For the 2015 fiscal year, amounts reported as changes of assumptions were the result of updating the mortality table to better reflect
anticipated mortality experience in the future. The Healthy Lives Mortality assumption was updated from the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table
with a blue collar adjustment to the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with a blue collar adjustment, projected to the valuation date using
Scale BB. Similarly, the Disabled Lives Mortality assumption was updated from the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table to the RP-2000 Disabled
Mortality Table, projected to the valuation date using Scale BB.

Changes of assumptions - For the 2017 fiscal year, amounts reported as changes of assumptions resulted from the following changes:

- The retirement, termination, and disability rates were updated to the rates determined in The State of Illinois Department of Insurance experience study
dated October 5, 2017.

- The salary increase rates were updated in accordance with the experience study.

- The percentage of active deaths and disablements assumed to occur in the line of duty were updated to 20% from 80%, respectively, in accordance with
the experience study.

Changes of assumptions - For the 2018 fiscal year, amount reported as changes of assumptions resulted from updating the mortality table to reflect the
PubS-2010 tables.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS -
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Actuarially determined pension contributions $ 1,019,756 728,551 783,917 743,824 670,223
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions 1,019,701 719,265 787,666 743,056 666,611
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ 55 9,286 (3,749) 768 3,612
Covered Payroll $ 2,696,795 2,547,901 2,408,514 2,484,484 2,430,009
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 37.81 % 28.23 32.70 29.91 27.43

Notes to schedule:
Valuation date:
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of January 1 each year, which is 12 months prior to the beginning of the

fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Normal cost, plus an additional amount (determined as a level percentage of
payroll) to bring the plan's funded ratio to 90% by the end of fiscal year 2040
Asset valuation method Investment gains and losses are recognized over a 5-year period
Interest rate 6.50%
Healthy Mortality Rates - Male RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Table with a blue collar adjustment
Healthy Mortality Rates - Female RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Table with a blue collar adjustment
Disability Mortality Rates - Male 115% of RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Table with blue collar adjustment
Disability Mortality Rates - Female 115% of RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Table with blue collar adjustment
Decrements other than mortality Experience tables
Rate of service related deaths 20%
Rate of service related disabilities 80%
Salary increase Service related table with rates grading from 12.5% to 3.5% at 31 years of service
Wage growth 3.5%
Tier 2 cost of living adjustment 1.25%
Marital status 80% of members are assumed to be married; male spouses are assumed to be

3 years older than female spouses

Other information:
There were no benefit changes during the year.
The actuarial assumptions used for determining the above amounts are based on experience for all Article 4 funds for the State of Illinois in
aggregate. The Department of Insurance has approved the above actuarial assumptions. Contact the Department of Insurance for complete
experiences tables.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL
MONEY-WEIGHTED RATE OF RETURN ON INVESTMENTS -
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

For The Years Ended December 31

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Annual money-weighted rate of return, net
of investment expenses (7.11) % 11.23 7.98 (1.68) 2.64
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF
CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS -
POLICE PENSION FUND

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 894,555 944,258 900,436 917,645 915,669
Interest on the total pension liability 2,734,624 2,643,174 2,555,670 2,374,481 2,253,065
Differences between expected and actual experience 43,363 32,030 (639,399) (469,983) -
Changes of assumptions 1,919,534 (591,695) - 1,409,927 -
Contributions - buy back - 1,920 1,920 1,920 88,916
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,671,363) (1,578,956) (1,553,236) (1,511,770) (1,409,970)
Net Change In Total Pension Liability 3,920,713 1,450,731 1,265,391 2,722,220 1,847,680
Total Pension Liability Beginning 40,454,081 39,003,350 37,737,959 35,015,739 33,168,059
Total Pension Liability Ending (a) $ 44,374,794 40,454,081 39,003,350 37,737,959 35,015,739
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer $ 1,422,092 1,178,869 1,148,282 1,193,868 1,169,202
Contributions - employee 365,016 343,441 335,566 314,877 319,074
Reimbursements 1,920 1,920 1,920 1,920 88,916
Net investment income (1,391,198) 2,969,602 1,058,611 516,950 739,361
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,671,363) (1,578,956) (1,553,236) (1,511,770) (1,409,970)
Administrative expense (24,430) (18,744) (21,980) (25,109) (24,699)
Net Change In Plan Fiduciary Net Position (1,297,963) 2,896,132 969,163 490,736 881,884
Plan Fiduciary Net Position Beginning 26,750,622 23,854,490 22,885,327 22,394,591 21,512,707
Plan Fiduciary Net Position Ending (b) $ 25,452,659 26,750,622 23,854,490 22,885,327 22,394,591
Net Pension Liability Ending (a)-(b) $ 18,922,135 13,703,459 15,148,860 14,852,632 12,621,148
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability 57.36 % 66.13 61.16 60.64 63.96
Covered Payroll $ 3,683,310 3,465,600 3,386,135 3,177,366 3,262,271
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 513.73 % 395.41 447.38 467.45 386.88

Notes:
Information is not available for fiscal years prior to 2014.

The amounts noted above are as of the measurement date which is December 31.

Changes of assumptions - For the 2015 fiscal year, amounts reported as changes of assumptions were the result of updating the mortality table to better reflect
anticipated mortality experience in the future. The Healthy Lives Mortality assumption was updated from the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table
with a blue collar adjustment to the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with a blue collar adjustment, projected to the valuation date using
Scale BB. Similarly, the Disabled Lives Mortality assumption was updated from the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table to the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality
Table, projected to the valuation date using Scale BB.

Changes of assumptions - For the 2017 fiscal year, amounts reported as changes of assumptions resulted from the following changes:

- The retirement, termination, and disability rates were updated to the rates determined in The State of Illinois Department of Insurance experience study
dated October 5, 2017.

- The salary increase rates were updated in accordance with the experience study.

- The percentage of active deaths and disablements assumed to occur in the line of duty were updated to 10% from 60%, respectively, in accordance with
the experience study.

Changes of assumptions - For the 2018 fiscal year, amount reported as changes of assumptions resulted from updating the mortality table to reflect
the PubS-2010 tables.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS -

POLICE PENSION FUND
LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Actuarially determined pension contributions $ 1,422,088 1,190,078 1,144,025 1,194,147 1,173,774
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions 1,422,092 1,178,869 1,148,282 1,193,868 1,169,202
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ 4) 11,209 (4,257) 279 4,572
Covered Payroll $ 3,683,310 3,465,600 3,386,135 3,177,366 3,262,271
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 38.61 % 34.02 33.91 37.57 35.84

Notes to schedule:
Valuation date:
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of January 1 each year, which is 12 months prior to the beginning

of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Normal cost, plus an additional amount (determined as a level percentage of
payroll) to bring the plan's funded ratio to 90% by the end of fiscal year 2040
Asset valuation method Investment gains and losses are recognized over a 5-year period
Interest rate 6.50%
Healthy Mortality Rates - Male RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Table with a blue collar adjustment
Healthy Mortality Rates - Female RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Table with a blue collar adjustment
Disability Mortality Rates - Male 115% of RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Table with blue collar adjustment
Disability Mortality Rates - Female 115% of RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Table with blue collar adjustment
Decrements other than mortality Experience tables
Rate of service related deaths 10%
Rate of service related disabilities 60%
Salary increases Service related table with rates grading from 11% to 3.50% at 33 years of service
Wage growth 3.5%
Tier 2 cost of living adjustment 1.25%
Marital status 80% of members are assumed to be married; male spouses are assumed to be

3 years older than female spouses

Other information:
There were no benefit changes during the year.
The actuarial assumptions used for determining the above amounts are based on experience for all Article 3 funds for the State
of Illinois in aggregate. The Department of Insurance has approved the above actuarial assumptions. Contact the Depart-
ment of Insurance for complete experiences tables.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF ANNUAL
MONEY-WEIGHTED RATE OF RETURN ON INVESTMENTS -

POLICE PENSION FUND
For The Years Ended December 31
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Annual money-weighted rate of return, net
of investment expenses (6.21) % 13.34 4.90 2.45 3.43
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF
CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018
Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 240,225
Interest 392,597
Changes of assumptions (943,274)
Benefit payments (430,907)
Net Change In Total OPEB Liability (741,359)
Total OPEB Liability Beginning 11,620,912
Total OPEB Liability Ending $ 10,879,553
Covered Payroll $ 13,740,390
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 79.18 %
Notes:

Information is not available for fiscal years prior to 2018.

Changes of assumptions. Changes of assumptions reflect the effects of changes in the discount rate
from the prior fiscal year. The discount rate decreased from 4.00% to 3.44%.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Debt Service

Special Revenue Funds Fund
Southwest
Northeast Corridors Collinsville Fournie Total
Tree Motor DUI Police Collins Business Business Animal Lane Nonmajor
Memorial Fuel Tax Court Fine Vehicle House District District Shelter Business Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total District Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 920 629,900 18,770 19,958 - 120,658 - 80,101 870,307 - 870,307
Investments 2,897 458,715 - - - 48,801 628,487 104,243 1,243,143 - 1,243,143
Receivables, net:
Intergovernmental - 55,557 - - - 171,441 91,191 - 318,189 9,644 327,833
Total Assets $ 3817 1,144,172 18,770 19,958 - 340,900 719,678 184,344 2,431,639 9,644 2,441,283
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - 39,300 - - 365 - - 13 39,678 - 39,678
Due from other funds - - - - 160 - - - 160 - 160
Total Liabilities - 39,300 - - 525 - - 13 39,838 - 39,838
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues:
Intergovernmental revenues - - - - - 63,551 30,558 - 94,109 2,224 96,333
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Motor fuel tax - 1,104,872 - - - - - - 1,104,872 - 1,104,872
DUI court fines - - 18,770 - - - - - 18,770 - 18,770
Police vehicles - - - 19,958 - - - - 19,958 - 19,958
Business districts - - - - - 277,349 689,120 - 966,469 7,420 973,889
Committed to:
Tree memorial 3,817 - - - - - - - 3,817 - 3,817
Collinsville animal shelter - - - - - - - 184,331 184,331 - 184,331
Unassigned - - - - (525) - - - (525) - (525)
Total Fund Balances 3,817 1,104,872 18,770 19,958 (525) 277,349 689,120 184,331 2,297,692 7,420 2,305,112
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows Of
Resources, And Fund Balances $§ 3817 1,144,172 18,770 19,958 - 340,900 719,678 184,344 2,431,639 9,644 2,441,283
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Debt Service

Special Revenue Funds Fund
Southwest
Northeast Corridors Collinsville Fournie Total
Tree Motor DUI Police Collins Business Business Animal Lane Nonmajor
Memorial Fuel Tax Court Fine Vehicle House District District Shelter Business Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total District Fund Funds
REVENUES
Intergovernmental:
Sales and use tax $ - - - - - 570,018 372,921 - 942,939 35,374 978,313
Motor fuel tax - 654,711 - - - - - - 654,711 - 654,711
Grants - - - - - 119,467 - - 119,467 - 119,467
Fines and forfeitures - - 6,907 9,948 - - - - 16,855 - 16,855
Investment income 61 16,747 199 194 5 2,062 7,746 2,722 29,736 193 29,929
Gifts and donations 650 - - - - - - - 650 - 650
Other - 9,550 - - - - - - 9,550 - 9,550
Total Revenues 711 681,008 7,106 10,142 5 691,547 380,667 2,722 1,773,908 35,567 1,809,475
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 638 - - - 4,085 - - - 4,723 - 4,723
Public safety - - - - - - - 13 13 - 13
Public works - 377,321 - - - - - - 377,321 - 377,321
Community/economic development - - - - - 396,165 2,979 - 399,144 - 399,144
Capital outlay - - - - - 18,269 3,780 604 22,653 - 22,653
Debt service:
Principal - - - - - - - - - 100,000 100,000
Interest and fiscal charges - - - - - - - - - 12,434 12,434
Total Expenditures 638 377,321 - - 4,085 414,434 6,759 617 803,854 112,434 916,288
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 73 303,687 7,106 10,142 (4,080) 277,113 373,908 2,105 970,054 (76,867) 893,187
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - - 2,000 - - - 2,000 77,317 79,317
Transfers out - (200,038) - - - - - - (200,038) - (200,038)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (200,038) - - 2,000 - - - (198,038) 77,317 (120,721)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 73 103,649 7,106 10,142 (2,080) 277,113 373,908 2,105 772,016 450 772,466
FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1 3,744 1,001,223 11,664 9,816 1,555 236 315,212 182,226 1,525,676 6,970 1,532,646
FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31 $ 3,817 1,104,872 18,770 19,958 (525) 277,349 689,120 184,331 2,297,692 7,420 2,305,112
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
TREE MEMORIAL FUND - BUDGET BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Original Over
And Final (Under)
Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Investment income $ 20 61 41
Gifts and donations 800 650 (150)
Total Revenues 820 711 (109)
EXPENDITURES
General government 1,450 638 (812)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS $ (630) 73 703
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE
TO GAAP BASIS -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS 73
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 3,744
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 3,817
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND - BUDGET BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Original Over
And Final (Under)
Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental:

Motor fuel tax $ 669,960 655,675 (14,285)
Investment income 1,530 16,747 15,217
Other - 9,550 9,550

Total Revenues 671,490 681,972 10,482
EXPENDITURES
Public works 401,600 338,021 (63,579)
Capital outlay 150,000 - (150,000)
Total Expenditures 551,600 338,021 (213,579)
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 119,890 343,951 224,061
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (100,000) (200,038) (100,038)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS $ 19,890 143,913 124,023
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE TO
GAAP BASIS
Revenue accrual adjustments (964)
Expenditure accrual adjustments (39,300)
Total Adjustments To Reconcile
To GAAP Basis (40,264)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS 103,649
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 1,001,223
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 1,104,872
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
DUI COURT FINE FUND - BUDGET BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Original Over
And Final (Under)
Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Fines and forfeitures $§ 8,160 6,907 (1,253)
Investment income 10 199 189
Total Revenues 8,170 7,106 (1,064)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS § 8,170 7,106 (1,064)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE
TO GAAP BASIS -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS 7,106
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 11,664
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 § 18,770
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
POLICE VEHICLE FUND - BUDGET BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Over
Original Final (Under)
Budget Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Fines and forfeitures $ 15,300 15,300 9,948 (5,352)
Investment income 20 20 194 174
Total Revenues 15,320 15,320 10,142 (5,178)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 45,000 45,000 - (45,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS $ (29,680) (29,680) 10,142 39,822
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE
TO GAAP BASIS -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS 10,142
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 9,816
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 19,958
Page 90

Page 164



CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

COLLINS HOUSE FUND - BUDGET BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Over
Original Final (Under)
Budget Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Investment income § 20 20 5 (15)
Gifts and donations 750 750 - (750)
Total Revenues 770 770 5 (765)
EXPENDITURES
General government 3,450 6,950 4,380 (2,570)
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (2,680) (6,180) (4,375) 1,805
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfer in - 2,000 2,000 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS $ (2,680) (4,180) (2,375) 1,805
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE TO
GAAP BASIS
Expenditure accrual adjustments 295
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS (2,080)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 1,555
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ (525)
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
NORTHEAST BUSINESS DISTRICT FUND - BUDGET BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Over
Original Final (Under)
Budget Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental:
Sales and use tax $ 461,000 461,000 559,295 98,295
Grants - - 119,467 119,467
Investment income - - 2,062 2,062
Total Revenues 461,000 461,000 680,824 219,824
EXPENDITURES
Economic development 494,000 494,000 496,165 2,165
Capital outlay - - 18,269 18,269
Total Expenditures 494,000 494,000 514,434 20,434
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS $ (33,000) (33,000) 166,390 199,390
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE TO
GAAP BASIS
Revenue accrual adjustments 10,723
Expenditure accrual adjustments 100,000
Total Adjustments To Reconcile
To GAAP Basis 110,723
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS 277,113
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 236
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 277,349
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
SOUTHWEST CORRIDORS BUSINESS DISTRICT FUND - BUDGET BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Original Over
And Final (Under)
Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental:
Sales and use tax $ 255,000 367,300 112,300
Investment income 500 7,746 7,246
Total Revenues 255,500 375,046 119,546
EXPENDITURES
Economic development 100,000 2,979 (97,021)
Capital outlay - 3,780 3,780
Total Expenditures 100,000 6,759 (93,241)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS $ 155,500 368,287 212,787
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE TO
GAAP BASIS
Revenue accrual adjustments 5,621
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS 373,908
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 315,212
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 689,120
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
COLLINSVILLE ANIMAL SHELTER FUND - BUDGET BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Over
Original Final (Under)
Budget Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Investment income $ 100 100 2,722 2,622
EXPENDITURES
Public safety 10,200 10,200 - (10,200)
Capital outlay 5,100 9,540 4,439 (5,101)
Total Expenditures 15,300 19,740 4,439 (15,301)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS $ (15,200) (19,640) (1,717) 17,923
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE
TO GAAP BASIS
Expenditure accrual adjustments 3,822
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS 2,105
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 182,226
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 184,331
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
FOURNIE LANE BUSINESS DISTRICT FUND - BUDGET BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Original Over
And Final (Under)
Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental:
Sales and use tax $ 30,500 35,112 4,612
Investment income - 193 193
Total Revenues 30,500 35,305 4,805
EXPENDITURES
Debt service 117,500 118,943 1,443
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (87,000) (83,638) 3,362
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 87,000 77,317 (9,683)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS $ - (6,321) (6,321)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE TO
GAAP BASIS
Revenue accrual adjustments 262
Expenditure accrual adjustments 6,509
Total Adjustments To Reconcile
To GAAP Basis 6,771
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS 450
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 6,970
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 7,420
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - BUDGET BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Over
Original Final (Under)
Budget Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - - 75,000 75,000
Other local taxes 1,305,600 1,305,600 1,324,422 18,822
Investment income 13,000 13,000 12,360 (640)
Gifts and donations - - 25,000 25,000
Total Revenues 1,318,600 1,318,600 1,436,782 118,182
EXPENDITURES
General government - - 19,999 19,999
Capital outlay 1,636,610 1,636,610 1,512,581 (124,029)
Debt service 103,080 103,080 162,344 59,264
Total Expenditures 1,739,690 1,739,690 1,694,924 (44,766)
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (421,090) (421,090) (258,142) 162,948
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Sale of capital assets 10,000 10,000 27,520 17,520
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET BASIS $ (411,090) (411,090) (230,622) 180,468
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE TO
GAAP BASIS
Revenue accrual adjustments (6,978)
Expenditure accrual adjustments (248,057)
Total Adjustments To Reconcile
To GAAP Basis (255,035)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
GAAP BASIS (485,657)
FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 1,687,287
FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 1,201,630
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - COMBINING STATEMENT OF
FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - PENSION TRUST FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2018
Total
Firefighters' Police Pension Trust
Pension Pension Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ 410,542 - 410,542
Investments:
Common stock - 6,783,251 6,783,251
Corporate bonds - 4,792,069 4,792,069
Government securities 7,412,878 4,609,923 12,022,801
Money market funds 157,874 681,804 839,678
Mutual funds 11,905,184 7,179,090 19,084,274
The Illinois Funds 12 - 12
Receivables:
Property tax 938,046 1,350,502 2,288,548
Interest 41,895 66,020 107,915
Total Assets 20,866,431 25,462,659 46,329,090
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 5,000 10,000 15,000
NET POSITION
Restricted for pensions $ 20,861,431 25,452,659 46,314,090
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - COMBINING STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - PENSION TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Total
Firefighters' Police Pension Trust
Pension Pension Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer:
Property tax $ 910,998 1,304,043 2,215,041
Replacement tax 108,703 118,049 226,752
Employee 254,982 365,016 619,998
Total Contributions 1,274,683 1,787,108 3,061,791
Reimbursements - 1,920 1,920
Interest and dividend income 159,051 660,693 819,744
Net decrease in the fair value of investments (1,683,239) (1,932,893) (3,616,132)
Less - Investment management and custodial fees (42,142) (118,998) (161,140)
Net Investment Income (1,566,330) (1,391,198) (2,957,528)
Total Additions (291,647) 397,830 106,183
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments 1,694,324 1,667,424 3,361,748
Refunds of contributions 16,099 3,939 20,038
Administrative expenses 21,335 24,430 45,765
Total Deductions 1,731,758 1,695,793 3,427,551
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (2,023,405) (1,297,963) (3,321,368)
NET POSITION - RESTRICTED FOR
PENSIONS, JANUARY 1 22,884,836 26,750,622 49,635,458
NET POSITION - RESTRICTED FOR
PENSION, DECEMBER 31 $ 20,861,431 25,452,659 46,314,090
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX RATES, TAXES EXTENDED, AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Levy Date - Calendar Year 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Madison St. Clair Madison St. Clair Madison St. Clair Madison St. Clair Madison St. Clair
County County County County County County County County County County
Revenue Collection Date -
Fiscal Year Ended 12/31/2018 12/31/2017 12/31/2016 12/31/2015 12/31/2014
Assessed Valuation $ 337,850,072 37,792,858 329,092,944 37,263,939 319,112,263 36,403,778 322,957,342 35,056,262 331,222,286 35,809,449
Tax Rates (Per $100 Equalized
Assessed Valuation):
General government $ 0.2437 0.2495 0.2135 0.2135 0.2172 0.2149 0.2442 0.2365 0.2671 0.2679
Police pension 0.2854 0.2922 0.2801 0.2801 0.3027 03114 0.2949 0.2998 0.2423 0.2431
Firefighters' pension 0.1650 0.1690 0.1843 0.1843 0.1787 0.1838 0.1568 0.1595 0.1652 0.1657
Total Tax Rates $ 0.6941 0.7107 0.6779 0.6779 0.6986 0.7101 0.6959 0.6958 0.6746 0.6767
Tax Extensions:
General government $ 823,341 94,293 702,613 79,559 693,112 78,232 788,662 82,908 884,695 95,934
Police pension 964,224 110,431 921,789 104,376 965,953 113,361 952,401 105,099 802,552 87,053
Firefighters' pension 557,453 63,870 606,518 68,677 570,254 66,910 506,397 55,915 547,179 59,336
Total Tax Extensions $ 2,345,018 268,594 2,230,920 252,612 2,229,319 258,503 2,247,460 243,922 2,234,426 242,323
Total Tax Collections Through
Fiscal Year End $ 2,229,637 267,572 2,115,394 252,407 2,094,390 257,287 2,094,408 243,271 2,234,022 249,271
Percent Of Total Taxes Collected 95.08 % 99.62 94.82 99.92 93.95 99.53 93.19 99.73 99.98 102.87
Note: The assessed valuation noted above does not include the TIF District areas.
(Continued)
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX RATES, TAXES EXTENDED, AND COLLECTIONS (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Levy Date - Calendar Year 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Madison St. Clair Madison St. Clair Madison St. Clair Madison St. Clair Madison St. Clair
County County County County County County County County County County
Revenue Collection Date -

Fiscal Year Ended 12/31/2013 12/31/2012 12/31/2011 12/31/2010 12/31/2009
Assessed Valuation $ 335,334,968 36,913,200 $340,132,595 38,451,631 354,084,288 38,764,502 355,483,094 38,702,681 364,253,981 38,101,665
Tax Rates (Per $100 Equalized

Assessed Valuation):

General government $ 0.2657 0.2618 0.3396 0.3401 0.2617 0.2627 0.3539 0.3544 0.3787 0.3826
Police pension 0.2518 0.2586 0.2309 0.2404 0.2277 0.2368 0.1730 0.1797 0.1472 0.1470
Firefighters' pension 0.1501 0.1542 0.0847 0.0882 0.1418 0.1475 0.1031 0.1071 0.0878 0.0876
Total Tax Rates $ 0.6676 0.6746 0.6552 0.6687 0.6312 0.6470 0.6300 0.6412 0.6137 0.6172
Tax Extensions:
General government $ 890,985 96,639 1,155,090 130,774 926,639 101,834 1,258,055 137,162 1,379,430 145,777
Police pension 844,373 95,458 785,366 92,438 806,250 91,794 614,986 69,549 536,182 56,009
Firefighters' pension 503,338 56,920 288,092 33,914 502,092 57,178 366,503 41,451 319,815 33,377
Total Tax Extensions $ 2,238,696 249,017 2,228,548 257,126 2,234,981 250,806 2,239,544 248,162 2,235,427 235,163
Total Tax Collections Through

Fiscal Year End $ 2,234,023 248,260 2,219,591 256,328 2,217,760 250,780 2,226,004 246,911 2,215,607 234,439

Percent of Total Taxes Collected 99.79 % 99.70 99.60 99.69 99.23 99.99 99.40 99.50 99.11 99.69
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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This part of the City’s CAFR presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information
in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplemental information says about the City’s
overall financial health.

Contents Pages
Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s fi-

nancial performance and well-being have changed over time. 102 - 106

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant local

revenue sources. 107 - 113
Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s
current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 114-116

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place. 117-118

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the ac-
tivities it performs. 119 - 121

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the CAFR for the relevant
year.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Governmental Activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Economic development
Other purposes
Restricted tax revenues
Forfeitures and seizures
Unrestricted
Total Governmental
Activities Net Position

Business-type Activities
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total Business-type
Activities Net Position

Primary Government
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Economic development
Other purposes
Special revenue funds
Forfeitures and seizures
Unrestricted
Total Primary Government

December 31

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 45,996,059 32,922,810 32,649,334 30,222,716 28,653,484 27,516,251 26,243,390 26,199,136 27,069,921 27,107,312
5,562,773 4,918,602 4,197,777 3,905,890 5,467,341 6,327,729 6,410,973 7,169,588 6,848,853 6,696,868
- - - - - - - - 500,174 293,292
2,175,094 1,412,178 586,839 940,787 1,475,838 1,935,056 2,611,027 2,198,586 - -
733,234 587,939 377,526 413,024 252,845 229,088 398,322 435,282 - -
(52,211,426)  (52,378,323)  (42,099,521)  (41,136,239)  (38,238,928)  (22,616,932)  (23,726,270)  (24,787,168)  (25,031,123)  (27,064,010)
$ 2,255,734 (12,536,794) (4,288,045) (5,653,822) (2,389,420) 13,391,192 11,937,442 11,215,424 9,387,825 7,033,462
§$ 24,784,354 24,854,085 21,539,601 21,767,625 21,326,364 20,771,958 21,305,022 22,981,311 23,207,196 23,766,488
2,300,369 1,583,796 4,161,641 4,328,034 5,098,389 4,673,152 4,604,246 3,690,694 3,227,805 2,528,084
$ 27,084,723 26,437,881 25,701,242 26,095,659 26,424,753 25,445,110 25,909,268 26,672,005 26,435,001 26,294,572
$ 70,780,413 57,776,895 54,188,935 51,990,341 49,979,848 48,288,209 47,548,412 49,180,447 50,277,117 50,873,800
5,562,773 4,918,602 4,197,777 3,905,890 5,467,341 6,327,729 6,410,973 7,169,588 6,848,853 6,696,868
- - - - - - - - 500,174 293,292
2,175,094 1,412,178 586,839 940,787 1,475,838 1,935,056 2,611,027 2,198,586 - -
733,234 587,939 377,526 413,024 252,845 229,088 398,322 435,282 - -

(49,911,057)

(50,794,527)

(37.937,880)

(36,808,205)

(33,140,539)

(17,943,780)

(19,122,024)

(21,096,474)

(21,803,318)

(24,535,926)

Net Position $ 29,340,457 13,901,087 21,413,197 20,441,837 24,035,333 38,836,302 37,846,710 37,887,429 35,822,826 33,328,034
Notes:
2014 was restated for the implementation of GASB 68.
2015 was restated for various accrual items.
2017 was restated for the implemtation of GASB 75 and various accrual items.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

EXPENSES
Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and sanitation
Community/economic development
Community services
Parks and recreation
Interest on long-term debt

Total Governmental Activities Expenses

Business-type Activities
Water and sewer

Total Primary Government Expenses

PROGRAM REVENUES
Governmental Activities
Charges for Services:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and sanitation
Community/economic development
Community services
Parks and recreation
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total Governmental Activities
Program Revenues

Business-type Activities
Water and sewer
Capital grants and contributions
Total Business-type Activities
Program Revenues
Total Primary Government
Program Revenues

NET REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total Primary Government Net
Revenues (Expenses)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
For The Years Ended December 31
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 3,873,694 4,496,437 4,156,991 4,012,953 3,667,032 3,891,863 2,740,990 3,409,165 3,270,285 3,691,084
16,913,272 15,671,649 15,204,614 16,680,952 13,517,895 13,164,090 13,240,053 12,995,924 10,802,030 10,568,120
4,753,374 4,624,721 4,632,542 4,431,379 4,460,286 4,030,653 3,932,367 4,002,295 3,976,489 4,041,241
1,503,961 1,473,222 1,496,230 1,631,883 1,459,591 1,511,678 1,491,279 1,416,012 1,353,435 1,426,460
2,600,125 2,431,943 2,061,689 4,594,607 1,759,411 2,330,004 2,893,966 2,154,758 1,920,748 4,016,787
3,501,338 673,129 981,231 933,423 1,062,598 1,535,746 864,479 813,871 990,128 768,055
1,523,332 3,305 - - - - - - - -
1,537,425 1,509,937 1,373,768 1,468,868 1,615,051 1,595,102 1,661,700 1,725,701 1,684,646 1,761,889
36,206,521 30,884,343 29,907,065 33,754,065 27,541,864 28,059,136 26,824,834 26,517,726 23,997,761 26,273,636
7,781,922 7,755,922 8,432,447 8,395,150 8,028,603 7,709,187 7,747,964 6,719,339 6,340,186 6,326,386
43,988,443 38,640,265 38,339,512 42,149,215 35,570,467 35,768,323 34,572,798 33,237,065 30,337,947 32,600,022
566,258 535,570 603,717 382,583 421,808 427,645 479,558 447,566 306,831 261,689
1,771,754 1,838,483 1,492,036 1,310,274 1,287,537 1,449,261 1,109,036 1,242,999 1,442,359 1,156,229
4,278 6,555 3,289 3,131 2,960 4,277 809 24,752 31,416 54,807
1,515,269 1,499,155 1,479,027 1,512,201 1,502,939 1,487,683 1,445,574 1,393,246 1,330,220 1,241,273
2,175,473 2,016,480 1,910,839 1,980,976 1,882,386 1,694,572 1,795,984 1,591,500 1,534,235 1,606,535
1,365,832 3,191 3,576 5,095 3,490 4,099 - - - -
174,332 - - - - - - - - -
247,859 114,747 153,028 119,444 187,587 406,118 285,237 319,760 344,336 392,021
8,568,108 354,092 1,665,795 1,930,518 1,170,692 62,320 546,922 559,162 1,387,511 322,196
16,389,163 6,368,273 7,311,307 7,244,222 6,459,399 5,535,975 5,663,120 5,578,985 6,376,908 5,034,750
9,142,518 8,727,973 8,771,124 8,723,993 8,807,956 7,866,508 7,802,609 7,515,589 7,027,785 6,973,798
127,750 902,000 - - 133,116 - 56,590 50,000 - -
9,270,268 9,629,973 8,771,124 8,723,993 8,941,072 7,866,508 7,859,199 7,565,589 7,027,785 6,973,798
25,659,431 15,998,246 16,082,431 15,968,215 15,400,471 13,402,483 13,522,319 13,144,574 13,404,693 12,008,548
(19,817,358)  (24,516,070)  (22,595,758)  (26,509,843)  (21,082,465)  (22,523,161)  (21,161,714)  (20,938,741)  (17,620,853)  (21,238,886)
1,488,346 1,874,051 338,677 328,843 912,469 157,321 111,235 846,250 687,599 647,412
(18,329,012)  (22,642,019)  (22,257,081)  (26,181,000)  (20,169,996)  (22,365,840)  (21,050,479)  (20,092,491)  (16,933,254)  (20,591,474)

(Continued)
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (Continued)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
For The Years Ended December 31
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
GENERAL REVENUES
Governmental Activities And
Business-type Activities
Property tax 5,972,089 5,386,785 5,309,000 5,376,334 5,335,681 5,262,251 5,652,052 5,033,701 4,245,218 4,232,317
Intergovernmental:
Sales and use tax 9,284,917 9,040,495 8,135,442 7,681,760 7,267,476 7,114,464 6,960,734 6,701,081 5,995,069 9,372,130
Home rule sales tax 4,144,382 3,982,918 3,776,307 3,758,167 3,793,196 3,806,590 4,045,647 4,276,149 3,754,669 -
State income tax 2,453,701 2,746,650 2,457,395 2,765,835 2,422,384 2,466,620 2,303,131 1,972,782 1,974,281 2,052,414
Telecommunications tax 636,417 693,004 757,694 798,293 767,125 918,488 1,231,171 1,155,235 1,083,623 1,064,333
Motor fuel tax 654,711 652,434 651,257 625,340 633,664 625,859 648,047 636,920 654,745 660,266
Replacement tax 266,880 278,177 283,562 311,592 287,699 295,965 266,540 260,211 64,971 48,664
Utility tax 1,317,444 1,203,867 1,012,079 352,187 377,378 364,452 331,315 371,807 377,363 363,431
Franchise fees 351,517 365,090 413,785 436,722 422,402 390,144 391,735 358,249 331,463 340,362
Other taxes 187,488 162,687 151,413 401,383 382,567 337,931 259,090 347815 387,477 199,162
Investment income 392,246 150,304 53,573 13,039 9,135 10,985 18,402 25,152 58,215 123,458
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 44,625 59,855 49913 - 16,566 (108,145) - - - -
Other 193,013 196,449 177,021 67,115 72,775 35,320 57,931 87,569 500,952 65,546
Special item 7,868,952 - - - - - - - - -
Total General Revenues 33,768,382 24,918,715 23,228,441 22,587,767 21,788,048 21,520,924 22,165,795 21,226,671 19,428,046 18,522,083
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Governmental activities 14,792,528 1,280,098 1,365,777 (3,264,139) 1,352,399 (380,758) 1,618,144 897,176 2,354,363 (2,521,063)
Business-type activities 646,842 996,598 (394,417) (329,094) 265,653 (464,158) (502,828) 237,004 140,429 451,672
Total Primary Government $15,439,370 2,276,696 971,360 (3,593,233) 1,618,052 (844,916) 1,115,316 1,134,180 2,494,792 (2,069,391)
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
December 31
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
General Fund
Reserved $ - - - - - - - - 500,174 293,292
Unreserved - - - - - - - - 3,725,822 2,548,980
Nonspendable 36,307 355,614 444,272 533,134 429,690 108,222 60,694 81,235 - -
Restricted 694,506 566,459 359,741 388,071 242,904 217,313 291,947 435,282 - -
Assigned 1,195,360 887,220 679,625 - - - - - - -
Unassigned 10,307,198 8,387,604 6,860,900 6,441,116 5,553,339 5,188,655 4,549,074 3,646,001 - -
Total General Fund $ 12,233,371 10,196,897 8,344,538 7,362,321 6,225,933 5,514,190 4,901,715 4,162,518 4,225,996 2,842,272
All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved $ - - - - - - - - 6,848,853 4,995,292
Unreserved, reported in:
Special Revenue Funds - - - - - - - - 1,950,972 3,213,077
Debt Service Funds - - - - - - - - 5,982 3,027
Capital Projects Funds - - - - - - - - 285,598 32,906
Nonspendable 520,086 520,086 900,233 - - - - - - -
Restricted 7,556,914 6,128,640 4,639,161 4,871,630 6,953,120 8,274,560 9,053,530 9,368,174 - -
Committed 869,692 1,332,151 2,310,347 2,262,739 2,002,222 1,368,820 844,992 239,174 - -
Unassigned (525) - - - - - - (16) - -
Total All Other Governmental Funds $ 8,946,167 7,980,877 7,849,741 7,134,369 8,955,342 9,643,380 9,898,522 9,607,332 9,091,405 8,244,302
The City implemented GASB 54 in 2011.
2015 General Fund was restated for various accrual items.
2017 Capital Projects Fund was restated for various accrual items.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
For The Years Ended December 31
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
REVENUES
Property tax $ 5,982,382 5,367,685 5,272,446 5,376,334 5,335,681 5,262,251 5,652,052 5,033,701 4,245,218 4,232,317
Intergovernmental 18,393,559 18,098,635 16,998,204 16,451,296 15,780,093 16,221,795 16,999,171 15,372,017 14,896,945 14,277,145
Other local taxes 3,477,766 2,993,190 2,674,573 2,078,771 1,951,557 1,789,280 1,753,103 1,735,290 1,645,118 1,638,521
Licenses and permits 724,393 712,624 856,163 699,035 702,228 574,861 678,019 645,872 577,085 548,694
Charges for services 3,333,887 2,560,859 2,344,411 2,357,410 2,383,584 2,632,073 2,322,508 2,361,175 2,282,887 2,178,897
Fines and forfeitures 292,807 389,961 192,533 383,365 303,006 171,629 283,081 324,944 413,217 241,943
Investment income 270,344 110,980 33,962 10,404 7,932 8,742 13,056 11,137 17,442 19,198
Gifts and donations 113,116 37,729 35,668 20,753 75,382 227,103 88,572 43,314 81,406 46,692
Other 1,064,517 575,752 667,782 510,950 574,484 954,010 486,659 446,286 733,773 435,125
Total Revenues 33,652,771 30,847,415 29,075,742 27,888,318 27,113,947 27,841,744 28,276,221 25,973,736 24,893,091 23,618,532
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 3,391,880 4,140,344 3,748,978 3,587,703 3,387,238 3,599,559 3,667,442 3,848,230 3,146,436 4,125,095
Public safety 14,596,800 13,334,787 13,077,952 13,137,745 12,969,826 12,480,892 12,401,624 12,171,164 10,080,269 9,889,604
Public works 2,750,008 2,449,342 2,442,600 2,249,942 2,534,959 2,328,299 2,234,694 2,330,203 2,434,501 2,417,675
Health and sanitation 1,503,961 1,473,222 1,496,230 1,631,883 1,459,591 1,511,678 1,491,279 1,416,012 1,353,435 1,426,460
Community/economic
development 2,569,850 2,224,531 1,963,360 4,180,208 2,031,697 2,334,866 2,805,275 2,093,428 1,918,369 4,009,931
Community services 2,609,702 652,071 1,003,547 922,359 1,051,880 1,524,003 849,207 787,703 976,442 767,672
Parks and recreation 905,879 3,305 - - - - - - - -
Capital outlay 3,059,056 3,781,658 2,988,793 1,865,702 2,554,578 2,241,830 2,190,612 1,097,722 2,073,268 1,608,901
Debt service:
Principal 1,788,078 907,873 853,012 639,888 573,627 590,954 541,859 653,223 372,746 646,209
Interest and fiscal charges 1,457,908 1,408,160 1,432,110 1,439,866 1,605,475 1,596,208 1,662,710 1,687,518 1,650,023 1,727,867
Cost of issuance - 77,082 - - - - - - - -
Total Expenditures 34,633,122 30,452,375 29,006,582 29,655,296 28,168,871 28,208,289 27,844,702 26,085,203 24,005,489 26,619,414
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (980,351) 395,040 69,160 (1,766,978) (1,054,924) (366,545) 431,519 (111,467) 887,602 (3,000,882)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term debt - 2,835,086 900,233 - 6,328,000 52,628 - - 636,598 2,700,000
Premium on issuance of long-term debt - 10,715 - - - - - - - -
Refunding of long-term debt - (2,248,754) - - (6,218,858) - - - - -
Sale of capital assets 49,507 44,855 52,352 - - - - - 121,353 -
Insurance recoveries - 111,665 - - - - - - - -
Transfers in 1,242,761 1,117,087 931,278 741,854 746,276 801,539 804,279 808,547 735,000 689,960
Transfers out (279,355) (185,310) (178,573) (81,282) (98,257) (177,817) (184,870) (185,286) (147,057) (389,960)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,012,913 1,685,344 1,705,290 660,572 757,161 676,350 619,409 623,261 1,345,894 3,000,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 32,562 2,080,384 1,774,450 (1,106,406) (297,763) 309,805 1,050,928 511,794 2,233,496 (882)
Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures 102 % 8.6 8.8 7.5 8.5 8.4 8.6 9.4 9.2 9.5
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
For The
Years Ended Sales Property
December 31 Tax Tax Other Total
2018 § 12,704,051 $ 5,982,382 9,167,274 § 27,853,707
2017 12,170,290 5,367,685 8,921,535 26,459,510
2016 11,148,440 5,272,446 8,984,494 25,405,380
2015 11,494,643 5,376,334 7,035,424 23,906,401
2014 10,856,571 5,335,681 6,875,079 23,067,331
2013 10,966,546 5,262,251 7,044,529 23,273,326
2012 11,329,783 5,652,052 7,422,491 24,404,326
2011 10,407,848 5,033,701 6,699,459 22,141,008
2010 9,749,738 4,245,218 6,792,325 20,787,281
2009 9,965,497 4,232,317 5,950,169 20,147,983
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
SALES TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Madison County
For The Metro East Metro East County
Years Ended City Transportation Park And Rec Flood State Of Direct And
December 31 Direct Rate District District Prevention Illinois Overlapping
2018 1.250 % 0.250 % 0.100 % 0.250 % 6.250 % 8.100 %
2017 1.250 0.250 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.100
2016 1.250 0.250 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.100
2015 1.250 0.250 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.100
2014 1.250 0.250 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.100
2013 1.250 0.250 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.100
2012 1.250 0.250 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.100
2011 1.250 0.250 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.100
2010 1.250 0.250 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.100
2009 1.250 0.250 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.100
St. Clair County
For The Metro East Metro East County
Years Ended City Transportation Park And Rec Flood State Of Direct And
December 31 Direct Rate District District Prevention Illinois Overlapping
2018 1.250 % 0.750 % 0.100 % 0.250 % 6.250 % 8.600 %
2017 1.250 0.750 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.600
2016 1.250 0.750 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.600
2015 1.250 0.750 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.600
2014 1.250 0.750 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.600
2013 1.250 0.750 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.600
2012 1.250 0.750 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.600
2011 1.250 0.750 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.600
2010 1.250 0.750 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.600
2009 1.250 0.750 0.100 0.250 6.250 8.600

Additionally, the City receives a 1% sales tax (included in the rates shown above) levied by the State of Illinois.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
SALES TAX GENERATED BY INDUSTRY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Taxable Percentage Taxable Percentage Taxable Percentage Taxable Percentage Taxable Percentage
Industry Sales Of Total Sales Of Total Sales Of Total Sales Of Total Sales Of Total

General merchandise $ 1,143,589 1751 % $ 1,022,821 1573 % § 944,941 1595 % § 953,639 1727 % $ 968,639 18.14 %
Food 586,925 8.98 647,719 9.96 660,284 11.14 674,415 12.21 665,305 12.46
Drinking and eating places 693,451 10.62 673,447 10.37 638,183 10.78 626,918 11.35 597,659 11.20
Apparel 11,265 0.17 11,908 0.18 18,657 0.32 19,405 0.35 15,839 0.30
Furniture, household, and radio 101,692 1.56 91,824 1.41 88,684 1.50 92,394 1.67 94,949 1.78
Lumber, building, hardware 297,065 4.55 292,142 4.49 267,988 4.53 247,988 4.49 232,615 4.36
Automotive and filling stations 2,496,941 38.22 2,547,757 39.19 2,199,155 37.14 1,814,744 32.85 1,735,495 32.51
Drugs and miscellaneous retail 634,969 9.72 650,044 10.00 633,881 10.71 616,530 11.16 582,952 10.92
Agriculture and all others 518,684 7.94 512,985 7.89 422,289 7.13 425,413 7.70 409,634 7.67
Manufacturers 48,156 0.73 50,716 0.78 47,247 0.80 52,290 0.95 35,330 0.66

Total $ 6,532,737 100.00 % _$ 6,501,363 100.00 %  $5,921,309 100.00 % § 5,523,736 100.00 % $ 5,338,417 100.00 %

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Taxable Percentage Taxable Percentage Taxable Percentage Taxable Percentage Taxable Percentage
Industry Sales Of Total Sales Of Total Sales Of Total Sales Of Total Sales Of Total

General merchandise $ 1,021,650 2040 % $ 1,088,478 21.50 % $ 892,949 1883 % § 1,101,934 24.18 % $ 1,093,399 25.02 %
Food 669,191 13.37 623,345 12.31 612,036 12.91 584,648 12.82 576,093 13.18
Drinking and eating places 580,094 11.59 590,520 11.66 573,325 12.09 562,628 12.34 544,617 12.46
Apparel 16,518 0.33 19,187 0.38 251,482 5.30 21,186 0.46 21,005 0.48
Furniture, household, and radio 113,971 2.28 112,561 2.22 106,519 2.25 107,596 2.36 77,487 1.77
Lumber, building, hardware 236,736 4.73 284,382 5.62 251,056 5.30 231,787 5.08 230,404 5.27
Automotive and filling stations 1,408,691 28.14 1,221,447 24.13 1,100,139 23.20 1,031,318 22.62 1,006,555 23.03
Drugs and miscellaneous retail 546,544 10.92 536,972 10.61 550,747 11.62 535,489 11.74 451,586 10.33
Agriculture and all others 380,192 7.59 556,927 11.00 377,702 7.97 355,206 7.79 330,585 7.56
Manufacturers 32,374 0.65 29,044 0.57 25,028 0.53 27,656 0.61 39,350 0.90

Total $ 5,005,961 100.00 % $ 5,062,863 100.00 % $ 4,740,983 100.00 % $ 4,559,448 100.00 % $ 4,371,081 100.00 %

Source: Taxable sales by Standard Industry Code reported by the State of Illinois Department of Revenue.

State law prohibits the disclosure of specific taxpayer information. Some categories in St. Clair County have less than four taxpayers, so no data is shown to protect the confidentiality of individual taxpayers.
Therefore, only Madison County is included for this presentation.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Madison County

Ratio Of Total

Total Taxable Assessed
Assessed Total Valuation To
Value In Direct Estimated Annual Estimated
Levy Residential Farm Commercial Industrial Railroad Other Madison Tax Actual Percentage Actual Value
Year Property Property Property Property Property Property County Rate Value Change Of Real Property
2017 261,214,096 $ 1,164,380 $ 99,167,495 $ 10,902,360 $ 177,036 $ 1,230 $ 372,626,597 0.6779 $ 1,117,991,590 2.82 % 3333 %
2016 255,179,712 1,185,670 95,162,375 10,687,360 186,791 1,230 362,403,138 0.6779 1,087,318,146 3.08 33.33
2015 248,562,018 1,141,830 91,260,290 10,423,280 196,795 1,230 351,585,443 0.6986 1,054,861,815 (1.21) 3333
2014 252,181,453 1,072,940 92,087,460 10,369,100 180,519 1,230 355,892,702 0.6959 1,067,784,884 (2.29) 33.33
2013 258,946,015 1,103,680 93,610,615 10,369,100 189,116 1,230 364,219,756 0.6746 1,092,768,545 (1.41) 33.33
2012 262,390,316 1,207,690 94,587,265 11,022,740 189,727 18,060 369,415,798 0.6676 1,108,358,230 (1.74) 33.33
2011 265,961,142 1,261,950 97,452,635 11,090,460 192,103 9,910 375,968,200 0.6552 1,128,017,402 (3.70) 3333
2010 278,180,858 1,228,180 99,683,395 11,180,000 150,355 4,240 390,427,028 0.6312 1,171,398,224 (0.36) 33.33
2009 278,226,838 1,149,220 101,586,369 10,760,460 122,637 4,240 391,849,764 0.6300 1,175,666,859 7.58 33.33
2008 275,257,999 900,820 82,050,752 5,933,360 106,810 4,240 364,253,981 0.6137 1,092,871,230 4.36 33.33
St. Clair County
Ratio Of Total
Total Taxable Assessed
Assessed Total Valuation To
Value In Direct Estimated Annual Estimated
Levy Residential Farm Commerecial Industrial Railroad Other St. Clair Tax Actual Percentage Actual Value
Year Property Property Property Property Property Property County Rate Value Change Of Real Property
2017 35,159,129 $ 40,066 $ 2,215,694 $ 400,167 $ - $ - $ 37,815,056 0.7107 $ 113,456,514 1.45 % 3333 %
2016 34,659,804 39,161 2,180,709 394,758 - - 37,274,432 0.6779 111,834,479 2.39 33.33
2015 33,791,881 38,152 2,187,901 385,844 - - 36,403,778 0.7101 109,222,256 3.84 33.33
2014 31,765,916 1,013,647 1,909,135 367,564 - - 35,056,262 0.6958 105,179,304 (2.10) 33.33
2013 32,350,004 1,074,932 2,010,173 374,340 - - 35,809,449 0.6932 107,439,091 (2.99) 3333
2012 33,347,145 1,102,287 2,080,929 382,839 - - 36,913,200 0.6746 110,750,675 (4.00) 33.33
2011 34,591,703 1,155,031 2,307,802 397,095 - - 38,451,631 0.6687 115,366,430 (0.81) 33.33
2010 34,798,367 1,166,541 2,398,041 401,553 - - 38,764,502 0.6470 116,305,137 0.16 33.33
2009 34,695,002 1,161,389 2,444,737 401,553 - - 38,702,681 0.6412 116,119,655 1.58 3333
2008 33,920,008 1,155,780 2,642,314 383,563 - - 38,101,665 0.6172 114,316,427 1.61 33.33
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Madison County

For The City Of Collinsville Collinsville Collinsville Southwestern  Mississippi  Collinsville

Years Ended Fire Police Madison Road And C.U. School Collinsville IL College Valley Area

December 31 General Pension Pension Total County Bridge District No. 10 Township No. 522 Library Recreation Total
2017 0.2437 0.1650 0.2854 0.6941 0.6157 0.3580 4.3541 0.1872 0.4676 0.2178 0.3804 7.2749
2016 0.2135 0.1843 0.2801 0.6779 0.6514 0.3767 4.5585 0.2302 0.4743 0.2119 0.6338 7.8147
2015 0.2172 0.1787 0.3027 0.6986 0.7073 0.3836 4.5833 0.2371 0.4637 0.2131 0.4742 7.7609
2014 0.2442 0.1568 0.2949 0.6959 0.7329 0.3808 4.4817 0.2341 0.4242 0.2131 0.4974 7.6601
2013 0.2671 0.1652 0.2423 0.6746 0.7210 0.3688 4.4418 0.2209 0.4048 0.2082 0.4452 7.4853
2012 0.2657 0.1501 0.2518 0.6676 0.6974 0.3577 4.3042 0.2170 0.3919 0.2059 0.4498 7.2915
2011 0.3396 0.0847 0.2309 0.6552 0.6864 0.3502 4.2533 0.2080 0.3743 0.2053 0.4511 7.1838
2010 0.2617 0.1418 0.2277 0.6312 0.7145 0.3408 4.2356 0.2034 0.3638 0.2025 0.5922 7.2840
2009 0.3539 0.1031 0.1730 0.6300 0.6781 0.3352 4.2472 0.2025 0.3552 0.2006 0.6122 7.2610
2008 0.3787 0.0878 0.1472 0.6137 0.6534 0.3263 4.2532 0.1920 0.3497 0.2004 0.5303 7.1190

St. Clair County

For The City Of Collinsville Collinsville Southwestern  Mississippi  Collinsville

Years Ended Fire Police St. Clair Caseyville C.U. School Caseyville IL College Valley Area

December 31 General Pension Pension Total County Road District No. 10 Township No. 522 Library Recreation Total
2017 0.2495 0.1690 0.2922 0.7107 1.1000 0.1160 4.3749 0.1217 0.4696 0.2189 0.3884 7.5002
2016 0.2135 0.1843 0.2801 0.6779 1.0865 0.1135 4.5633 0.1189 0.4749 0.2137 0.6333 7.8820
2015 0.2149 0.1838 03114 0.7101 0.9385 0.1170 4.5703 0.1261 0.4727 0.2146 0.4810 7.6303
2014 0.2365 0.1595 0.2998 0.6958 0.9388 0.1177 4.5022 0.1215 0.4285 0.2140 0.5039 7.5224
2013 0.2679 0.1724 0.2529 0.6932 0.9080 0.1074 4.4840 0.1145 0.4106 0.2100 0.4583 7.3860
2012 0.2618 0.1542 0.2586 0.6746 0.9123 0.1041 4.3310 0.1130 0.3942 0.2070 0.4579 7.1941
2011 0.3401 0.0882 0.2404 0.6687 0.9132 0.1019 4.2684 0.1110 0.3786 0.2065 0.4624 7.1107
2010 0.2627 0.1475 0.2368 0.6470 0.9158 0.1023 4.2613 0.1122 0.3689 0.2039 0.6065 7.2179
2009 0.3544 0.1071 0.1797 0.6412 0.9168 0.1017 4.2674 0.1065 0.3608 0.2019 0.5996 7.1959
2008 0.3826 0.0876 0.1470 0.6172 0.9161 0.1033 4.2511 0.1031 0.3574 0.2038 0.5328 7.0848

Note: Rates stated are per $100 of assessed valuation.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Collected Within The
Fiscal Year Of The Levy Total Collections To Date
Tax Percent Percent
Fiscal Levy Net Tax Of Levy Of Levy
Year Year Levy Amount Collected Amount Collected
2018 2017 § 2,832,163 $ 2,829,373 99.90 % $ 2,829,373 99.90 %
2017 2016 2,483,604 2,342,638 94.32 2,342,638 94.32
2016 2015 2,487,821 2,351,677 94.53 2,351,677 94.53
2015 2014 2,491,382 2,337,679 93.83 2,337,679 93.83
2014 2013 2,482,657 2,483,293 100.03 2,483,293 100.03
2013 2012 2,487,713 2,482,283 99.78 2,482,283 99.78
2012 2011 2,485,675 2,475,919 99.61 2,475,919 99.61
2011 2010 2,485,786 2,468,540 99.31 2,468,540 99.31
2010 2009 2,487,706 2,472,915 99.41 2,472,915 99.41
2009 2008 2,470,590 2,450,046 99.17 2,450,046 99.17
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2018 2009
Percentage Percentage
Taxable Of Total City Taxable Of Total City
Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable
Taxpayer Value Rank Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Value

Walmart Stores, Inc. $ 6,317,040 1 1.54 % $ 5,332,710 1 1.24
Lerch Properties Enterprises LLC 6,221,890 2 1.52 - - - %
COLHOT, LLC 3,754,650 3 0.91 3,267,480 4 0.76
Osborn & Osborn, LLC 3,473,050 4 0.85 3,820,140 2 0.89
Sandridge Mannors, LLC 2,917,800 5 0.71 1,966,890 9 0.46
Parkside Commons, LLC 2,892,280 6 0.70 - - -
MDC Eastport, LLC 2,504,980 7 0.61 2,231,040 8 0.52
Felfam Lakeside Plaza, LLC 2,338,470 8 0.57 - - -
Home Depot USA 1,949,780 9 0.48 3,023,780 6 0.70
Hendricks Commercial Properties LLC 1,875,100 10 0.46 - - -
Lakeside Plaza, LLC - - - 3,499,620 3 0.81
Keebler Krossing, LLC - - - 3,238,470 5 0.75
Cedar Ridge Eagle Creek, LLC - - - 2,380,970 7 0.55
Equity Investment Co. - - - 1,863,830 10 0.43

Totals $ 34,245,040 6.81 % $ 30,624,930 587 %
Source: Madison County Clerk's Office
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
General General Total Percentage Total GO

Fiscal Obligation Revenue Capital Note Obligation IEPA Capital Primary Of Personal Debt Per Debt Per
Year Bonds Bonds Leases Payable Bonds Loan Leases Government Income' Capita] Capital
2018 $ 7,142,497 $ 23,854,789 $ 670,220 $ 473914 $ 10,777,517 $ 14,112,221 $ - $ 57,031,158 8.39 % 2,316 728
2017 7,890,407 20,015,000 800,270 520,086 11,989,231 5,815,292 2,901 47,033,187 7.01 1,904 805
2016 8,404,923 20,145,000 923,143 - 13,171,082 - 8,701 42,652,849 6.32 1,704 862
2015 9,035,154 20,250,000 145,922 - 14,323,059 - 14,265 43,768,400 6.15 1,731 924
2014 9,625,385 20,250,000 200,810 - 15,455,163 - 19,602 45,550,960 6.88 1,806 994
2013 9,570,000 20,250,000 264,437 - 16,547,394 - 24,721 46,656,552 6.74 1,810 1,013
2012 10,080,000 20,250,000 292,763 - 17,064,114 - 29,157 47,716,034 6.44 1,854 1,054
2011 10,545,000 20,250,000 369,622 - 16,995,000 - 33,867 48,193,489 6.51 1,871 1,069
2010 10,950,000 20,250,000 617,845 - 17,795,000 - 37,949 49,650,794 7.50 1,934 1,119
2009 11,290,000 20,250,000 13,993 - 18,560,000 105,717 89,448 50,309,158 7.93 1,938 1,150

'See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

Direct:

City of Collinsville

Overlapping:

Madison County
St. Clair County
Unit 10 School District (Collinsville)
Unit 9 School District (Granite City)
Southwestern Illinois Community College
Collinsville Area Recreation District
Mississippi Valley Library
Caseyville Township
Collinsville Township
Canteen Township
Nameoki Township
Metro East Sanitary
East Side Health
State Park Fire
Total Overlapping Debt

Total Direct And Overlapping Debt

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Percent* Amount

Governmental Applicable Applicable

Activities To To

Debt Collinsville Collinsville'
$ 32,141,420 100.00 % $ 32,141,420

- 6.98 -
102,930,000 1.07 1,096,308
9,075,000 53.28 4,835,604
13,315,000 0.00 533
14,865,000 7.28 1,082,474
20,303,000 64.46 13,087,027

- 82.55 -

- 5.14 -

- 54.72 -

- 0.04 -

- 0.34 -

- 2.63 -

- 0.01 -

- 0.50 -
160,488,000 20,101,946
$ 192,629,420 $ 52,243,366

'Only portions of the overlapping districts are located within the City boundaries. The applicable amounts refer to
that portion of the district that is contained within the City boundaries. Therefore, the applicable amounts refer to

portions of the City's taxpayers.

*Based on the percent of total assessed value of a jurisdiction comprising the City's assessed property.

Source: The above-named jurisdictions.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE -

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PROGRAM REVENUE BONDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Limited Incremental Sales
Tax Revenue

Debt service
Ratio

Outstanding Balance

For The Years Ended December 31

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 1,220,455 1,240,000 1,197,276 1,226,701 1,103,733 1,110,752 1,144,275 1,147,658 1,160,577 1,155,734
$ 1,236,700 1,178,200 1,158,450 1,053,450 1,053,450 1,053,450 1,053,450 1,053,450 1,053,450 1,053,450
0.99 1.05 1.03 1.16 1.05 1.05 1.09 1.09 1.10 1.10
$ 19,820,000 20,015,000 20,145,000 20,250,000 20,250,000 20,250,000 20,250,000 20,250,000 20,250,000 20,250,000
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Per Median Unem-
Fiscal Personal Capita Household School ployment
Year Population Income Income Income Enrollment Rate
2018 24,621 $ 680,007,399 $ 27,619 $ 51,968 6,339 51 %
2017 24,703 670,661,747 27,149 52,675 5,594 4.5
2016 25,025 675,374,700 26,988 62,386 6,048 9.1
2015 25,282 712,016,966 28,163 63,361 6,154 10.2
2014 25,221 661,723,377 26,237 59,454 6,226 10.6
2013 25,778 692,165,078 26,851 57,297 6,378 9.1
2012 25,742 740,880,502 28,781 59,543 6,438 8.1
2011 25,757 740,178,909 28,737 57,835 6,336 6.9
2010 25,677 661,798,998 25,774 57,219 5,987 6.7
2009 25,960 634,747,960 24,451 56,129 6,240 6.9
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey
http://www.census.gov/acs/www/
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2018 2009
Employer Employees Rank Employees Rank
Collinsville Unit 10 School District 795 1 710 1
Wal-Mart 359 2 232 4
Fairmont Race Track 325 3 500 3
Illinois Department of Transportation 279 4 594 2
City of Collinsville 193 5 172 5
Laura Buick-GMC 173 6 - -
Woods Basement Systems 140 7 - -
Home Depot 110 8 - -
Schnucks Market 84 9 160 6
Illinois State Police 78 10 - -
Crop Production - - 100 7
K-Mart - - 90 8
Tri-Lab, LLC - - 70 9
Marsh Shipping Supply Co, LLC - - 60 10
Total 2,536 2,688
Source: Illinois Manufacturers Directory, Illinois Services Directory and a selective telephone survey.
The total number of jobs available in the City is not known for calculating a percentage.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
FULL-TIME CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
As Of December 31
FUNCTION/PROGRAM 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
General Government:
Administration - City Manager 2.5 3.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 3.0
Administration - Operations 1.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Administration - Human Resources 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0
Administration - Information Technology 3.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Finance 9.0 9.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0
Public Safety:
Police administration 7.0 7.0 8.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 6.0 5.0 5.0
Police operations 38.0 38.0 37.0 34.0 37.0 37.0 37.0 38.0 40.0 40.0
Police support 16.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 17.0 17.0 18.0 17.0
Animal shelter 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Fire administration 4.0 4.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Fire operations 30.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0 32.0 32.0
Public Works:
Engineering 1.0 1.0 1.0 - - - - 2.0 - -
Streets 16.3 14.3 15.3 13.0 13.0 13.0 12.0 15.0 17.0 19.0
Facilities Maintenance 1.0 - - - - - - - - -
Fleet Maintenance 1.0 - - - - - - - - -
Water lines 9.3 8.3 9.3 9.5 9.5 9.5 8.5 8.5 9.5 9.5
Water plant 6.5 7.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5
Waste water lines 6.0 7.0 7.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Waste water plant 7.9 7.8 7.8 7.0 7.0 7.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0
Community/Economic Development:
Community Development 2.5 4.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Inspections 4.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Community Services 15.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Parks and Recreation:
Operations 5.0 - - - - - - - - -
Parks Maintenance 2.0 - - - - - - - - -
Willoughby Farm 2.0 - - - - - - - - -
Total 193.0 166.9 164.0 157.0 160.0 160.0 160.0 164.0 170.0 171.0
Source: Payroll Data from Finance Department.
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year

FUNCTION/PROGRAM 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Police:

Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Sectors 3 3 3 3 6 6 6 6 6 6

Marked patrol units 18 18 19 19 18 18 18 18 18 18
Fire:

Stations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Fire trucks 4 4 4 3 3 3 4 4 4 4

Ambulances 4 4 4 3 3 3 4 4 4 3
Streets:

Streets (lane miles) 246 246 271 271 262 262 262 254 254 252

Sidewalks (miles) 54 54 74 74 74 74 72 71 71 71

Streetlights 2,406 2,406 2,406 2,406 2,406 2,406 2,406 2,404 2,404 2,408
Water:

Water mains (miles) 188 185 192 181 181 181 181 181 181 181

Water valves 1,833 1,814 1,786 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800

Fire hydrants 1,509 1,402 1,395 1,398 1,373 1,350 1,343 1,310 1,310 1,310
Waste water:

Sewer mains (miles) 131.00 131.00 127.16 123.90 120.00 120.00 120.00 120.00 120.00 120.00

Manholes 3,123 3,129 3,120 3,110 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
Source: Various City Departments
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CITY OF COLLINSVILLE, ILLINOIS
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year

FUNCTION/PROGRAM 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Police:

Traffic stops 5,902 7,662 5,959 6,187 5,888 6,326 7,483 9,252 9,198 10,926

Warrant checks/arrests 1,176 773 708 731 633 845 852 849 906 1,123

Bar checks 170 162 153 58 61 91 180 243 230 233
Fire:

Ambulance bills 2,904 2,765 2,589 2,383 2,176 2,107 2,325 1,903 1,950 1,947
Finance:

Accounts payable checks written 5,151 4,265 4,140 4,262 4,231 4,456 5,009 4,160 4,080 3,957

Utility payments posted 72,010 71,614 71,382 72,059 72,323 71,765 72,351 71,653 68,882 69,069

Disconnections for non-payment 1,868 1,655 1,658 2,007 2,469 2,162 1,913 3,218 - -
Inspections:

Single-family building permits 11 10 20 12 12 4 11 8 4 9

Commercial building permits 1 5 6 4 5 3 2 20 35 17
Water:

Average daily consumption (mgd) 1.8 1.9 2.1 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.2 2.4
Waste water:

New connections 12 8 12 21 21 9 2 24 8 15

Sewage treatment (mgd) 3.50 3.30 3.80 4.20 3.48 3.90 3.40 1.50 1.50 1.80
Source: Various City Departments
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